
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

AUGUST 11, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the special meeting of July 20, 2015, and the regular meeting of July 21, 2015. 

 

 

 

 



 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

2. Subject: Adoption Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With D&G Lin, LLC  
(330.04) 

Recommendation:  Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of 
the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Airport Director to 
Execute a Twenty-Year Lease Agreement, With Two Five-Year Options, for 
167,713 Square Feet of Land at 6210 Hollister Avenue, at the Santa Barbara 
Airport, With D&G Lin, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, at a Monthly 
Rental of $20,000, Exclusive of Utilities, Effective Upon Issuance of a Certificate 
of Occupancy by the City. 
  

3. Subject:  Authorization To Submit A Recreational Trails Program Grant 
Application For The Douglas Family Preserve Trails Restoration Project  
(570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Application for Grant 
Funds for up to $300,000 from the Recreational Trails Program. 
  

4. Subject:  Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code (340.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Title 4, Chapter 4.52, of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to Update and 
Increase the Monetary Thresholds Governing the Solicitation of Informal 
Quotations and Formal Bids for the Purchase of Ordinary Goods and Services. 
  

5. Subject:  Resolution To Accept A Waterline Easement And To Vacate The 
Superseded Waterline Easements At 182 And 202 La Vista Grande (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara, Accepting an Easement for a Public 
Waterline on a Portion of the Real Property Commonly Known as 202 La Vista 
Grande, Santa Barbara County Assessor's APN 015 130 002, and Adopting an 
Order Summarily Vacating and Abandoning Certain Superseded Portions of the 
Existing Easement for Water Pipelines at 182 and 202 La Vista Grande, Both 
Within the Limits of Said City. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

6. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Grant Funding Agreement For 
Recycled Water Enhancement Project For A Grant Of $1,045,222 (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and Execution 
by the Public Works Director of a Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water 
Management Subgrant Agreement with the Santa Barbara County Water 
Agency, and Any Amendments Thereto, Subject to Approval as to Form by the 
City Attorney, Regarding Grant Funding Award for the City of Santa Barbara 
Recycled Water Enhancement Project. 
  

7. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Highway Safety Improvement 
Program Traffic Signal Upgrades Project (530.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lee Wilson Electric Company, Inc., in their low bid 

amount of $1,208,570 for construction of the Highway Safety Improvement 
Program Traffic Signal Upgrades Project, Bid No. 3682; and authorize the 
Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures 
up to $120,857 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract 
change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

B. Transfer $582,227 of available appropriations from the Streets Capital 
Fund to the Streets Grant Fund and appropriate for the use of the project; 
and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues related to the Highway 
Safety Improvement Program grant funding by $900,000 in the Fiscal Year 
2016 Streets Grant Fund to cover the cost of construction for the Traffic 
Signal Upgrades Project. 

 

8. Subject:  Resolution To Postpone Proceedings To Form A New Business 
Improvement District In The Milpas Or Eastside Area (550.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing Policy That Council Will Not 
Accept Petitions or Initiate Proceedings for the Formation of a New Business 
Improvement District in the Milpas or Eastside Area Prior to January 12, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

9. Subject:  Adoption Of Resolution For Sole Source Authorization For The 
Secondary Process Improvements Project at El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Specification of REXA 
Actuators as Sole Source Equipment for the Secondary Process Improvement 
Project at El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant, Pursuant to California Public 
Contracting Code 3400(C). 
  

10. Subject:  Resolutions To Execute Documents To Collect Prepaid Mobile 
Telephony Services Surcharges And To Examine Records (270.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with the 

California Board of Equalization in Order to Receive Utility Users Taxes 
Imposed on Consumers of Prepaid Mobile Services;  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only,  A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the City Administrator and the City Attorney to 
Execute Certain Documents Required by the Board of Equalization to 
Collect the City's Utility Users Tax on Prepaid Wireless Service; and 

C. Adopt, by reading of title only,  A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Examination of Prepaid Mobile Telephony 
Services Surcharge and Local Charge Records. 

NOTICES 

11. The City Clerk has on Thursday, August 6, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Chapter 
5.66, News Racks (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently, adopt by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Chapter 5.66 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to Establish News Rack 
Regulations. 



 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

13. Subject:   Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For  
Annexation Of The Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History's Western 
Parcels  (680.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Consider the Planning Commission's recommendation to annex the Santa 

Barbara Museum of Natural History's Western Parcels;  
B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 28.12 
(Zone Map) of Title 28 of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Zoning Upon 
Annexation of Assessor Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and -068, 
and a portion of the Las Encinas Road Easement, in the Upper East 
Neighborhood;  

C. Adopt, by a reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Requesting Initiation of Proceedings for a Reorganization 
of Boundaries, Annexation to the City of Santa Barbara and Detachment 
from the Mission Canyon Lighting District, Santa Barbara County Fire 
Protection District, and County Service Area 12 for Certain Real Property 
Known Assessor Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and -068, and a 
portion of the Las Encinas Road Easement;  

D. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Amending the General Plan Map of the City of Santa 
Barbara Pertaining to Assessor's Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and 
-068, and a portion of the Las Encinas Road Easement Which Will Be 
Annexed to the City of Santa Barbara; and 

E. Consider and determine the project exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

 

14. Subject:   Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Final Approval For 
Additions To A Residence At 1912 Mission Ridge Road  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Trevor Martinson, agent for 
adjacent neighbors Rinaldo and Lalla Brutoco, and uphold the Single Family 
Design Board decision to grant Final Approval for additions to an existing single-
family residence. 
  
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
RECESS 



 

8/11/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

15. Subject:   Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance  
(640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.   Allocate $80,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the City 

Attorney's Office Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover the cost of legal 
services;  

B.   Allocate $90,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the 
Community Development Department's Fiscal Year 2016 budget and incur 
as an ongoing cost to augment existing zoning enforcement staff and 
cover the cost of increased zoning enforcement related to Vacation 
Rentals;  

C.  Allocate $10,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the 
Finance Department's Fiscal Year 2016 budget and incur as an ongoing 
cost for staffing overtime costs related to increased zoning enforcement of 
Vacation Rentals; and 

D.   Initiate a Zoning Ordinance amendment to allow Home Sharing Rentals. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ATTORNEY 

16. Subject:  Issuance of Legislative Subpoena To Support Vacation Rental 
Enforcement (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only,  A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Issuing Subpoenas for Certain Records 
Related to Short-Term Vacation Rentals in the City. 
  
ADJOURNMENT 

 



7/20/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
July 20, 2015 

1818 CASTILLO STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, 
Randy Rowse, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Councilmember Bendy White. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 

The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 16, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 

SITE VISIT 

Subject:  1818 Castillo Street 

Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 1818 
Castillo Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing set for July 21, 2015, at 2:00 
p.m. 

  
Discussion: 
 Staff provided an overview of the issues and Councilmembers were led on a tour 

around the subject pool area. 

 

AUG 11 2015 #1 



7/20/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 1:55 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
July 21, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet 
on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (2:11 p.m.), Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, 
Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject::  Proclamation Declaring July 26, 2105 As 25th Anniversary of 

Americans With Disabilities Act  (ADA) (120.04) 
 
Action:  Proclamation presented to Bob Burnham Representative of the Access 
Advisory Committee and Danielle Anderson Representative of the Independent 
Living Resource Center.   

 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA   
 
City Administrator Casey stated that Recommendation B under Item No. 9 was being 
deleted. 
 
 
 
 

AUG 11 2015 #1 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Wayne Scoles; Kenneth Loch; Phil Walker; Andrea Roselinsky; Dr. Robert 
Johns; Tom Widroe, City Watch; Richard Robinson. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 20) 
 
The titles of the resolutions relating to Consent Items were read.   
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Francisco/Hotchkiss to approve the recommendations. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of  the regular meeting of June 30, 2015. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

3. Subject:  Authorization To Amend Agreement For Legal Services With 
Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC To Cover The Costs Of The 
California Supreme Court Hearing in Jacks v. City of Santa Barbara (160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City Attorney to amend Legal Services Agreement Number 

25,126 with Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC to increase the not to 
exceed amount by $62,000 from $45,000 to $107,000 for special counsel 
services for the City's petition for review in the California Supreme Court 
on Rolland Jacks, et al., v. City Of Santa Barbara SBSC Case No. 
1383959; and 

B. Allocate $62,000 from General Fund appropriated reserves to the City 
Attorney's Office Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover the cost of the legal 
services. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 25,126.1 (July 21, 
2015, report from the City Attorney). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

4. Subject:  Grant Assistance For Training And Enforcement At Alcohol 
Serving Establishments (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara, Authorizing Acceptance of Funding Granted by the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control for the Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Grant Assistance to Local Law Enforcement Agencies Project;  

B. Authorize the Police Chief to execute the grant agreement award; and 
C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $50,000 in the Police 

Department Miscellaneous Grants Fund. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Resolution No. 15-061, Agreement No. 
25,256 (July 21, 2015, report from the Chief of Police; proposed resolution). 

5. Subject: Contract With InterVISTAS Consulting Inc. For Air Service 
Development Services (560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Airport Director to execute a 
contract with InterVISTAS Consulting Inc. for specialized air service development 
support for the Santa Barbara Airport, in an amount not to exceed $56,000. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,257 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Airport Director). 

6. Subject:  Proposed Lease Agreement With The Santa Barbara Sailing Club 
(330.04) 

Recommendation:  That City Council approve a Five-Year Lease Agreement with 
the Santa Barbara Sailing Club for 8,677 square feet of dry boat storage area in 
the Santa Barbara Harbor at a Monthly Rate of $1,600. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,258 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Waterfront Director). 

7. Subject:  Representative Services Agreement With Carpi & Clay, Inc. 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
three-year Representative Services Agreement between the City of Santa 
Barbara and Carpi & Clay Inc., for liaison and contact services with the United 
States Government, at a rate not-to-exceed $1,750 per month, and in a total 
amount not-to-exceed $63,000 for Fiscal Years 2016, 2017, and 2018. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,259 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Waterfront Director).  



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

8. Subject:  Adoption Of The Rental Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental 
Housing Mediation Task Force) Bylaws  (580.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Bylaws of the Rental 
Housing Mediation Board (Former Rental Housing Mediation Task Force). 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-062 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Community Development Director). 

9. Subject:  City Documents Related To Casa Esperanza Homeless 
Center/PATH Statutory Merger (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the assignment of City Agreements 25,144; 25,145; 25,194 and 

City purchase order 387931, to PATH (People Assisting the Homeless);  
B. Approve amending and restating the 1999 Restricted Use Covenant with 

an extended term of an additional 16 years; and 
C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute such 

agreements and related documents, subject to approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, as necessary. 

 
Action:  Approved the Recommendations A and C; (July 21, 2015, report from 
the Community Development Director). 

10. Subject: Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
(560.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute an Amendment to Contract No. 23,903 with Coffman Associates for 
preparation of additional traffic impact analysis for the Airport Master Plan in an 
amount not to exceed $28,000. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,903.2 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Airport Director). 

11. Subject:  Sole Source Purchase Order For Emergency Medical Dispatch 
System (520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council find it in the City's best interest to waive the 
formal bid procedure as authorized by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 
4.52.070 (K) and authorize the City General Services Manager to issue a 
purchase order to Priority Medical Corporation in an amount not to exceed 
$62,400 to purchase and install Priority Dispatch Emergency Medical Dispatch 
software for the City Police Department Combined Communication Center. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; (July 21, 2015, report from the Fire 
Chief). 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

12. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of North General Aviation Ramp 
Pavement Panel Replacement Project (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$357,925 for construction of the North General Aviation Ramp Pavement 
Panel Replacement Project, Bid No. 3790; and authorize the Public Works 
Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $35,792 
to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders 
for extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Kimley 
Horn in the amount of $54,585 for construction support services, and 
approve expenditures of up to $5,458 for extra services of Kimley Horn 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement Nos. 25,260 and 25,261 
(July 21, 2015, report from the Public Works Director). 

13. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Airport Lighting And Safety Project 
(560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Cindy Bales Engineering in their low bid amount of 

$2,143,410 for construction of the Airport Lighting and Safety Project, Bid 
No. 3763; and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract 
and approve expenditures up to $214,341 to cover any cost increases that 
may result from contract change orders for extra work and differences 
between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for 
payment;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mead & 
Hunt in the amount of $296,800 for construction support services, and 
approve expenditures of up to $29,680 for extra services of Mead & Hunt 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Authorize the General Services Manger to issue a purchase order to ADB 
Airfield Solutions in the amount of $10,076.73, and authorize the General 
Services Manager to approve expenditures of up to $2,500 for extra 
services of ADB Airfield Solutions that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement Nos. 25,262 and 25,263 
(July 21, 2015, report from the Public Works Director). 
 
 
 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

14. Subject:  Sole Source Agreement For Sanitary Sewer Chemical Root 
Control Services (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Sole Source Maintenance Agreement with Duke's Root Control in the amount 
$128,577.16 for sanitary sewer chemical root cleaning services, and authorize 
the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $12,857.72 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,264 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the Public Works Director). 

15. Subject:  Authorization For Contingency Fee Agreement With Baron & 
Budd, PC Regarding Legal Services Relating To The Refugio Oil Spill 
(160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Attorney to execute a 
contingency fee agreement with Baron & Budd, PC for legal services relating to 
the May 19, 2015 Refugio oil spill and a contingency fee amounting to 20% of 
any gross recovery. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,265 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the City Attorney). 

16. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Summer Solstice 
Celebration (180.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Summer Solstice Celebration, Inc. in 
the amount of $66,000 to support year-round administrative expenses for the 
community event. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,266 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the City Administrator). 

17. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Visit Santa Barbara (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Visit Santa Barbara to provide 
marketing services that promote Santa Barbara as a tourism destination, in an 
amount of $1,380,000. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,267 (July 21, 2015, 
report from the City Administrator). 

 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

18. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of The Planning 
Commission Approval For 3425 Sea Ledge Lane (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of August 4, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by 

Chris Krach-Bastian, of the Planning Commission's approval of an 
application for the construction of a new 400 square-foot pool and spa with 
associated pool equipment and safety fencing on a 17,490 square-foot lot 
in the Hillside Design District.  This proposal is an amendment to the 
recent Coastal Development Permit dated May 2, 2013, and revised on 
August 8, 2014, under MST2012-00135, which approved 2,508 square 
feet of one- and two-story additions, the demolition of the existing garage, 
and the conversion of 488 square feet of existing habitable floor area into 
a new two-car garage.  The discretionary application required for this 
project is an Amendment to the Coastal Development Permit (CDP2012-
00004) to allow the proposed development in the Appealable Jurisdiction 
of the City's Coastal Zone (SBMC Section 28.44).  The Environmental 
Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures, which allows for the construction of accessory structures 
including swimming pools.   

B. Set the date of August 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (Appeal letter received  June 22, 2015). 

19. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of The Single 
Family Design Board's Final Design Approval For 1912 Mission Ridge Road 
(640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of August 11, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for 
hearing the appeal filed by Trevor Martinson on behalf of Rinaldo Brutoco of the 
Single Family Design Board's Final Design Approval for project owned by Craig 
Morrison and located at 1912 Mission Ridge Road, Assessor's Parcel No.:  019-
083-021, A-1 Zone; Application No. MST2014-00585.  This project proposes a 22 
square foot first-floor addition and a 530 square foot second-floor addition to an 
existing 2,146 square foot one-story, single-family residence with an attached 
579 square foot garage.  The proposal includes one new uncovered parking 
space, a 194 square foot covered patio at the entry, a 158 square foot second-
story deck, a raised pool and surrounding deck, and interior remodel work.  It 
also includes permitting an "as-built" air conditioning condenser unit, relocation of 
the pool equipment enclosure, and a new driveway and pedestrian gate.  The 
proposed total of 3,251 square feet on a 25,091 square foot lot in the hillside 
Design District is 69% of the guideline maximum floor-to-lot area ratio. 

(Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

19. (Cont’d) 
 
Documents: 
      - Letter from Trevor Martinson dated July 20, 2015. 

Speaker:   

 - Member of the Public:  Trevor J. Martinson. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (Appeal letter received June 24, 2015). 

NOTICES 

20. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 16, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar.   

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

21. Subject: Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and 
Execution by the City of an Installment Sale Agreement in Connection with 
the Desalination Plant Reactivation Project Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund Project No. 4210010-005C; 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval, 
Subject to Receipt of SRF Loan For Project No. 4210010-005C, and 
Execution by the Public Works Director of a Contract to Design, Build, and 
Operate the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility with IDE Americas, 
Inc., in the Amount of $43,437,234 and Approve Expenditures up to 
$1,864,420 to Cover any Cost Increases that may Result From Contract 
Change Orders for Extra Work and Differences Between Estimated Bid 
Quantities and Actual Quantities Measured for \Payment;  

C. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Acceptance 
and Execution by the Public Works Director of a Lease For a Term of 25 
Years with the State Of California State Lands Commission for the 
Continued Use and Maintenance of One 48-inch Diameter Sewer Outfall 
Pipeline and Maintenance of One 42-inch Diameter Non-operational 
Outfall Pipeline and Associated Facilities as Further Described on Exhibit 
"A" Attached Thereto;                                                                       (Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

21. (Cont’d) 
 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to pay the $500,000 for work on a 
project to restore the upper Devereaux Slough in accordance with 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit special conditions; 

E. Approve a purchase order in the amount of $60,000 to Acciona Agua as 
stipend for submitting a proposal in response to the Request for Proposals 
for the Recommissioning Of The Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility; 

F. Authorize the City Attorney to execute an Amendment to Legal Services 
Agreement No. 24,935 with Latham & Watkins LLP to increase the "Do 
Not Exceed Limit" from $200,000 to $220,000 for legal support related to 
the local Coastal Development Permit; 

G. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Third Amendment to Legal 
Services Agreement No.24,835 with Hanson Bridgett LLP to increase the 
"Do Not Exceed Limit" from $150,000 to $175,000 for legal services 
related to negotiating and drafting the DBO contract; and 

H. Increase estimated revenues and appropriations in the Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan Fund in the amount of $8,000,000 for the Charles E. 
Meyer Desalination Facility for a total amount of $55,000,000. 

 
Documents: 
 - July 21, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - Proposed Ordinances. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Water Resource Manager Joshua Haggmark.  
 - Members of the Public:  David Williams, Santa Barbara Science Center; 

Parke Blair, Geo Source Foundation; Bill Jones, Geo Source Foundation;  
Wayne Scoles; Phil Walker; Kira Redmond, Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper; Matthew Kramer.  

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Francisco to approve the staff recommendations; 

Agreement Nos. 24,935.1 and 24,835.3. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote.   

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

22. Subject:  Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara Grand Jury Report On 
Zoning Information Reports  (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning Information 

Reports; and 
(Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

22. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize the Mayor to send a letter forwarding the City's response to the 

Grand Jury Report. 
 
Documents: 
 - July 21, 2015, report from the Community Development Director. 
 - Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning Information Reports. 
 - July 20, 2015, Email from Bob Hart. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Senior Planner Susan Reardon; Assistant City Attorney Scott 

Vincent;  
 - Members of the Public:  Reyne Stapelmann, Santa Barbara Association of 

Realtors; Adrienne Schuele, Santa Barbara Association of Realtors; Joan 
Russell Price; Tom Widroe, City Watch; John Chufar; Wanda Livernors; 
Alec Bruice; Bob Hart; Morton Maizlish, Maizlish Realtors, Inc.; Ed Edick, 
Village Properties; Isaac Garrett; Nancy Hamilton; Tony Fisher; Cathie 
McCammou. 

 
Motion: 
  Councilmembers Rowse/Francisco to form an adhoc committee to work 

with staff to redraft answers to the Grand Jury report and bring back to 
Council on August 4, 2015, for approval.    

Vote: 
  Unanimous voice vote. 

 
RECESS   
 
5:00 p.m. – 5:15 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

23. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval 
Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council 
A. Deny the appeal of Brian Barnwell of the Architectural Board of Review's 

decision to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new seven-unit 
apartment building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

 
Documents: 

- July 21, 2015, report from the Community Development Director. 
(Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 

23. (Cont’d) 
 
Documents: (Cont’d) 

- July 14, 2015 Letter from Melissa Lolley. 
- July 16, 2015 Letter from JoAnn Nasta. 
- July 16, 2015 Letter from Marie Schnyer. 
- July 16, 2015 Email/Letter from Brian Barnwell. 
- July 20, 2015 Letter from Melissa. 
- July 20, 2015 Letter from JoAnn Nasta. 
- July 21, 2015 Letter from Brian Barnwell. 
- July 21, 2015 Letter from Jon Kechejian. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
 Public Comment Opened: 
   6:06 p.m. 
 
 Speakers: 
  - Staff:  Associate Planner Suzanne Riegle, Project Planner Irma Unzueta, 

Supervising Transportation Planner Steve Foley. 
  - Architectural Board of Review:  Member Amy Tripp. 
  - Applicant:  Randy Douglas, DB Partners, LLC. 
  - Appellant: Brian Barnwell.   
  - Members of the Public:  Pam Lasker; Rick (last name not stated); Richard 

Handler; Mark Edwards; Kay Hoffman; Suzanne Smith; Enid Sterling; 
Sharon Foster. 

 
 Public Comment Closed: 
   6:20 p.m. 
 
 Motion: 
   Councilmembers White/Francisco to uphold the appeal and refer to 

Planning Commission to specifically comment on the compatibility with the 
neighborhood, reduction of the number of bathrooms per unit, and 
additional parking and return to Architectural Board of Review for further 
review. 

 Vote: 
   Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmember Murillo). 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
No reports were made.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 12 

 
RECESS 
 
7:03 p.m. – 7:15 p.m. 
Mayor Schneider presiding. 
Councilmembers present:  Francisco, Hart (7:16), Hotchkiss, Murillo, Rowse, White, 
Mayor Schneider. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Casey, City Attorney Calonne, Deputy City Clerk 
Applegate.   
 
EVENING SESSION  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 

RECONVENE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one indicated a desire to speak. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

24. Subject:  Direction To Staff On The 2015 Bicycle Master Plan (670.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation on preliminary bicycle 
network improvements developed from the community engagement process and 
provide input and direction to staff regarding the Draft Bicycle Master Plan 
Completion. 
 
Documents: 
 - July 21, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - July 20, 2015 Email from David Hale. 
 - July 21, 2015 Letter from Dave Davis and Cameron Gray, Community 

Environmental Council.   
 - July 21, 2015, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Mayor Schneider stated she would recuse herself from participating in the portion 
of the discussion relating to Westside Connections due to conflicts of interest 
related to her ownership of a residence located on Chino Street located in the 
Westside. 
 
 

(Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 13 

 
24. (Cont’d) 

 
Councilmember Murillo stated she would recuse herself from participating in the 
portion of the discussion relating to Westside Connections due to a conflicts of 
Interest related to her residence located 500 feet from Chino Street and on the 
corner of Valerio Street located in the Westside. 
  
Councilmember White stated he would recuse himself from participating in the 
portion of the discussion related to the Eastside Connections due to conflicts of 
Interest related to his ownership of a residence located at 1126 Laguna located 
in the Eastside.   
 
City Administrator Paul Casey stated he would recuse himself from participating 
in  the portion of the discussion related to the Eastside Connections due to 
conflicts of interest related to his ownership of a residence located at 336 
Pedregosa Street located in the Eastside.                                                                                             
 
City Attorney Calonne stated that he would recue himself from participating in the 
portion of the discussion related to the Westside Connections due to conflicts of 
interest relating to his ownership of a residence located at 1318 San Andres 
Street located in the Westside. 

 
Councilmember White and City Administrator Casey left the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Discussion began regarding the Eastside Connections.   
 

Speakers: 
- Staff:  Principal Transportation Planner Rob Dayton; Melanie Smith, 

Principal at Melendrez;  Matt Benjamin, Principal at Bend and Peers. 
- Members of the Public:  Tom Widroe, City Watch; Howard Green 

Transportation Circulation Committee Member; Bonnie Raisin; Wayne 
Scholes; Barry Remis, Coalition For Sustainable Transportation; Erica 
Lindemann; Mike Suding; Mike Jordan; Jamey Wagner, University 
California Santa Barbara; Cameron Gray; Ivor John; Shaun Duex, 
RightScale; Eve Sanford; Ed France, Mitchel Bass; Shannon Miller; Jeff 
Rawlings; Ethan Shenkman.  
                                 

Mayor Schneider, Councilmember Murillo, City Attorney Calonne left the meeting at 
8:56 p.m. 
 
Councilmember White returned to the meeting at 8:56 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hart presiding.   
 
Discussion continued regarding the Westside Connections. 

(Cont’d) 



7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 14 

24. (Cont’d)  
 
          Speakers:   

- Members of the Public:  Kristen Santiago; Lucia Casso; Michael Magee; 
Dorothy Griffin; Julia Hayes; Lily Bastug; Susan Lafond; James Sanders; 
Brian King; Michael Jordan, Planning Commission Member; Ed France.   

 
By consensus, the Council received the report and their questions were answered. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hart adjourned the meeting at 9:24 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
GREGG HART 
MAYOR PRO TEMPORE 



 1 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
AIRPORT DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A TWENTY-YEAR 
LEASE AGREEMENT, WITH TWO FIVE-YEAR OPTIONS 
FOR 167,713 SQUARE FEET OF LAND AT 6210 
HOLLISTER AVENUE, AT THE SANTA BARBARA 
AIRPORT, WITH D&G LIN, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY, AT A MONTHLY RENTAL OF 
$20,000, EXCLUSIVE OF UTILITIES, EFFECTIVE UPON 
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY BY THE 
CITY. 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain twenty-year Lease Agreement, with two five-year options, 
between the City of Santa Barbara and D&G Lin, LLC, for operation of an automobile 
dealership at 6210 Hollister Avenue; including 167,713 square feet of land, at the Santa 
Barbara Airport, for a monthly rental of $20,000, exclusive of utilities, is hereby 
approved. 
 

 

 

 
 

AUG 11 2015 #2 
330.04 



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  570.05 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Jill E. Zachary, Acting Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT: Authorization To Submit A Recreational Trails Program Grant 

Application For The Douglas Family Preserve Trails Restoration 
Project  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving the Application for Grant Funds for up to $300,000 from the 
Recreational Trails Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Douglas Family Preserve (Preserve) consists of approximately 70 acres of Open 
Space park land located near the intersection of Cliff Drive and Las Positas Road, in the 
western portion of Santa Barbara. The Preserve is located adjacent to the Shoreline 
Beach area, Arroyo Burro Creek and Arroyo Burro Beach County Park, and the Mesa 
neighborhood. The Preserve includes passive recreation uses including walking, 
jogging, bike riding, hang gliding, and off leash dog walking. The Preserve affords 
scenic vistas of the shoreline, Pacific Ocean, Elings Park and the Las Positas Valley, 
and the Santa Ynez Mountains. There are over three miles of trails through the 
Preserve’s diverse native and exotic habitats. Trails consist of an outer Loop (Main) 
Trail, inner Middle Loop Trail, secondary trails and the Oak Grove Trail. Trails are 
primarily dirt trails, but also include remains of old asphalt road and narrow paths. There 
are also user created unauthorized paths in the Preserve.  
 
Over the past several years, the well-used trails have compacted, eroded, and widened. 
The Douglas Family Preserve Trails Restoration Project (Project) will rehabilitate and 
renovate existing trails, decommission and reroute user created trails, and provide 
universal access to at least 1/3 of the three miles of trail system in the Preserve. The 
Project will reduce trail erosion, improve park safety and access, foster the restoration 
of native habitats, and help prevent further cliff erosion. The Project trail improvements 
were identified in the Douglas Family Preserve Management Plan and Off-Leash Dog 
Park Locations Draft Environmental Impact Report (2003) and are in compliance with 
the Final Douglas Family Preserve Management Plan (2008). 



Council Agenda Report 
Authorization To Submit A Recreational Trails Program Grant Application For The Douglas 
Family Preserve Trails Restoration Project  
August  11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

RECREATION TRAILS PROGRAM 
 
The Recreational Trails Program is a state-administered local assistance program of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). Within 
the State of California, the Department of Parks and Recreation is authorized to 
administer the program. The California Department of Parks and Recreation seeks 
grant applications for projects to develop and maintain recreational trails, with 70% of 
the funds available to non-motorized projects. The FHWA recently released $11 Million 
to the Recreational Trails Program. This release of funds is outside of the normal FHWA 
grant timeline so applications are fast-tracked.  
 
Due September 15, 2015, the Recreation Trails Program grant application requires a 
Council resolution authorizing the grant application and designating the Parks and 
Recreation Director as the City’s agent to conduct all contract negotiations.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The total cost of the Project is estimated to be $300,000. Staff proposes to request up to 
$250,000 in grant funding through the Recreational Trails Program.  The grant guidelines 
require at least a 12 percent match. Matching funds for the Project would include the 2016 
Parks and Recreation Community Foundation disbursement of $30,000 from the Douglas 
Family Preserve Endowment Fund. Additional matching funds would be provided in the 
form of “in-kind” staff support to manage and implement the Project.    
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Project will reduce trail erosion, improve park safety and access, foster the 
restoration of native habitats, and help prevent further cliff erosion. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Kathy Frye, Natural Areas Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Acting Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________________ 
  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR 
GRANT FUNDS FOR UP TO $300,000 FROM THE 
RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the “Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21)” provides 
funds to the State of California for Grants to federal, state, local, and non-profit 
organizations to acquire, develop, and/or maintain motorized and non-motorized trail 
Projects;  
 
WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 
responsibility for the administration of the program within the State, setting up 
necessary procedures governing Project Application under the program;  
 
WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 
Recreation require the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of Application(s) 
before submission of said Application(s) to the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant will enter into a Contract with the State of California to 
complete the Project(s). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA HEREBY: 
 
1. Approves the filing of an Application for the Recreational Trails Program; and 
 
2. Certifies that the Project is consistent with the Applicant’s general plan or the 

equivalent planning document; and 
 
3. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available prior to commencement of 

any work on the Project(s) included in this Application, sufficient funds to operate 
and maintain the Project(s); and 

 
4. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the 

General Provisions contained in the Contract shown in the Procedural Guide; 
and 

 
5. Appoints the Parks and Recreation Director as agent to conduct all negotiations, 

execute and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, 
agreements, amendments, payment requests and so on, which may be 
necessary for the completion of the Project. 

 



2 
 

6. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
 



Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  340.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: General Services Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Title 4, Chapter 4.52, of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code to Update and Increase the Monetary Thresholds Governing the 
Solicitation of Informal Quotations and Formal Bids for the Purchase of Ordinary Goods 
and Services.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City’s bidding thresholds in Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code were last updated in 
2009.  Since then, the cost of goods and services has increased, a buyer position was 
eliminated, and the Purchasing Division has taken on new responsibilities.  With the goal 
of improving operational efficiencies and customer service, Purchasing Division staff 
reviewed the Municipal Code to look for areas that need to be updated with a focus on the 
monetary bidding thresholds.  The City’s current monetary thresholds for bidding are low 
when compared to other similar public agencies.  Increasing the thresholds would 
streamline the procurement process, and improve service by allowing Purchasing staff to 
focus on higher value purchases where there are greater opportunities for savings. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The recommended changes have been presented to the Finance and Ordinance 
Committees. Both committees recommended the changes be forwarded to Council.  The 
City’s purchasing operations are governed by Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code.  The 
purpose of the code is “to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of supplies, non-
professional services and equipment at the lowest possible cost commensurate with the 
quality needed, to exercise positive financial control over purchases, to clearly define 
authority for the purchasing function…”.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

The Purchasing Code (“Code”) was last updated in 2009.  Since then the cost of 
acquiring goods and services has increased, a buyer position was eliminated, and the 
Purchasing Division has taken on new responsibilities for supporting the requisitioning, 
purchasing, and contracting modules of the new financial system.    
 
Purchasing staff compared the City’s monetary bidding thresholds to other public 
agencies in the area.  The comparison showed the City had much lower thresholds and 
was the only agency to have a separate threshold for maintenance and repair services.  
Many agencies did not require any competition until the purchases exceeded $10,000. 
 
Existing Purchasing Thresholds 
The Code imposes more stringent requirements for purchases exceeding $25,000 versus 
those purchases of $25,000 or less. Although maintenance and repair activities are a 
general service, the City Council established a higher threshold of $75,000 for 
maintenance and repair services (Resolution 97-052) as opposed to the $25,000 
threshold for other ordinary services. 
 
Section 4.52.060 of the Purchasing Code governs purchases up to $25,000.  These 
requirements are less stringent than the requirements for purchases over $25,000 
discussed below. 
 

- Purchases of $2,500 or less can be made without competitive bids (a single 
quote);  
 

- Purchases over $2,500 and up to $25,000 require three (3) quotes whenever 
possible in writing or by telephone (informal competition); 
 

- Section 4.52.070 of the Purchasing Code governs the purchases exceeding 
$25,000 and requires a “formal” purchasing procedure be followed (advertising).  
These requirements include: 

 
1. Advertising of the bids 
2. Received bids must be sealed 
3. Public bid opening 
4. Award of purchase order to the lowest, responsive, and responsible 

bidder 
 
Proposed Changes 
Besides having low thresholds compared to other similar public agencies, the City was 
the only agency that had a different threshold for maintenance and repair activities versus 
other ordinary services.  Having a higher monetary threshold for maintenance and repairs 
than ordinary services is confusing to the departments and creates an artificial incentive 
for departments to classify work as maintenance and repair because of the higher 
threshold.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 

 

While many of the public agencies had thresholds higher than those being proposed, we 
believe the proposed thresholds are appropriate for the City based on its past spending 
patterns.  The table below summarizes the procurement process, and current and 
proposed changes to the monetary thresholds. 
 
 

Procurement Process Current Threshold Proposed Threshold 
Single Quote $2,500 $7,500 
Informal Quotes  $2,501 to $25,000 $7,501 to $75,000 
Formal Bids (goods & services) $25,001 or more $75,001 or more 
Formal Bids (maintenance) $75,001 or more $75,001 or more 
 
 
Increasing the monetary thresholds will streamline procurement operations by reducing 
the amount of time and effort spent on low dollar purchases of ordinary goods and 
services where there are little opportunities for savings, align the workload with 
Purchasing staffing levels, and allow Purchasing staff to focus their efforts on the 
purchases that have the highest potential for savings. 
 
To analyze the potential impacts of increasing the monetary bidding thresholds, purchase 
orders were segregated by various dollar levels, which are summarized in the table 
below. 
 
Under the current thresholds, 26% of the purchase orders issued are $2,500 or less.  The 
percent would increase to 53.5% if the threshold is increased to $7,500.  At the $7,500 
threshold, the cumulative value of the purchase orders issued only represents 7.5% of the 
aggregate value of all purchase orders issued.  This is not an effective use of staff time 
and resources.  The below table highlights the potential impacts of changing the 
thresholds with the proposed thresholds in bold. 
 
 

 
Threshold 

% of 
Purchase 

Orders 

% of Total 
Purchase Order 

Spending 

 
Process 

$2,500 ≤ 26.1% 1.8% Single Quote 
$7,500 ≤ 53.5% 7.5% Single Quote 

    
>$2,500 & $25,000≤ 56.2% 22.9% Informal 
>$7,500 & $75,000≤ 39.4% 37.7% Informal 

    
>$25,000 17.7% 75.2% Formal 
>$75,000 7.1% 54.8% Formal 

 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 

 

Other Proposed Changes to the Code 
In addition to the proposed changes to bidding thresholds, staff proposes minor revisions 
to the Code as follows: 

1. Often, the cheapest software solution is not the best value because it does not 
best meet our needs and requirements.  To recognize the unique aspects of 
information technology acquisitions, authorize the acquisitions of information 
technology on a best value basis using evaluation criteria other than cost alone. 
 

2. Exclude the following from the competitive award requirements because the 
purpose of open and competitive awards cannot be met because of their unique 
characteristics.  For example, Parks may not want to advertise their recreational 
activities on the cheapest radio station because it may not have the target 
audience they seek. 

a. print, radio, television, and on-line advertising 
b. renewals of software license and maintenance/support 
c. memberships 
d. training 
e. housing and furniture rentals for Police cadets 

 
3. Authorize the use of State of California Multiple Award Schedules (CMAS) 

contracts and Leveraged Purchase Agreements under Section 4.52.140, 
Cooperative Purchasing. CMAS contracts are based in contracts previously bid 
and awarded on a Federal General Services Administration (GSA) schedule with 
the State of California adding terms and conditions to comply with California 
procurement codes.  Public Contracting Code Sections 10298 and 10299 authorize 
local government agencies to use CMAS and other Department of General 
Services agreements. 
 

4. Increase the Council reporting requirements from $25,000 to $35,000 under 
Section 4.52.080, Emergency Purchases, to match the increased authority 
delegated to the City Administrator in Resolution 14-065.   

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are potential savings because significant staff time spent on low dollar purchases 
with little or no opportunity for savings will be freed up to focus on higher value and more 
critical purchases.   
 
PREPARED BY: Bill Hornung, C.P.M., General Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director/Acting Assistant City 

Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



1 
 

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 8/11/15 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM THE EXISTING CODE 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 4.52,  
OF THE SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL TO UPDATE AND 
INCREASE THE MONETARY THRESHOLDS GOVERNING 
THE SOLICITATION OF INFORMAL QUOTATIONS AND 
FORMAL BIDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF ORDINARY 
GOODS AND SERVICES.   

 
4.52.010 System Adopted - Purpose. 
 
 In order to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of equipment, supplies, 
and services at the lowest possible cost commensurate with quality needed, to exercise 
positive financial control over purchases, to clearly define authority for the purchasing 
function, and to assure the quality of purchases, a purchasing system is adopted.  To 
the greatest extent practicable, the City shall endeavor to develop purchasing 
specifications that will result in the purchase of equipment, supplies, and services that 
are environmentally preferred.  Competitive bidding for the purchase of equipment, 
supplies, and services is preferred as a matter of City policy and good purchasing 
practice.  Even when competitive bids are not required by this Chapter, competitive 
proposals or bids should be obtained if reasonably practicable and compatible with the 
City’s interests. 
 
4.52.020 Definitions. 
 
 The following words and phrases shall have the following meaning and construction 
for purposes of this chapter. 
 A. ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERRED PURCHASES.  A manner of purchasing 
equipment, supplies, and services that results in less harm to the natural environment.  
Environmentally preferred purchases involve the purchase of equipment, supplies, and 
services in a manner that uses less harmful materials, employs recycled or recovered 
materials (where appropriate and available), and utilizes techniques intended to result in 
less impact on the environment than other available methods. 
 B. EMERGENCY PURCHASE.  A purchase made to address a situation that 
creates an immediate and serious need for equipment, supplies, or services which 
cannot be met through normal purchasing procedures and where the lack of such 
equipment, supplies, or services would seriously threaten the functioning of City 
government, the preservation of property, or the health or safety of any person. 
 C. WITHIN THE BUDGET APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  Purchases that 
fall within the annual financial budget adopted by the City Council for the Department 
against whose account the purchase will be applied.  A particular purchase need not be 



2 
 

a specific line item of the Department’s budget in order to be considered included within 
the budget approved by the City Council. 
 D. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY.  Includes, but is not limited to, all electronic 
technology systems and services, automated information handling, system design and 
analysis, conversion of data, computer programming, information storage and retrieval, 
telecommunications that include voice, video, and data communications, requisite 
system controls, simulation, electronic commerce, and all related interactions between 
people and machines. 
 E. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.  The routine, recurring, or usual work for the 
restoration or preservation of the condition of an existing facility, structure, or 
equipment, as opposed to the purchase of a new or replacement facility, structure, or 
equipment.  If a question arises as to the proper characterization of a purchase as 
maintenance and repair or a public work, the Purchasing Agent shall determine in 
writing whether the primary purpose of the purchase is to restore or preserve the 
condition of an existing facility, structure, or equipment or to obtain a new or 
replacement facility, structure, or equipment. 
 F. PERSONAL PROPERTY.  All property other than real estate, including, but not 
limited to, equipment, supplies, and materials. 
 G. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  Services that require specialty training, 
education, or experience, including, but not limited to, financial, economic, accounting, 
engineering, legal, or administrative matters. 
 H. PURCHASE.  To obtain equipment, supplies, or services in exchange for money 
or its equivalent.  For purposes of this Chapter, the term purchase shall also include the 
acquisition of equipment or supplies by lease. 
 I. PURCHASING AGENT.  The general services manager of the City of Santa 
Barbara.   J. REVERSE AUCTION.  A process where the City announces its need for 
equipment, supplies, or services on the Internet, or some other manner, and suppliers 
bid against one another in a real-time, open, and interactive bidding environment to 
supply the City with required equipment, supplies, or services. 
 K. SERVICES INVOLVING PECULIAR ABILITY.  Services that typically require 
artistic or creative skill and advanced or specialized training or experience.  For 
purposes of this Chapter, the construction trades are not services involving peculiar 
ability. 
 
4.52.030 Purchasing Agent - Duties.   
 
 The Purchasing Agent shall be under the direction, supervision, and control of the 
Director of Finance.  The Purchasing Agent shall: 
 A. Negotiate, purchase, and contract for equipment, supplies (other than library 
books and library periodicals), routine laboratory tests, nonprofessional services, or 
services not involving peculiar ability required by any office, department, or agency of 
the City in accordance with purchasing procedures prescribed by this chapter, and such 
other rules and regulations as shall be prescribed by the City Council. 
 B. Act to procure for the City the needed quality in equipment, supplies, routine 
laboratory tests, nonprofessional services, or services not involving peculiar ability at 
least expense to the City. 



3 
 

 C. Discourage uniform bidding and endeavor to obtain as full and open competition 
as possible on all purchases. 
 D. Prepare and recommend to the City Council rules governing the purchase of 
supplies, services and equipment for the City. 
 E. Stay informed of current developments in the field of purchasing, prices, market 
conditions and new products. 
 F. Prescribe and maintain such purchasing forms as are reasonably necessary to 
the operation of this chapter and other rules and regulations. 
 G. Maintain a bidders' list, vendors' catalog file and records needed for the efficient 
operation of the Purchasing Division. 
 
4.52.040 Estimates of Requirements.   
 
 All departments shall file detailed estimates of their requirements for supplies and 
equipment in such manner, at such time, and for such future periods as the Purchasing 
Agent shall prescribe. 
 
4.52.050 Contracting Authority. 
 
 A. COUNCIL AUTHORIZATION.  Pursuant to Section 518 of the City Charter, the 
City Council may, by ordinance or resolution, authorize the City Administrator or other 
officer to bind the City for the acquisition of equipment, materials, supplies, labor, 
services or other items included within the budget approved by the City Council. 
 B. EXERCISE OF AUTHORITY.  To the extent the City Council grants written 
purchasing authority to the City Administrator or another officer, the City Administrator 
or such other officer shall exercise such authority in accordance with the procedures 
specified in this Chapter or as otherwise specified in the ordinance or resolution 
granting such authority. 
 C. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY.  To the extent the City Council grants 
purchasing authority to the City Administrator, the City Administrator may delegate such 
authority to a subordinate in a manner that does not conflict with Section 518 of the City 
Charter, the provisions of any applicable City ordinance, or the provisions of the Council 
resolution or ordinance granting the purchasing authority to the City Administrator. 
 
4.52.55 Exceptions to Competitive Bidding. 
 
 The following purchases of equipment, supplies, and services are exempt from the 
competitive bidding requirements specified in Sections 4.52.060 or 4.52.070 of this 
Code to the extent such purchases are within the budget approved by the City Council.  
The City Administrator is authorized to negotiate and contract for such equipment, 
supplies, and services without complying with competitive bidding subject to the 
conditions as specified below: 
 A. Purchases of advertising services (print, television, radio, internet, etc.) upon a 
showing that the proposed services are a cost effective means of reaching the targeted 
audience. 
 B. Software license renewals where the software has been shown to have 



4 
 

continuing value to the operation of the City organization. 
 C. Housing and furniture rental for police department cadets.     
 
4.52.060 Contracts Up to $25,000.0075,000.   
 
 A. REQUISITIONS.  All departments of the City shall submit requests for 
equipment, supplies (other than library books and library periodicals), routine laboratory 
tests, nonprofessional services, or services not involving peculiar ability to the 
Purchasing Agent by standard requisition request forms. 
 B. BIDDING PROCEDURE.  Purchases of equipment, supplies (other than library 
books and library periodicals), routine laboratory tests, nonprofessional services, or 
services not involving peculiar ability, of a value of up to $25,00075,000, may be made 
by the Purchasing Agent in the open market pursuant to the bidding procedures 
described herein. 
  1. Purchases of up to $2,5007,500.  Purchases of goods or services of a value 
up to $2,5007,500 may be made without competitive bidding. 
  2. Sole Source Purchases.  Where only one source is available for the goods 
or services, the purchase may be made without competitive bidding. 
  3. Purchases over $2,5007,500 and up to $25,00075,000.  Purchases of 
goods or services of a value over $2,5007,500 and up to $25,00075,000 shall be bid in 
the following manner: 
   a. Minimum Number of Quotations.  Purchases shall whenever possible be 
based on at least three (3) quotations, and shall be awarded to the person submitting 
the lowest responsible quotation.    
   b. Notice Inviting Quotations.  The Purchasing Agent shall solicit quotations 
by written requests to prospective vendors or by telephone.   
   c. Written quotations shall be submitted to the Purchasing Agent who shall 
keep a record of all open market orders and quotes for a period of one (1) year after the 
submission of quotes or the placing of orders. 
 C. CONFIRMATION OF VERBAL QUOTATIONS.  For all purchases made 
pursuant to this section, verbal quotations over $2,5007,500 require written 
confirmation. 

D. WRITTEN CONTRACTS.  All purchases made pursuant to this section shall be 
made by purchase order or other form approved by the City Administrator and the City 
Attorney.  The Purchasing Agent is authorized to execute such contracts on behalf of 
the City. 

E. ENCUMBRANCE OF FUNDS.  Except in cases of emergency, the Purchasing 
Agent shall not issue any purchase order for equipment, supplies, or services for which 
there is an insufficient appropriation in the budgetary account against which said 
purchase is to be charged. 
 
4.52.070 Formal Contract Procedures (Purchases Greater than $25,00075,000).   
 
 Except as otherwise provided herein, purchases of supplies (other than library books 
and library periodicals), nonprofessional services, services not involving peculiar ability, 
and equipment, of a value greater than twenty-fiveseventy-five thousand dollars 



5 
 

($25,000.0075,000), shall be by written contract with the lowest responsible bidder 
pursuant to the following procedures: 
 A. REQUISITION.  All departments of the City shall submit requests for equipment, 
supplies (other than library books and library periodicals), and nonprofessional services 
or services not involving peculiar ability to the Purchasing Agent by standard City 
requisition forms. 
 B. NOTICE INVITING BIDS.  The Purchasing Agent shall issue a notice inviting 
bids that includes a general description of the articles to be purchased or the services 
sought, states where the bid forms and specifications may be secured, and announces 
the time and place for opening bids. 
  1. Published Notice.  Notices inviting bids shall be published at least ten (10) 
working days before the date of opening of bids.  Notices shall be published at least 
once in a newspaper of general circulation, published in the City of Santa Barbara. 
  2. Bidders' List.  The Purchasing Agent shall also solicit sealed bids from all 
responsible prospective suppliers whose names are on the City's bidders' list or who 
have requested their names to be added thereto. 
 C. BIDDERS' SECURITY.  When deemed necessary by the Purchasing Agent, 
bidders' security may be required.  Bidders shall be entitled to a return of bid security 
upon execution of the contract or upon the re-advertisement for bids, provided that the 
successful bidder shall forfeit his bid security upon refusal or failure to execute the 
contract within ten (10) days after notice of contract has been deposited in the United 
States mail.  The City Council may, on refusal or failure of the successful bidder to 
execute the contract, award it to the next lowest responsible bidder.  If the City Council 
awards the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder, the bidder first awarded the 
contract shall forfeit only the portion of his security which is equal to the difference 
between his bid and the bid of the next lowest responsible bidder.  If the next lowest 
responsible bidder is awarded the contract, he shall forfeit his bid security if he fails or 
refuses to execute the contract. 
 D. BID OPENING PROCEDURE.  Bids may be submitted in physical form or 
electronically, as specified in the notice inviting bids.  SealedPhysical bids shall be 
submitted to the Purchasing Agent in a sealed envelope and shall be identified as "bid" 
on the envelope.  Bids submitted electronically shall be identified as “bid” in the subject 
line of the e-mail or by other conspicuous method.  Bids shall be opened at a location 
open to the public at the time and place stated on the notice inviting bids or as may 
otherwise be announced to all bidders.  A tabulation of all bids received shall be open 
for public inspection during regular City business hours for a period of not less than 
thirty (30) calendar days after the bid opening. 
 E. REJECTION OF BIDS.  In its discretion, the City Council may reject any and all 
bids presented and re-advertise for bids pursuant to the procedure described herein.  In 
cases where the Purchasing Agent is authorized to award a contract, the Purchasing 
Agent may, in his or her discretion, reject any and all bids presented and re-advertise 
for bids pursuant to the procedure described herein. 
 F. AWARD OF CONTRACTS.  Contracts shall be awarded by the City Council to 
the lowest responsible bidder who submits a bid responsive to the specifications except 
as otherwise provided herein. 
 G. AWARD OF CONTRACTS BY PURCHASING AGENT.  The Purchasing Agent 



6 
 

is authorized to award contracts to the lowest responsible bidder when the City Council 
has approved a Departmental budget that includes funds specifically for the purchase of 
the item(s) and the amount of the award is not more than the budgeted amount. 
 H. TIE BIDS.  If two (2) or more bids received are for the same total amount or unit 
price, quality, service and delivery being equal, and if the public interest will not permit 
the delay of re-advertising for bids, the City Council may in its discretion accept the one 
(1) it chooses or accept the lowest bona fide offer made by and after negotiation with 
the bidders who were tied at the time of the bid opening. 
 I. NO BIDS RECEIVED.  If no bids are received within ten (10) days of the 
publication of the notice inviting bids or such other time specified in the notice inviting 
bids for the receipt of bids, the Purchasing Agent may either publish a new notice 
inviting bids or solicit bids without further publication. 
 J. PERFORMANCE SECURITY.  The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to 
require a performance security before entering into a contract in such amount as it shall 
find reasonably necessary to protect the best interests of the City.  If the Purchasing 
Agent requires a performance security, the form and amount of the security shall be 
described in the terms, conditions or general provisions of bid documents. 
 K. SOLE SOURCE PURCHASES.  Purchases of goods or services which can be 
obtained from only one (1) source may be made by the Purchasing Agent without 
advertising and after a determination by the City Council that the goods or services are 
only available from one source and approval of the purchase by the City Council. 
 L. BEST INTEREST WAIVER.  The City Council may authorize purchase of 
equipment, supplies (other than library books and library periodicals), and 
nonprofessional services or services not involving peculiar ability, of a value greater 
than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00), without complying with the above 
procedures when, in the opinion of the Council, compliance with the procedure is not in 
the best interest of the City. 
 M. ENCUMBRANCE OF FUNDS.  Except in cases of emergency, the Purchasing 
Agent shall not issue any purchase order for equipment, supplies, or services for which 
there is an insufficient appropriation in the budgetary account against which said 
purchase is to be charged. 
 
4.52.080 Emergency Purchases. 
 
 An emergency purchase of any equipment, supplies, or services shall be made in 
accordance with the following procedures: 
 A. DECLARATION OF NEED TO MAKE AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE.  The City 
Administrator or a City department head must declare the need to make an emergency 
purchase in writing.  The declaration shall specify the reasons why an emergency 
purchase of equipment, supplies, or services is necessary. 
 B. SCOPE OF AUTHORITY.  When the need to make an emergency purchase is 
declared, the City Administrator or the department head declaring the need to make an 
emergency purchase may purchase any equipment, supplies, or services needed to 
address the emergency.  Emergency purchases are only allowed as necessary to 
address an immediate need.  Even when normal purchasing procedures are not 
followed for reasons relating to the emergency, competitive bidding shall be used to the 



7 
 

greatest extent practicable under the circumstances. 
 C. DOCUMENTATION.  All emergency purchases shall be documented in writing. 
 D. ENCUMBRANCE OF FUNDS.  When emergency purchases are requested of 
equipment, supplies, or services for which no funds have been encumbered, the 
emergency requisition shall so state and the interested department head shall initiate a 
request for fund transfer within four (4) hours after the start of the next regular work day.  
 E. REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL.  Any time the value of emergency purchases 
made without compliance with normal purchasing procedures exceeds $25,00035,000 
in the aggregate for a single emergency, a report shall be made to the City Council 
within thirty (30) days of the declaration of the need for an emergency purchase. 
 
4.52.090 Inspection and Testing.   
 
 The Purchasing Agent may inspect supplies and equipment delivered to determine 
their conformance with the specifications set forth in the order or contract. The 
Purchasing Agent shall have authority to require chemical and physical tests of samples 
submitted with bids and samples of deliveries which are necessary to determine their 
quality and conformance with specifications. 
 
4.52.100 Central Stores.  
 
 The Purchasing Agent is responsible for the City storage control program.  Under 
direction of the Purchasing Agent, the City Stores Manager is responsible for the 
custody of and accounting for the supplies.  This includes the maintenance of a 
perpetual inventory record for each item carried in stock and making quantity checks at 
frequent intervals to verify the ledger count and value.  The City Stores Manager is to 
exercise full control and reporting of all materials received, withdrawn, or returned to 
stock. 
 
4.52.110 Maintenance Agreements.   
 
 Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 4.52.060 and 4.52.070 above, services for 
the maintenance and repair of City equipment and facilities, up to an amount 
established by Council resolution, may be purchased by the Purchasing Agent pursuant 
to the following procedures. 
 A. BIDDING.  The Purchasing Agent shall comply with the following bidding 
procedures for purchases conducted pursuant to this section:  
  1. Purchases of up to $2,500.  Purchases of a value up to $2,500 may be 
made without competitive bidding. 
  2. Sole Source Purchases.  Where only one source is available for the 
services, the purchase may be made without competitive bidding. 
  3. Purchases over $2,500.  Purchases of a value over $2,500 and up to the 
amount established by Council resolution shall be bid in the following manner: 
   a. Minimum Number of Quotations.  Purchases shall whenever possible be 
based on at least three (3) quotations, and shall be awarded to the person submitting 
the lowest responsible quotation.    



8 
 

   b. Notice Inviting Quotations.  The Purchasing Agent shall solicit quotations 
by written requests to prospective vendors or by telephone.   
   c. Written quotations shall be submitted to the Purchasing Agent who shall 
keep a record of all open market orders and quotes for a period of one (1) year after the 
submission of quotes or the placing of orders.  These records, while so kept, shall be 
open to public inspection. 
 B. CONFIRMATION OF VERBAL QUOTATIONS.  For all purchases made 
pursuant to this section, verbal quotations over $2,500 require written confirmation. 
 C. WRITTEN CONTRACTS.  All purchases made pursuant to this section shall be 
made by purchase order or other form approved by the City Administrator and the City 
Attorney.  The Purchasing Agent is authorized to execute such contracts on behalf of 
the City.  
 D. ENCUMBRANCE OF FUNDS.  Except in cases of emergency, the Purchasing 
Agent shall not issue any purchase order for equipment, supplies, or services for which 
there is an insufficient appropriation in the budgetary account against which said 
purchase is to be charged. 
 
4.52.110 Information Technology Purchases. 
 
 The City recognizes that purchasing information technology on the basis of lowest 
purchase price alone may not always serve the best interests of the City.  Therefore, the 
Purchasing Agent is hereby authorized to purchase information technology, within the 
budget approved by the City Council, on a “best value basis.” In determining the best 
value for the City, the Purchasing Agent may consider the following factors: 
 A. The purchase price or cost; 
 B, The quality of the vendor’s goods or services; 
 C. The extent to which the vendor’s goods or services meet the City’s needs; 
 D. The total long-term cost to the City of the good or service;  
 D. The reputation of the vendor and the vendor’s goods or services; 
 E. The vendor’s past relationship with the City; 
 F. The impact of the proposed purchase on the City’s ability to comply with laws 
relating to the procurement of goods or services from persons with disabilities; 
 G. The impact of the proposed purchase on the City’s ability to comply with laws 
relating to the procurement of goods or services from historically underutilized 
businesses; and 
 H. Any relevant criteria specifically listed in the request for proposals or bids. 
 
The preceding list of factors is not listed in order of priority and not all factors will be 
relevant to all purchases.  Unless the request for proposals or bids assigns a particular 
weight to one factor or another, the Purchasing Agent may assign priority of the factors 
as appropriate for the individual purchase based on the information available at the time 
of the purchase with the goal of obtaining the optimum combination of economy, quality, 
and effectiveness that is the result of fair, efficient, and practical procurement decision-
making. 
 
 



9 
 

4.52.120 Contract Splitting Prohibited.   
 
 It is unlawful to split or separate any purchase into smaller increments for the 
purpose of evading the provisions of the Charter or this Chapter requiring advertising 
and competitive bidding. 
 
4.52.130 Surplus Personal Property.   
 
 All City departments shall submit to the Purchasing Agent, at such times and in such 
forms as the Agent shall prescribe, reports showing all supplies, equipment or personal 
property of any nature which are no longer used or which have become obsolete or 
worn out.  The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to exchange or trade on new 
supplies and equipment, or to sell, all supplies and equipment which cannot be used by 
any department or which have become unsuitable for City use.  The Purchasing Agent 
shall also have the authority to make transfers between departments of any usable 
surplus supplies or equipment.  The Purchasing Agent, upon obtaining the specific 
written approval of the City Finance Director, may, without published notice of the 
intended sale or competitive bidding, sell items of surplus personal property to: 1. any 
interested party if the value of the item does not exceed $500, or 2. any governmental 
entity as long as the value of the item does not exceed $5,00010,000. 
 
 
4.52.140 Cooperative Purchasing.   
 
 A. COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENTS.  Nothing contained in this 
chapter shall prohibit the participation by the City of Santa Barbara in any voluntary 
cooperative purchasing agreement, agreements, or programs entered into between the 
City of Santa Barbara and any local, state, or federal government, or association of 
governmental agencies within the United States which is authorized by state or federal 
law or regulations. 
 B. SURROGATE BIDDING.  Nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit the 
participation by the City of Santa Barbara in a surrogate bidding process where the City 
purchases equipment, supplies, or services at the same price as a contract awarded by 
another local, state, or federal government, or association of governmental agencies 
within the United States following a competitive bidding process that substantially 
conforms to the City’s purchasing procedures. 
 C. CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE CONTRACTS AND 
LEVERAGE PROCUREMENT AGREEMENTS. Nothing contained in this chapter shall 
prohibit the participation by the City of Santa Barbara in any purchase under a California 
Multiple Award Schedule Contract or Leverage Procurement Agreement. 
 D. AUTHORITY TO ACT.  The Purchasing Agent is hereby empowered and 
authorized to act under the provisions of this chapter, to procure for the City supplies 
and equipment in conjunction with such voluntary cooperative purchasing agreement, or 
surrogate bidding process, California Multiple Award Schedule Contract, or California 
Leverage Procurement Agreement to the extent such purchases are within the budget 
approved by the City Council.  Sections 4.52.060 and 4.52.070 of this chapter shall not 



10 
 

apply to the purchase of supplies or equipment pursuant to any voluntary cooperative 
purchasing agreement, or surrogate bidding process, California Multiple Award 
Schedule Contract, or California Leverage Procurement Agreement entered into under 
the provisions of this section.  All formal contract and bidding procedures to be followed 
in such cases shall be those specifically enumerated in the voluntary cooperative 
purchasing agreement, or the surrogate bid, California Multiple Award Schedule 
Contract, or California Leverage Procurement Agreement. 
 
4.52.150 Future Expenditures.   
 
 No contract to be executed in a future fiscal year or years for purchases of goods or 
services as described in this chapter shall be valid unless appropriations for such 
purchase shall have been made in the year in which the contract was entered into. 
 
4.52.160 Public Works Contracts.   
 
 A. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CHARTER.  Bidding and advertising and award of 
contracts for public works, excluding maintenance and repair, shall be as required by 
Section 519 of the City Charter. 
 B. PREVAILING WAGES REQUIRED IN COMPLIANCE WITH SB 7.  The state 
prevailing wage law requires contractors on public works projects to be paid the general 
prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which 
the work is performed.  Under California Constitution Article XI, Section 5, the laws of 
chartered cities supersede state law with respect to municipal affairs of the city.  The 
City of Santa Barbara is a chartered city duly organized and validly existing under the 
laws of the State of California, and thus the city may exempt itself from prevailing wage 
requirements.  California Senate Bill No. 7 (“SB 7”), approved October 13, 2013, 
provides that the state has limited financial resources and resolves only to extend 
financial assistance to construction projects of those chartered cities that require 
compliance with the prevailing wage law on all their municipal construction projects.  
Effective January 1, 2015, unless the contract was advertised for bid prior to that date, 
chartered cities are additionally disqualified from receiving financial assistance under 
SB 7 if the city has awarded, within the prior two (2) years, a public works contract 
without requiring the contractor to comply with prevailing wage requirements.  Chartered 
cities that have charter provisions exempting city projects from prevailing wage 
requirements may adopt a local prevailing wage ordinance with requirements equal to 
or greater than state prevailing wage law in order to avoid disqualification. 
  For at least the last 25 years, the City has generally required prevailing wages to 
be paid on capital improvement projects.  Compliance with SB 7, however, requires the 
adoption of an ordinance and the payment  of prevailing wages beyond capital 
improvement projects to include maintenance and repair work, as described in the 
Labor Code.  Notwithstanding the City’s constitutional right to exempt locally funded 
projects from prevailing wage, the City Council finds that the City’s financial interests 
are best served by complying with California’s prevailing wage law as delineated in SB 
7. 
 C. Prevailing wages shall be paid on all public works contracts in accordance with 



11 
 

Labor Code section 1782 (SB 7). 
 D. The provisions of this ordinance do not restrict the city from receiving or using 
state funding or financial assistance awarded prior to January 1, 2015, or from receiving 
or using state funding or financial assistance to complete a contract awarded prior to 
January 1, 2015.  Further, this ordinance does not disqualify or amend any contracts 
awarded prior to January 1, 2015. 
 E. If SB 7 is, for any reason, held to be invalid or inapplicable to charter cities by 
any court of competent jurisdiction or is otherwise repealed, this ordinance shall 
automatically sunset and be of no further effect immediately thereafter. 
 
4.52.170 Library Books and Periodicals.   
 
 The City Administrator or his designee may purchase library books and library 
periodicals in accordance with the budget approved by the City Council. 
 
4.52.180 Professional Services. 
 
 The award of contracts for professional services shall comply with Section 518 of the 
City Charter or any other procedures established by ordinance or resolution of the City 
Council consistent with Charter Section 518. 
 
4.52.190 Debarment. 
 
 The City Administrator shall prepare and promulgate procedures for the 
suspension or debarment of nonresponsible bidders or contractors, and such 
procedures shall be approved by resolution of the City Council.   



Agenda Item No.  5 
File Code No.  540.06 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution To Accept A Waterline Easement And To Vacate The 

Superseded Waterline Easements At 182 And 202 La Vista Grande 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara, Accepting an Easement for a Public Waterline on a Portion of the Real 
Property Commonly Known as 202 La Vista Grande, Santa Barbara County Assessor’s 
APN 015-130-002, and Adopting an Order Summarily Vacating and Abandoning Certain 
Superseded Portions of the Existing Easement for Water Pipelines at 182 and 
202 La Vista Grande, Both Within the Limits of Said City. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached resolution is proposed for adoption by Council to accept a new public 
easement for a waterline relocated to a new alignment on the property at 202 La Vista 
Grande, owned by Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton. The resolution will also 
accomplish Council’s summary vacation of superseded portions of an easement for the 
old waterline, located on and across the real properties at 182 and 202 La Vista 
Grande. 
 
The alignment of the new waterline easement proposed for acceptance, and the 
superseded portions of the old easement proposed for summary vacation, are depicted 
on the Attachment. 
 
The City’s original waterline was constructed within a City easement, filed on July 30, 
1924 as Torrens Document No. 159, before hillside properties in that area were 
subdivided and developed. Subsequently, the lots now known as 182 and 202 La Vista 
Grande were shown on a map of the Ashley Knolls Tract, recorded in 1948, which failed 
to depict the location of the City’s existing easement. Due to the map omission of the 
City’s easement, the homes at 182 and 202 La Vista Grande were built over portions of 
the City’s waterline and within the City’s easement. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Accept A Waterline Easement And To Vacate The Superseded Waterline 
Easement At 182 And 202 La Vista Grande  
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Following discovery of the City’s old waterline by David C. Nordhahl, the owner of the 
home at 182 La Vista Grande, which was exposed during the construction of onsite 
improvements, an action (the Action) entitled David C. Nordhahl, et al., v. City of Santa 
Barbara, et al., was filed in order to initiate solutions to various issues caused by 
non-disclosure of the City’s easement by the affected owners’ respective title insurance 
companies. In particular, the issues included concern caused by the incompatible 
location of the City’s aging waterline which was located under portions of the neighbors’ 
homes, yard improvements, and hillside areas. 
 
Following mediation to consider possible resolution of the Action, an acceptable 
agreement was outlined, as set forth in a Settlement Agreement (Settlement) executed 
by the City Administrator, and by David C. Nordahl and Alexandra Nordahl, the owners 
of the property at 182 La Vista Grande, and by Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, 
the owners of 202 La Vista Grande, and their respective title insurance companies. 
Among other mediated elements, the Settlement generally provided as follows: 
 

• Design and relocation of the portion of the City’s waterline into an alignment 
located entirely on the property at 202 La Vista Grande; 

• Grant to the City by the owners of the property at 202 La Vista Grande a new 
easement for the relocated waterline; 

• Vacation and abandonment by the City of the old waterline easement upon 
completion of the project to relocate the waterline; 

• Abandonment in place of the old waterline, following standards of practice 
necessary to ensure continued safety and stability of the hillside; 

• Waiver by the City of typical charges and fees associated with the review of 
design plans by City staff; 

• Contribution of $25,000 by the City towards the costs of relocating the waterline 
to a more compatible and appropriate alignment; 

• Sharing by the owners’ respective title insurance companies of costs necessary 
to relocate the waterline; 

• Restoration of the site as part of the waterline relocation project; 
• Preparation and execution by all parties of necessary documents to establish the 

new waterline easement and to vacate the superseded portions of the old 
easement; and 

• Dismissal of the Action mentioned above.  
 
The City’s contribution of $25,000 towards the waterline relocation project has been 
paid, and the relocation project was recently completed. The adoption by Council of the 
proposed Resolution to accept the new waterline easement at 202 La Vista Grande, 
and to summarily vacate the superseded portions of the old easement affecting both 
182 and 202 La Vista Grande, will finalize the actions set forth in the Settlement. 
Following such adoption by Council of the Resolution, the Waterline Easement Deed, 
along with a copy of the resolution certified by the City Clerk, will be released to the First 
American Title Insurance Company for recordation in the Official Records of Santa 
Barbara County. 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Accept A Waterline Easement And To Vacate The Superseded Waterline 
Easement At 182 And 202 La Vista Grande  
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: Plat of New and Old Easements 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/DI/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



TRUE PORTKIN CF TORRENS DOCUMN
POINT OF No. 159. FILED JULY 30, 1924
BEGINNNC TO REMAIN.

.PN :f I I .3O-)24

<NI C
M E. cr4 EN r

Poe flON !)F TORRE.NS O0C.UMET
No. 15 RLLED JULY 30 1924
ru EVACA1ED

NORDAHL
NST. NO. 2008—24990 D.R.

APN:015—130—O0I

.&PN.Oi5— .U—O0.3

WILDE
NS Nc
7 0J: P

AP: Q 5—? 30—CO2

-I

PORIION OF T0RRNS N
DOCUMENT No. 159.

FIlED . ‘LILY 30, 1924
TO RF.MAIN.

Cç

Staitsc
IT r Eo,t icQr[, St,i,
Pho: (05) 963—93a2

1!Irj dQrbq r, CA 9j TOT
F.,x W05) 966—960 I

Eas.dwq 3CALE: 150

WATER MAIN EASEhCIT

tIN .flf S4.E}*AR1

SlATE OF CALFORNIA

W.0. 2064019539 DWD: !955Legc—Water fLU r DATE 4/3D/205

ATTACHMENT



 
1  

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FOR A PUBLIC 
WATERLINE ON A PORTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 202 LA VISTA GRANDE, SANTA 
BARBARA COUNTY ASSESSOR’S APN 015-130-002, AND 
ADOPTING AN ORDER SUMMARILY VACATING AND 
ABANDONING CERTAIN SUPERSEDED PORTIONS OF THE 
EXISTING EASEMENT FOR WATER PIPELINES AT 182 AND 
202 LA VISTA GRANDE, BOTH WITHIN THE LIMITS OF SAID CITY 

 
 
 
WHEREAS A certain new easement for a realigned public waterline and related facilities, 
hereinafter the “New Easement,” has been offered to the City of Santa Barbara, a municipal 
corporation, as described in a certain Waterline Easement Deed delivered to the City of Santa 
Barbara, by Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, husband and wife, as joint tenants, the 
owners of the real property located at 202 La Vista Grande, Santa Barbara County Assessor’s 
APN 015-130-002; 
 
WHEREAS Chapter 4 of Part 3 of Division 9 of the California Streets and Highways Code, 
hereinafter known as the “Vacation Law,” authorizes and establishes the method for the vacation 
of all or a part of any city street or public service easement; 
 
WHEREAS There is an existing perpetual right of way easement for a water main and 
incidental purposes granted by Deed by Frank M. Gallaher and Abbie R. Gallaher to the City of 
Santa Barbara, a municipal corporation, filed on July 30, 1924, as Torrens Document No. 159, in 
the office of the County Recorder of Santa Barbara County, portions of which right of way 
easement are being referred to hereinafter as the "Superseded Easement Portions", which upon 
acceptance by the Council of the City of Santa Barbara of the New Easement offered by 
Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, shall become no longer necessary for the use, operation 
and maintenance of water pipelines by the City of Santa Barbara; 
 
WHEREAS Pursuant to Section 8333, subsection c, of the Vacation Law, the City Council finds 
and declares that the Superseded Easement Portions proposed for summary vacation have been 
superseded by the relocation of the public water main within the alignment described in the New 
Easement, and there are no other public service facilities presently located within the Superseded 
Easement Portions; 
 
WHEREAS The City Council finds that, upon its acceptance of the New Easement, the 
Superseded Easement Portions should therefore be summarily vacated; and 
 
 
 



 
2  

WHEREAS Pursuant to Section 8335 of the California Streets and Highways Code, the City 
Council finds and declares: 
   (1) That the vacation of the Superseded Easement Portions is made 
under Chapter 4, Part 3, Division 9 of the Streets and Highways Code; 
   (2) That the waterline easement summarily to be vacated is the 
Superseded Easement Portions; 
   (3) That the summary vacation of the Superseded Easement Portions is 
made and is necessary for the reasons set forth above; and 
   (4) That after the date of recordation of the Waterline Easement Deed by 
Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, along with this attached resolution, the Superseded 
Easement Portions shall no longer constitute a waterline easement. 
 
   NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Santa Barbara hereby accepts that certain New Easement for a public 
waterline and all related purposes described in the Waterline Easement Deed to the City of Santa 
Barbara, a municipal corporation, by Timothy I. Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, husband and wife, 
as joint tenants, the owners of the real property located at 202 La Vista Grande, Santa Barbara 
County Assessor’s APN 015-130-002. 
 
SECTION 2. That the Superseded Easement Portions are hereby ordered summarily vacated 
and abandoned and all lands covered by any of the Superseded Easement Portions shall no 
longer be subject to public water pipeline easement purposes. 
 
SECTION 3. That the Superseded Easement Portions hereby ordered summarily to be vacated 
and abandoned are more particularly described as follows: 
 

SEGMENT ONE: 
 

Wilde Parcel 
 

All of that portion of the perpetual right of way easement in the City of Santa Barbara, 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California, for a water main and incidental purposes 
granted by Deed from Frank M. Gallaher and Abbie R. Gallaher to the City of Santa 
Barbara, a municipal corporation, filed on July 30, 1924, as Torrens Document No. 159, 
in the office of the County Recorder of Santa Barbara County (“Water Main Easement”), 
lying within the real property described in the Quitclaim Deed to Timothy I. Wilde and 
Caro E. Creighton, recorded on February 28, 1995, as Instrument No. 95-010308 of 
Official Records of said County of Santa Barbara (“Wilde Parcel”), more particularly 
described as follows: 
A strip of land ten feet in width, lying five feet on each side of the following described 
line.  
Commencing at the northwest corner of said Wilde Parcel; thence, along the north line 
of said parcel, North 85°58'00" East, a distance of 240.32 feet to its intersection with the 



 
3  

centerline of  the abovementioned Water Main Easement, said point of intersection 
being the True Point of Beginning, and the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave 
northwesterly having a radius of 300.00 feet, and a radial center which bears North 
38°55'58" West; thence, along the centerline of said Water Main Easement the following 
two courses, 
1st Westerly along said curve through a central angle of 33°11'58", an arc distance 

of 173.83 feet; thence, 
2nd South 84°43'00" West, a distance of 81.73 feet to its intersection with the 

westerly line of said Wilde Parcel.  
The sidelines of said vacation area are to be extended or shortened to terminate on the 
north and west line of said Wilde Parcel. 
Containing 2,556 square feet or 0.059 acres, more or less. 
END OF DESCRIPTION. 
 
SEGMENT TWO: 

 
Nordahl Parcel 

 
All of that portion of the perpetual right of way easement in the City of Santa Barbara, 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California, for a water main and incidental purposes 
granted by Deed from Frank M. Gallaher and Abbie R. Gallaher to the City of Santa 
Barbara, a municipal corporation, filed on July 30, 1924, as Torrens Document No. 159, 
in the office of the County Recorder of Santa Barbara County (“Water Main Easement”), 
lying within the real property described in the Interspousal Transfer Deed to David C 
Nordahl, as to an undivided eighty-seven percent (87%) interest, and Alexandra 
Nordahl, as to an undivided thirteen percent (13%) interest, as tenants in common, 
recorded on April 28, 2008, as Instrument No. 2008-0024990 of Official Records of said 
County of Santa Barbara (“Nordahl Parcel”), more particularly described as follows: 
 
A strip of land ten feet in width, lying five feet on each side of the following described 
line. 
 
Commencing at the southwest corner of said Nordahl Parcel; thence, along said south 
line, North 85°58'00" East, a distance of 240.32 feet to its intersection with the 
centerline of  the abovementioned Water Main Easement, said point of intersection 
being the True Point of Beginning, and the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave 
northwesterly having a radius of 300.00 feet, and a radial center which bears North 
38°55'58" West; thence, following along the centerline of said Water Main Easement the 
following two courses, 
 
1st Northeasterly along said curve, through a central angle of 16°27'02", an arc 

distance of 86.13 feet; thence,  
 
2nd North 34°37'00" East, a distance of 10.67 feet to its intersection with the westerly 

line of La Vista Grande, 40 feet in width as shown on the map of The Ashley 
Knolls Tract filed in Book 29, Page 42 of Records of Survey, in the office of the 



 
4  

County Recorder, of said County.  
 
The sidelines of said vacation area are to be extended or shortened to terminate on the 
south line of said Nordahl Parcel, and the west line of La Vista Grande as shown on 
said Record of Survey. 
Containing 969 square feet or 0.02 acres, more or less 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION. 

 
SECTION 4. That the City Clerk, or an assigned and authorized representative of Fidelity 
National Title Insurance Company, or an assigned and authorized representative of First 
American Title Insurance Company,  shall cause the Waterline Easement Deed by Timothy I. 
Wilde and Caro E. Creighton, together with a certified copy of this resolution accepting the New 
Easement and summarily vacating the Superseded Easement Portions, to be recorded in the 
Official Records, in the office of the County Recorder of the County of Santa Barbara. 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION 
BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OF A PROPOSITION 84 
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT SUBGRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY WATER 
AGENCY, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, SUBJECT TO 
APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY THE CITY ATTORNEY, 
REGARDING GRANT FUNDING AWARD FOR THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RECYCLED WATER ENHANCEMENT (OR 
REPLACEMENT) PROJECT 

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara (City) has participated in the development 
of an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan in response to the California 
Department of Water Resources Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
Program; 
 
  WHEREAS, Gerald E. Brown, Governor of California, proclaimed a Drought 
State of Emergency on January 17, 2014, and, on March 1, 2014, signed legislation to 
assist drought-affected communities and provide funding to better use local water 
supplies, including $472.5 million Proposition 84 IRWM funding; 
 
  WHEREAS, City of Santa Barbara Resolution No. 14-051 authorized submittal of 
an application for  2014 IRWM Drought grant funding for the City of Santa Barbara 
Recycled Water Enhancement Project;  
 
  WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara County Water Agency, on behalf of the City of 
Santa Barbara and the Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board, applied for and 
received grant funding through the State of California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) Proposition 84 Drought Grant Round for two drought relief projects, namely the 
City of Santa Barbara’s Recycled Water Enhancement Project and COMB’s Lake 
Cachuma Drought Pumping Facility Project; 

 
  WHEREAS, the DWR has approved the grant application and requires 

that the Santa Barbara County Water Agency enter a Subgrant Agreement with the the 
City which will have a term of 35 years. 

 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Charter Section 521 requires that all contracts that 

bind the City for a term longer than five (5) years be approved by ordinance, adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara. 

 

AUG 11 2015 #6 
540.13 



2 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City Council 
so finds. 
 
Section 2.   In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City of 
Santa Barbara, that a Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management Subgrant 
Agreement between the Santa Barbara County Water Agency and the City of Santa 
Barbara for the Recycled Water Enhancement Project, is hereby approved. 
 
Section 3.  The form of the Subgrant Agreement, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby 
approved, and the City of Santa Barbara Public Works Director is hereby authorized 
and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute the Subgrant 
Agreement with the Santa Barbara County Water Agency in substantially said form and 
any amendments thereto, subject to Approval as to Form by the City Attorney. 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No. 530.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Highway Safety Improvement 

Program Traffic Signal Upgrades Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Lee Wilson Electric Company, Inc., in their low bid amount 

of $1,208,570 for construction of the Highway Safety Improvement Program Traffic 
Signal Upgrades Project, Bid No. 3682; and authorize the Public Works Director 
to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $120,857 to cover any 
cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra work and 
differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for 
payment;  

B. Transfer $582,227 of available appropriations from the Streets Capital Fund to 
the Streets Grant Fund and appropriate for the use of the project; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues related to the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program grant funding by $900,000 in the Fiscal Year 2016 Streets 
Grant Fund to cover the cost of construction for the Traffic Signal Upgrades 
Project. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION 
 
The City of Santa Barbara has been awarded a $900,000 grant for the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) Traffic Signal Upgrades Project (Project) to make safety 
enhancements to 40 traffic signalized intersections in Santa Barbara. The scope varies 
by intersection, but the safety improvements generally include upgrading the size and 
mounting location of the vehicular indications (i.e. the red, yellow, and green lights) and 
installing pedestrian countdown timers at traffic signals that lack pedestrian indications. 
Some intersections will also include new streetlights, underground conduit, new 
pedestrian access ramps, painted poles, and decorative bases. No curb extensions or 
traffic signal mast arms are included in the Project. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Highway Safety Improvement Program Traffic Signal 
Upgrades Project  
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Increasing the size of the vehicular indications from 8-inch diameter to 12-inch diameter 
improves the visibility of the traffic signals, which reduces the occurrence of vehicles 
running red lights. All new traffic signals must have 12-inch diameter indications, so this 
Project will upgrade older existing traffic signals to meet the current standard. The new 
pedestrian countdown timers will let pedestrians know when to cross and how much 
time is left to complete the crossing. 
 
In addition to the Project’s safety benefits, the Project will include much needed 
maintenance to some of Santa Barbara’s oldest traffic signals, many within the 
downtown area, so they can operate reliably into the future. The maintenance efforts 
include new LED signal indications and new underground conduit and wiring. The 
condition of the underground conduit and wiring at many of Santa Barbara’s traffic 
signals is deteriorating, and will need to receive increased attention in the coming years 
to ensure reliable operations. 
 
After this Project is complete, there will be six traffic signals remaining in the downtown 
area to be outfitted with larger vehicular indications and pedestrian countdown timers. 
These intersections will each require significant rehabilitation to accommodate the new 
equipment. Staff intends to complete about one traffic signal rehabilitation per year for 
the next six years, funding permitting. 
 
The attached map shows the 40 locations included in this Project, and the locations of 
the 6 downtown signals that staff intends to upgrade in the coming years. 
 
The Highway Safety Improvement Program is a federal program administered by 
Caltrans. Other projects recently completed through this program include: 
 

• De La Vina Street at Figueroa Street intersection improvements; 
• Carrillo Street at Anacapa Street traffic signal modifications; and 
• De La Vina Street at Arrellaga Street new traffic signal. 

 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of two bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Lee Wilson Electric Company, Inc. 

Arroyo Grande, CA 
 

$1,208,570.00 

2. Taft Electric Company, Inc. 
Ventura, CA  

 

$2,136,439.70 

The low bid of $1,208,570, submitted by Lee Wilson Electric Company, Inc., is an 
acceptable bid that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid 
specifications.  



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Highway Safety Improvement Program Traffic Signal 
Upgrades Project  
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

 
The change order funding recommendation of $120,857, or ten percent, is typical for 
this type of work and size of project.  
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
Staff will notify the property owners and residents located near the Project locations of 
the construction via mailers. Prior to construction, the contractor will be responsible for 
the final notice via door hangers 72 hours prior to construction. 
 
FUNDING  
 
This Project is primarily funded by a Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
grant. The HSIP grant covers 90 percent of construction costs, up to $900,000, to be 
appropriated with this Council Agenda Report. The balance of $582,227, for 
construction and will come from a transfer of available appropriations in the Streets 
Capital Fund. Preliminary design and design costs of $97,145 for this project were spent 
out of the Streets Operating and Capital Funds in prior years. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Lee Wilson Electric 
Company, Inc. $1,208,570 $120,857 $1,329,427 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $1,329,427 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Highway Safety Improvement Program Traffic Signal 
Upgrades Project  
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

  

 

 CITY SHARE 
HSIP 

SHARE 
TOTAL 

Design (by City Staff) $80,145 $0 $80,145 
City-Supplied Equipment  17,000 0 17,000 

Subtotal $97,145 $0 $97,145 

Construction Contract   $308,570 $900,000 $1,208,570 
Construction Change Order Allowance 120,857 0 120,857 

Subtotal $429,427 $900,000 $1,329,427
 Construction Management/Inspection (by 

City Staff) $135,000 $0 $135,000 
Survey (by City Staff) 17,800 0 17,800 

Subtotal $152,800 $0 $152,800 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $679,372 $900,000 $1,579,372 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Project Location Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/LY/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



ATTACHMENT

1

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Rejected

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text
PROJECT LOCATIONS

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text

lyanez
Typewritten Text
PROJECT LOCATIONS



2



Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  550.10 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015  
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution To Postpone Proceedings To Form A New Business 

Improvement District In The Milpas Or Eastside Area 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Establishing Policy That Council Will Not Accept Petitions or Initiate Proceedings 
for the Formation of a New Business Improvement District in the Milpas or Eastside Area 
Prior to January 12, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Under the California Streets and Highway Code, the Property and Business Improvement 
District Law of 1994 allows the creation of improvement districts for the purpose of 
providing improvements and activities through the levy of an assessment on the 
businesses or real property who receive a specific benefit. The law authorizes cities to 
collect the assessment on behalf of a nonprofit entity that is under contract by the city to 
implement activities outlined by the management district plan. Specifically, state law 
allows the district to provide the following activities:  
 

• Promotion of public events which benefit businesses or real property in the 
district,  

• Furnishing of music in any public place within the district, 
• Promotion of tourism within the district, 
• Marketing and economic development, including retail retention and recruitment, 
• Providing security, sanitation, graffiti removal, street and sidewalk cleaning, and 

other municipal services supplemental to those normally provided by the 
municipality, and 

• Activities which benefit businesses and real property located in the district. 
 
On November 11, 2014, Council received a presentation from the Milpas Community 
Association on proposed plans to create an Eastside Business Improvement District. 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To PostponeProceedings To Form A New Business Improvement District In 
The Milpas Or Eastside Area 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Shortly thereafter, a management plan was released and a petition gathering effort 
began to gain support for a new business improvement district. On July 14, 2015, 
Council received a presentation from the Greater Eastside Merchants Association on a 
different plan to create a Milpas Business Improvement District.  
 
After listening to comments from both organizations and area businesses, Council 
strongly encouraged representatives of the Milpas Community Association and Greater 
Eastside Merchants Association to meet and work together to resolve differences 
between their plans. Council stated that they were not willing to accept petitions from 
either group to form a new business improvement district in the Milpas or Eastside area 
until January 2016. This would allow enough time for sufficient dialogue between both 
groups and the election of a new councilmember from the Eastside (District 1) who 
would participate in the Council discussion and review of any new proposal for the 
Eastside businesses. The attached resolution would establish a policy that Council will 
not accept petitions or initiate proceedings for a new business improvement district in 
this area prior to January 12, 2016. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ESTABLISHING A POLICY THAT 
COUNCIL WILL NOT ACCEPT PETITIONS OR INITIATE 
PROCEEDINGS FOR THE FORMATION OF A NEW 
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN THE MILPAS OR 
EASTSIDE AREA PRIOR TO JANUARY 12, 2016 

 
 
WHEREAS, under the California Streets and Highway Code, the Property and Business 
Improvement District Law of 1994 allows the creation of improvement districts for the 
purpose of providing improvements and activities through the levy of an assessment on 
the businesses or real property who receive a specific benefit;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council received a presentation on November 11, 2014 from the 
Milpas Community Association on proposed plans to create an Eastside Business 
Improvement District. A management plan was released and a petition gathering effort 
began shortly thereafter to gain support for a new business improvement district; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council received a presentation on July 14, 2015 from the Greater 
Eastside Merchants Association on proposed plans to create a Milpas Business 
Improvement District; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council encouraged the Milpas Community Association and the 
Greater Eastside Merchants Association on July 14, 2015 to work together to resolve 
differences between their respective plans for a new business improvement district; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council provided policy guidance to staff on July 14, 2015 to return 
with a formal policy for Council to postpone accepting petitions for a new business 
improvement district in the Eastside or Milpas area to January 2016; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA: 
 
The City Council will not accept petitions or initiate proceedings for the formation of a 
new business improvement district in the Milpas or Eastside area prior to January 12, 
2016 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption Of Resolution For Sole Source Authorization For The 

Secondary Process Improvements Project at El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Specification of REXA Actuators as Sole Source 
Equipment for the Secondary Process Improvement Project at El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, Pursuant to California Public Contracting Code 3400(C).  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero) processes approximately 8 
million gallons of wastewater each day.  El Estero was originally constructed in 1952; 
however, a majority of its current infrastructure was constructed in 1978 to meet the 
1972 Clean Water Act requirements. Although subsequent capital improvements have 
been completed, El Estero has longstanding issues with highly variable secondary 
effluent quality, operational inflexibility, energy inefficiency, and secondary treatment 
capacity during wet weather events. 
 
Over the past few years, Brown and Caldwell (B&C) has evaluated and developed 
recommendations to improve the secondary treatment process, prepared preliminary 
design reports, and on December 16, 2014 has most recently been awarded a contract 
for final design services for the Secondary Process Improvements Project (Project). A 
$20 million State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan has been executed and will be used to 
finance design and construction of this Project. The Project is currently scheduled to be 
competitively bid this fall, with construction scheduled to start early 2016.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Resolution For Sole Source Authorization For The Secondary Process 
Improvements Project at El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

 

As part of the final design process, B&C has identified two locations to field test 
specialized REXA actuators for suitability for future use.  These two locations are the 
secondary effluent recycle gate and secondary effluent well gate.  These two gates will 
be used to regulate flow automatically, according to process conditions, and will require 
frequent and finely tuned modulation to achieve the process appropriate flow rates.   
 
Electric actuators generally benefit from being space saving, cost saving, and 
maintenance friendly, relative to hydraulic actuators; whereas hydraulic actuators 
generally benefit from being highly accurate and highly repeatable, and can be 
designed to run continuously. The REXA actuator combines the high accuracy and 
repeatability of traditional hydraulic actuators with the compactness and ease of 
maintenance of traditional electric actuators.   
 
California Public Contracting Code, Section 3400(c), allows the awarding authority to 
call for a specific brand or trade name in contract specifications under certain 
circumstances, one of which is to field test or experiment to determine the product’s 
suitability for future use.  Therefore, staff recommends that Council find it in the City’s 
best interest to specify REXA actuators as the sole source equipment for two gate 
actuators as part of the Project for field test to determine the product’s suitability for 
future use. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE 
SPECIFICATION OF REXA ACTUATORS AS SOLE 
SOURCE EQUIPMENT FOR THE SECONDARY 
PROCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AT EL 
ESTERO WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, 
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
CONTRACTING CODE 3400(C) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara (“City”) intends to competitively bid and 
award a contract for the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvement Project (“Project”);  
 
WHEREAS, the City has two locations which require frequent and finely tuned 
gate modulation to achieve process appropriate flow rates;  
 
WHEREAS, the REXA actuators combine the high accuracy and repeatability of 
traditional hydraulic actuators with the compactness and ease of maintenance of 
traditional actuators;  
 
WHEREAS, Public Contract Code Section 3400(C) allows the awarding authority 
to call for a specific brand or trade name in the contract specifications under 
certain circumstances, one of which is to field test or experiment to determine the 
product’s suitability for future use;  
 
WHEREAS, on August 11, 2015, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 
3400(c), the Council for the City of Santa Barbara finds it in the City’s best 
interest to approve the sole source purchase of REXA actuators for the Project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The above recitals are true and correct. 
 
SECTION 2.  In accordance with the Public Contract Code Section 3400(c), the 
City finds that it is in the City’s best interest to approve the sole source 
specification of REXA actuators for the Project.  
 
SECTION 4.  The bid documents for the Project will include this Resolution and 
will state the finding the invitation for bids. 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item No.  10 
File Code No.  270.06 
 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT  

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Resolutions To Execute Documents To Collect Prepaid Mobile 

Telephony Services Surcharges And To Examine Records 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 

 
A. Authorize the City Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with the California 

Board of Equalization in Order to Receive Utility Users Taxes Imposed on 
Consumers of Prepaid Mobile Services; 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Authorizing the City Administrator and the City Attorney to Execute Certain 
Documents Required by the Board of Equalization to Collect the City’s Utility Users 
Tax on Prepaid Wireless Service; and 

C. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Authorizing the Examination of Prepaid Mobile Telephony Services 
Surcharge and Local Charge Records. 
 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Under State Law and the City’s Municipal Code, utility users taxes (UUT) are excise taxes 
imposed on consumers for the consumption of utility services, including electricity, gas, 
water, sewer, telephone, sanitation, and cable television.  In Santa Barbara, a utility 
company (or its billing agent) collects the tax through the billings it sends to utility 
customers, and remits the revenues to the City each month.   
 
Currently, UUT is collected by wireless service providers who include the charge on their 
customers’ monthly invoices. For cellular utility taxes, customers pay 5.75% of the 
customer’s telephone charges. However, customers who purchase prepaid wireless 
services usually avoid paying any UUT due to collection complications. With prepaid 
wireless, there is no contract, no monthly invoices, and the prepaid wireless services are 
usually sold by retailers, not service providers themselves. Since these transactions 
bypass the City’s local UUT, the City experiences a significant loss of revenue. 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolutions To Execute Documents To Collect Prepaid Mobile Telephony Services 
Surcharges And To Examine Records 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Additionally, traditional phone plan users are treated disparately and the burden of the 
UUT is not equally shared among all telephone users. 
 
Beginning January 1, 2016, Chapter 885, Statutes of 2014 (also known as Assembly Bill 
1717) will take effect and establishes a prepaid mobile telephony services (MTS) 
surcharge based on a percentage of the sales price of each retail transaction that occurs 
in the state for prepaid wireless service.  The law establishes a tiered rate structure, which 
results in the City’s rate of 5.75% converting to a MTS rate of 5.5%. AB 1717 will require 
California retailers and on-line sellers to collect the local UUT at the same time it collects 
sales tax on its other retail products, based on the point of sale (for retail stores in the City 
of Santa Barbara). The law requires the retail seller to remit the amounts to the California 
State Board of Equalization (BOE) who will then distribute the proceeds of the tax related 
to local UUT charges, less administrative expenses, to the City each quarter. All local 
jurisdictions must contract with the BOE in order to receive UUT imposed on customers of 
prepaid wireless phone service. 
 
The proposed resolutions will authorize the City Administrator and the City Attorney to 
execute certain documents required by the State Board of Equalization to collect the City’s 
UUT on prepaid wireless service, including authorizing the City Administrator to enter into 
an agreement with the BOE in order to receive UUT imposed on consumers of prepaid 
mobile services. The resolutions will also authorize the Finance Director or other 
designated employee/officer to examine the prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge 
and local charge records. The State Board of Equalization requires local jurisdictions to 
enter into an agreement by September 1, 2015 in order to begin collecting UUT by 
January 1, 2016.  Any agreements entered between September 1, 2015 and December 1, 
2015, will delay the start of collection until April 1, 2016. 
 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Adopting the two resolutions and entering into an agreement with the State Board of 
Equalization by September 1, 2015 in order to begin receiving UUT imposed on 
consumers of prepaid wireless services by January 1, 2016 will result in additional 
revenues for the City.  The City has estimated an increase in UUT revenues from cellular 
charges of approximately $350,000 for Fiscal Year 2016. These estimates are already 
included in the recently approved budget for Fiscal Year 2016.  
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR AND THE CITY ATTORNEY TO EXECUTE 
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS REQUIRED BY THE BOARD OF 
EQUALIZATION TO COLLECT THE CITY’S UTILITY USERS 
TAX ON PREPAID WIRELESS SERVICE 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 5471, the Telecommunications and 
Video Users’ Tax Reduction and Modernization Ordinance of the City of Santa Barbara 
and the Local Prepaid Mobile Telephony Services Collection Act, the City of Santa 
Barbara (hereinafter CITY), wishes to enter into a contract with the State Board of 
Equalization, hereafter referred to as the BOARD, to perform all functions incident to the 
administration and collection of the prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and 
local charges (Rev. & Tax. Code, § 42101.5) effective January 1, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the BOARD requires that CITY:  Enter into a contract with the 
BOARD by September 1, 2015; certify the CITY’S UUT ordinance, its rate and 
applicability; and adopt a resolution authorizing certain persons access to confidential 
information of the BOARD that is reasonably available to the Board regarding the proper 
collection and remittance of a local charge of the CITY. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to sign on behalf of the City a 
contract with the BOARD, as approved as to form by the City Attorney, including any 
other related documents required by the BOARD to perform all functions incident to the 
administration and collection of the prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and 
local charges.  (Rev. & Tax. Code, § 42101.5.) 

SECTION 2. The City Attorney is hereby authorized to sign on behalf of the City a 
certification required by the BOARD certifying certain information regarding the CITY’s 
utility users tax ordinance, the applicable rate, and that it applies to all wireless 
telecommunication services, including prepaid wireless. 

 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE 
EXAMINATION OF PREPAID MOBILE TELEPHONY 
SERVICES SURCHARGE AND LOCAL CHARGE 
RECORDS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 5471 of the City of Santa Barbara and 
the Local Prepaid Mobile Telephony Services Collection Act, the City of Santa 
Barbara, hereinafter called Local Jurisdiction, entered into a contract with the 
State Board of Equalization, hereafter referred to as the Board, to perform all 
functions incident to the administration and collection of the prepaid mobile 
telephony services surcharge and local charges (Rev. & Tax Code, § 42101.5); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Jurisdiction deems it desirable and necessary for 
authorized representatives of the Local Jurisdiction to examine confidential 
prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and local charge records pertaining 
to the prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and local charges collected 
by the Board for the Local Jurisdiction pursuant to that contract; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board will make available to the Local Jurisdiction any 
information that is reasonably available to the Board regarding the proper 
collection and remittance of a local charge of the Local Jurisdiction by a seller, 
including a direct seller, subject to the confidentiality requirements of Sections 
7284.6, 7284.7 and 19542 of the Revenue and Taxation Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 42110 and 42103 of the Revenue and Taxation Code sets 
forth certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of Board of 
Equalization records and establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful 
disclosure of information contained in or derived from the prepaid mobile 
telephony services surcharge and local charge records of the Board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That the Finance Director or other officer or employee of the Local 
Jurisdiction designated in writing by the City Administrator to the Board is hereby 
appointed to represent the Local Jurisdiction with authority to examine prepaid 
mobile telephony services surcharge and local charge records of the Board 
pertaining to prepaid mobile telephony service surcharge and local charges 
collected for the Local Jurisdiction by the Board pursuant to the contract between 
the Local Jurisdiction and the Board.  The information obtained by examination of 
Board records shall be used only for purposes related to the collection of the 
Local Jurisdiction’s prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and local 
charges by the Board pursuant to the contract. 



2 

 
Section 2.  That the Finance Director or other officer or employee of the Local 
Jurisdiction designated in writing by the City Administrator to the Board is hereby 
appointed to represent the Local Jurisdiction with authority to examine those 
prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and local charge records of the 
Board for purposes related to the following governmental functions of the Local 
Jurisdiction: 
 

a) Compliance and enforcement of the City’s Telecommunications and 
Video Users’ Tax Reduction and Modernization Ordinance (local charge);  

b) Administrative functions set out in the City’s Telecommunications and 
Video Users’ Tax Reduction and Modernization Ordinance; 
 
c) Legal interpretation and enforcement of utility users tax ordinance, 
including but not limited to refunds and defense of claims against 
ordinance.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the information obtained by examination of 
the Board records shall only be used for purposes related to the collection of the 
Local Jurisdiction’s prepaid mobile telephony services surcharge and local 
charges by the Board pursuant to the contract between the Local Jurisdiction, as 
identified above in Section 2. 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No. 530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, 

News Racks 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council introduce and subsequently, adopt by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 5.66 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code to Establish News Rack Regulations. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The News Rack Ordinance is being amended to respond to public complaints about the 
condition of some of the news racks in the City, to fund inspections and compliance, and to 
simplify the permit submittal requirements for news rack owners. The long standing news 
rack maintenance requirements of the original ordinance remain, for the most part, 
unchanged. The amendments, as discussed in more detail below, will enhance public 
safety and create a more unified appearance of the news racks through an annual 
inspection and registration program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
For many years, City staff has received complaints about the condition of the news racks 
in the City. In past years, Staff responded to the complaints on a case-by-case basis with 
some success. More recently, however, the number of complaints has increased. In 
response to the rise in complaints, in the spring of 2014, using new inventory and tracking 
software, City Staff did an inventory and inspection of all news racks existing in the City.  
Through this inspection, staff located and photographed 770 news racks. The inventory 
revealed that many news racks were in poor condition, and in some cases may have 
posed a potential danger to the public.   
 
After the inspection and inventory, Staff initiated a public outreach process with the news 
rack owners and the publishers who fill them in an effort to gain voluntary compliance with 
the maintenance standards set forth in the existing ordinance. Some of the news racks 
were never claimed and the City was forced to remove them at the City’s own cost. Based 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, News Racks  
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

on the increase in complaints, and the condition of the news racks discovered during the 
initial inventory and inspection, it has become clear that an annual inspection and 
registration program is necessary to ensure compliance with the City’s maintenance 
requirements. 
 
The existing ordinance does not presently provide for annual registration and inspection of 
the news racks, or account for the costs associated with implementing an inspection 
program. The proposed ordinance amendment will require that news rack owners register 
their racks annually and take a more proactive approach in maintaining the racks. The 
proposed nominal registration fee is intended to cover the cost necessary to process the 
registration paper work and perform an annual inspection of the news racks. The annual 
registration fee will never exceed the actual cost to administer the news rack inspection 
program and (at the request of the news rack owners) limits any annual fee increase to the 
CPI adjustment for that year. 
 
The new field inventory software purchased by the City provides detailed information of 
each news rack’s field conditions and allows the City to quickly identify each 
corresponding owner, resulting in effective and efficient management of the proposed 
news rack inspection program.    
 
PUBLIC MEETINGS  
 
Since June 2014 Staff has been meeting with publishers, news rack owners, and other 
interested parties to discuss proposed amendments to the current news rack ordinance. 
There have been eight working meetings and six public (noticed) meetings.   
 
On April 27, 2015 Staff met with the Architectural Board of Review (ABR), and on May 6, 
2015, staff met with the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) regarding the maintenance 
standards of citywide news racks (see Attachment 1). At both meetings, the ABR and HLC 
approved the proposed news rack styles and colors (Attachment 2). These approvals were 
incorporated into the maintenance requirements of the proposed draft Ordinance 
amending Chapter 5.66, of the Municipal Code.  
 
ORDINANCE CHANGES 
 
The proposed fundamental changes to the Ordinance include: 
 

• Annual registration that will ensure that those news racks meeting the maintenance 
requirements are identified and repaired; 

• Annual registration fees to provide cost recovery of an initial permitting process and 
an annual inspection;  

• A method to determine how space in any newly installed City owned news rack 
cabinets will be assigned, specifically in the Downtown corridor and La Entrada 
areas; 

• More explicit aesthetic standards that will eventually lead to a more uniform 
appearance of the rack as existing news racks are cycled out due to maintenance 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, News Racks  
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 

 

or other purposes (i.e. newly installed news racks will be painted Malaga green, as 
opposed to the existing ordinance provision that allows for brown or green news 
racks, and all future news racks that are installed will be the same general model); 
and 

• Reorganization of the ordinance to make it easier to understand by the public and 
news rack owners. 

 
On June 30, 2015, staff made a presentation to the Ordinance Committee recommending 
approval of amending Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, relating to the permitting and 
maintenance of news racks existing on public property within the City. During the meeting 
at public comment, representatives of the Santa Barbara News-Press (News-Press) and 
Santa Barbara Independent (Independent) expressed concern over the proposed 
ordinance language specifically with respect to permitting fees; the lack of clarity as to 
whether or not the prohibition against advertising on news racks included advertising to 
promote the publications contained within the news rack; the impact to existing news racks 
affixed to shared pedestals that may be removed during the initial permitting 
implementation period; the lack of a person other than the Public Works Director to hear 
appeals regarding the removal of a news rack; and the possible lack of consistency within 
the Ordinance with regard to the definition of “obscene” material. The Ordinance 
Committee recommended that staff, in conjunction with the City Attorney, meet with 
stakeholders from the News-Press and the Independent to discuss possible revisions to 
the Ordinance to address the concerns articulated at the meeting. The Ordinance 
Committee directed staff to put the matter back on the agenda within two weeks, or as 
soon as possible, for subsequent discussion and further review.  
 
On July 6, 2015, City Staff, with the City Attorney, met with the stakeholders from the 
News-Press and the Independent. The parties discussed all of the concerns raised at the 
June 30, 2015, Committee meeting, including the scope of the language requiring news 
rack owners to maintain insurance and naming the City as additional insured during the 
term of the permit. The City Attorney agreed to make certain revisions to the existing 
Ordinance language to address their concerns. Specifically, in part, the City Attorney 
revised the language in the ordinance to provide for greater clarification with respect to 
registration fees, the definition of “obscenity”, and the application of the new maintenance 
standards to existing news racks. The City Attorney further revised the language to provide 
for a person other than the Public Works Director to hear appeals pertaining to the removal 
of news racks and set a limit on the insurance requirements at one million dollars. 
 
On July 10, 2015, a draft containing the City Attorney’s revisions to the originally proposed 
Ordinance, was emailed to the news rack stakeholders. City Staff returned to the 
Ordinance Committee on July 28, 2015. Staff advised the committee members of the 
changes that were made to the ordinance in order to address the concerns expressed by 
the Independent and the News-Press at the June 30th Ordinance Committee meeting. 
After hearing the presentation by staff, the Ordinance Committee moved 2/1 to bring the 
proposed amended ordinance to the City Council for approval. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, News Racks  
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 

 

 
ADOPTION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AMENDED ORDINANCE 
 
Once the amended ordinance is adopted by City Council and becomes effective, news 
rack owners will have 30 days to submit for their news rack registration. Registered news 
racks owners are to achieve compliance with the ordinance conditions and maintenance 
standards (except for existing news racks, which will not have to meet the color and model 
specifications until the existing rack is past its useful life and requires replacement), pay an 
annual fee, and obtain a permit within 90 days of registration. News rack owners with more 
than 30 news racks may request approval from the City for an implementation plan that 
may take longer than 90 days, however, compliance of all news racks is anticipated before 
July 1, 2016. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Currently, no City funds are budgeted for news rack inspection and management. Staff 
has proposed new news rack fees to replace the current fee structure. The current fees 
are for a one time application and then subsequent annual registration renewal. All existing 
news racks will have their application fee waived. Further, the proposed fee pertaining to 
City-owned cabinets in the Downtown corridor will also cover the anticipated cost of 
maintaining the cabinets.   
 
The proposed fees in the amended ordinance would be limited to cost recovery of staff 
time to process permit applications  and manage, annually inspect, and enforce the 
proposed news rack maintenance requirements. Any future fee increase would also be 
limited to the increase in the CPI adjustment for the current year, which could potentially 
restrict Council in the future from increasing fees to a rate that would actually cover staff’s 
costs for managing and inspecting the news racks.  
 
The current news rack fees were presented to the Finance Committee on May 5, 2015, for 
their review and comments. The Finance Committee agreed with the fees. In summary, 
the annual registration fees are $13 for privately owned news racks, $18 for news racks in 
City owned cabinets, and an initial application fee of $236 (which is waived for currently 
existing news racks.) The current fees, which were approved by Council by Resolution 15-
053 on June 24, 2015, are shown on Attachment 3.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Excerpts from ABR and HLC Meeting Minutes 
 2. ABR/HLC Approved News Rack Styles 
 3. News Rack Fees 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/TS/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ARCHITECTURAL  BOARD  OF  REVIEW 
MINUTES 

 
Monday, April 27, 2015 David Gebhard Public Meeting Room:  630 Garden Street  3:00 P.M. 
BOARD MEMBERS:  KIRK GRADIN – CHAIR (Consent Agenda Representative) 

SCOTT HOPKINS – VICE-CHAIR 
THIEP CUNG 
COURTNEY JANE MILLER (Consent Agenda Landscape Representative) 

STEPHANIE POOLE (Consent Agenda Representative) 
AMY FITZGERALD TRIPP 
WM. HOWARD WITTAUSCH 

 
CITY COUNCIL LIAISON: DALE FRANCISCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON: JOHN CAMPANELLA 
PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON (Alternate): SHEILA LODGE 
 
STAFF: JAIME LIMÓN, Design Review Supervisor 
  SUSAN GANTZ, Planning Technician 
  KATHLEEN GOO, Commission Secretary  
  Website:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 
An archived video copy of this regular meeting of the Architectural Board of Review is viewable on computers with high 
speed internet access on the City website at www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/ABRVideos. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

The Full Board meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Gradin. 

ATTENDANCE: 

Members present: Gradin, Cung (until 7:16 p.m.), Hopkins, Miller, Poole (until 5:45 p.m.), Tripp and Wittausch. 
Members absent: None. 
Staff present:   Gantz and Goo. 

GENERAL BUSINESS: 

A. Public Comment: 

No public comment. 

B. Approval of Minutes: 

Motion: Approval of the minutes of the Architectural Board of Review meeting of April 13, 2015, as 
amended. 

Action: Wittausch/Miller, 5/0/2.  Motion carried. (Gradin/Cung abstained, and Miller abstained from Item 1). 

C. Consent Calendars: 

Motion: Ratify the Consent Calendar of April 20, 2015.  The Consent Calendar was reviewed by Amy 
Fitzgerald Tripp. 

Action:  Hopkins/Tripp, 6/0/1. Motion carried.  (Gradin abstained). 

Motion: Ratify the Consent Calendar of April 27, 2015.  The Consent Calendar was reviewed by Kirk 
Gradin and Courtney Jane Miller. 

Action:  Hopkins/Miller, 7/0/0. Motion carried. 

ATTACHMENT 1

1

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/ABRVideos


D. Announcements, requests by applicants for continuances and withdrawals, future agenda items, and appeals. 

1) Ms. Gantz made the following announcements: 
a) Board Member Tripp will be stepping down on Items 6 and 7 at 401 E. Haley Street and 412 E. 

Haley Street, respectively; 
b) Board Member Miller will be stepping down on Item 2 at 110 S. Hope Avenue; and 
c) Board Member Poole will attend the meeting from 3:00 p.m. – 5:45 p.m. 

E. Subcommittee Reports. 

No reports were made. 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW - CONTINUED ITEM 
 
1. CITYWIDE NEWS RACKS ROW Zone 
 (3:15) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 000-000-0RW 
  Application Number:  MST2014-00599 
 Owner:   City of Santa Barbara 

(Proposal to update the City's News Rack Ordinance in order to provide more effective news rack 
management and maintenance.) 
 
(Second Concept Review.  Action may be taken if sufficient information is provided.  Project was 
last reviewed on February 2, 2015.) 
 
Actual time: 3:09 p.m. 
 
Present: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer. 
 
Public comment opened at 3:27 p.m. 
 
1) Elizabeth Wright, expressed support with submitted personal suggestions as a self-appointed 

“community liaison”. 
2) Joe Cole, Agent for the SB Independent, expressed support as an independent distributor 

representative. 
 
Public comment closed at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Board comments: 
1) No advertizing would be allowed on the new rack boxes or pedestals. 
2) A majority of the Board is in support of clean, simple, and uniform smaller size new racks with a 

minimalistic design (#KJ-50E). 
3) If multiple rack boxes are used, a majority of the Board was in favor of smaller size boxes on a 

common rack, and positioned as close together as possible. 
4) Standardize and minimize the size of the newspaper and magazine logos and contact information as 

much as possible, to be placed only on the front centered bottom portion of the boxes so as not to be 
seem from the street. 

5) A majority of the Board found supportable an overall Malaga green color, including support post. 
 
 

2



 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, May 6, 2015 David Gebhard Public Meeting Room:  630 Garden Street 1:30 P.M. 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS: PHILIP SUDING, Chair 

BARRY WINICK, Vice-Chair 

MICHAEL DRURY 

WILLIAM LA VOIE 

BILL MAHAN 

FERMINA MURRAY 

JUDY ORÍAS 

CRAIG SHALLANBERGER 

JULIO JUAN VEYNA 
 

ADVISORY MEMBER: DR. MICHAEL GLASSOW 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON: DALE FRANCISCO 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON: SHEILA LODGE 
 

STAFF: JAIME LIMÓN, Design Review Supervisor / Historic Preservation Supervisor 

  NICOLE HERNÁNDEZ, Urban Historian 

  JOANNA KAUFMAN, Planning Technician 

  GABRIELA FELICIANO, Commission Secretary 

  Website:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov  
 

An archived video copy of this regular meeting of the Historic Landmarks Commission is viewable on computers 

with high speed internet access on the City website at www.santabarbaraca.gov/hlc and then clicking on the 

Videos under Explore. 

 

CALL TO ORDER. 

The Full Commission meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by Chair Suding. 

ATTENDANCE: 

Members present: Drury, La Voie, Mahan, Orías, Shallanberger, Suding, and Winick. 

Members absent: Murray and Veyna. 

Staff present: Limón (until 2:25p.m. and again at 3:08 p.m. until 3:25 p.m.), Hernández (until 6:25 p.m.), 

Kaufman, and Feliciano. 

 

GENERAL BUSINESS: 
 

A. Public Comment: 

 

No public comment. 

 

 

3

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/hlc


HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MINUTES May 6, 2015 Page 10 
 

Motion: Continued to the Planning Commission with comments: 

Proposal: 

1. The project as proposed is not acceptable. 

2. The thoroughness of the AUD and solar presentation is appreciated. 

Setbacks: 

3. The proposed setbacks from the street are appropriate and extremely important, but 

they are too narrow. 

4. The side and rear setbacks from the historic resource are not appropriate for this site. 

Size, bulk and scale: 

5. The size, bulk and scale are not appropriate for this site. 

6. The proposed height is not compatible with the surrounding neighborhood with its 

one and two story buildings.  The Commission finds the fourth story is unsupportable. 

7. The massing needs to be reduced. 

8. The density of the proposed number of units should be appropriate to the site, 

neighborhood, and adjacent historic resources not withstanding what the AUD would 

allow.  The AUD should be appropriately applied to this site and the neighborhood. 

Architecture/Design: 

9. The design is too contemporary and should be restudied. 

10. The architecture should be compatible with the historic context.  The project should 

respect the adjacent historic resources and should be compatible with the 

neighborhood. 

11. Restudy the courtyard concept.  Look to the historic El Paseo’s courtyard for 

inspiration. 

12. The north elevation should be treated as a primary elevation and not as a back-of-

house.  It is viewed from a significant historic resource and is adjacent to Anacapa 

School which is diminutive in scale. 

Landscaping: 

13. The loss of landscaping is of concern.  Significant trees on the site should be retained.  

Landscaping should be used to tie the project into the neighborhood. 

Mixed-Use: 

14. The multi-use aspect, especially the commercial component, should take into 

consideration the amenities of the neighborhood and the project, and the needs of 

future residents. 

Action: Winick/Drury, 7/0/0.  (Murray/Veyna absent.)  Motion carried. 

 

** THE COMMISSION RECESSED FROM 5:40 PM TO 5:47 PM ** 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW - CONTINUED 

 

7. CITYWIDE NEWS RACKS ROW Zone 

(5:00) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 000-000-0RW 

 Application Number:  MST2014-00599 

 Owner:   City of Santa Barbara 

(Proposal to update the city's news rack ordinance in order to provide more effective news rack 

management and maintenance.) 
 

(Second Concept Review; action can be taken if sufficient information is provided.  Project last 

reviewed on February 11, 2015.) 

 

Actual time: 5:47 p.m. 

4



HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MINUTES May 6, 2015 Page 11 
 

 

Present: John Ewasiuk, Principal Engineer 

 

Public comment opened at 5:57 p.m. 
 

Elizabeth Wright, local community liaison, spoke in support of the project and requested consistency.  

She also asked that there be less news racks in front of the main post office downtown.  She urged the 

public to report graffiti on news racks to the graffiti hotline. 
 

Mike Park, Santa Barbara News-Press representative, spoke in support of the project and expressed 

appreciation for the collaboration between staff and news rack owners. 
 

Scott Kaufman, Santa Barbara Independent representative, spoke in support of the project and expressed 

appreciation for staff’s efforts to offer newspapers in an attractive way. 
 

Public comment closed at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Motion: Project Design Approval with recommendations to the Ordinance Committee in the 

process of updating the city’s news rack ordinance: 

1. Malaga green shall be used for the news rack boxes and pedestals in El Pueblo Viejo 

Landmark District. 

2. Double periodical racks shall be consolidated as well as the single racks. 

3. New installations shall be placed inside the sidewalk and/or near a wall rather than on 

the curb. 

4. The smaller bases shall be less obtrusive. 

Action: Mahan/Drury, 7/0/0.  (Murray/Veyna absent.)  Motion carried. 

 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW – CONTINUED / HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT 
 

8. 713 SANTA BARBARA ST C-2 Zone 

(5:20) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 031-081-007 

 Application Number:  MST2014-00390 

 Owner:   Santa Barbara Historical Society 

 Architect:   Richard Redmond 

(This is a revised project description. Proposal to install a new air-conditioning compressor unit on a 

concrete base adjacent to the northeastern corner of the Historic Adobe at the Santa Barbara Historical 

Museum.  No changes are proposed to the existing Covarrubias Adobe or the Santa Barbara Historical 

Museum buildings.  Both the Historic Adobe (1825) and the Covarrubias Adobe (1830) are City and 

State Designated Historic Landmarks.  The Santa Barbara Historical Museum is on the City's List of 

Potential Historic Resources.) 
 

a) (Historic Structures/Sites Report prepared by Alex Cole.  Report concludes the project would 

have a less than significant impact on the significant historic resource.) 

 

Actual time: 6:17 p.m. and again at 6:23 p.m. 

 

Present: Alex Cole, Historical Consultant 

  Richard Redmond, Architect 

  Warren Miller, Santa Barbara Historical Society 

 

5



RECOMMENDED STYLES 

 

 

 

 

 

                         K-JACK Model KJ-125T 

 

 

INSERTED INTO CITY NEWS RACK CABINETS & ON PEDESTALS 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

sking
Text Box
ABR/HLC Approved News Rack Styles  

sking
Rectangle



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 
E. News Racks (SBMC 5.66) 
 
Registration (1 to 10 racks)        $18.54/box 
Registration (over 10 racks)        $8.76/box 
Annual fee          $13/box 
Annual fee for news racks in City cabinets (in addition to the annual fee)  $18/box 
Application fee for a new news rack       $236 
 
 



 1 8/6/2015 

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT (8/11/15) 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 5.66 OF THE SANTA 
BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE TO ESTABLISH NEWS RACK 
REGULATIONS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amending Chapter 5.66 of the Municipal Code in its entirety at follows: 
 
5.66.010 Purpose and Legislative Findings 
 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to promote the public health, safety, and 

welfare by establishing objective standards for locating news racks through the 
regulation of location, appearance, size, and maintenance of news racks on City 
rights-of-way in order to: 
1. Protect the right to distribute information, protected by the United States 

and California Constitutions, through the use of news racks. 
2. Provide for pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience. 
3. Minimize interference with the flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, 

including but not limited to ingress into or egress from any place of 
business or residence, from the street to the sidewalk or from parked 
vehicles to the sidewalk, by establishing objective standards for locating 
news racks. 

4. Provide reasonable access for the use and maintenance of sidewalks, 
poles, posts, traffic signs and signals, hydrants, mailboxes, and similar 
appurtenances, and access to locations used for public transportation 
purposes. 

5. Reduce visual blight on City streets, promote tourism, encourage well-
designed and aesthetically compatible news racks, and protect the 
aesthetics and value of surrounding properties. 

B. Legislative Findings. The City Council finds that, with the exception of those 
regulations governing the display of harmful matter, the time, place and manner 
restrictions established by this chapter are content-neutral, narrowly tailored to 
serve significant government interests, and leave open ample alternative 
channels of communication in that: 
1. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations 

established in this chapter apply regardless of the content of the 
publication. 

2. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations 
established in this chapter serve a substantial government interest by 
protecting the aesthetic appearance of the City, avoiding visual clutter, 



 2 8/6/2015 

assuring safe and convenient pedestrian circulation, helping to promote 
tourism and economic vitality, and preventing dangerous installations of 
news racks. 

3. The number, size, construction, placement and appearance of news racks 
can have a significantly adverse visual impact in designated Landmarks 
District like El Pueblo Viejo and other aesthetically sensitive areas. 

4. The Downtown Plaza has become very congested, with street furniture 
and other sidewalk encroachments, automobiles, and other means of 
travel competing with pedestrians for the public space; and that special 
standards for the design and location of news racks, in conjunction with a 
program for the furnishing and installation of uniform street furniture, and 
the enforcement of existing regulations for other encroachments in the 
downtown commercial area, will help to create a sense of order and 
provide a friendly environment for those who come to the area. The 
Downtown Plaza is both crucial and unique for the City because it is the 
congregating point for most tourism and establishes the basic character of 
the City.  

5. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations 
established in this chapter for the Downtown Plaza leaves open ample 
alternative channels of communication in that only a small fraction of the 
City is subject to the required use of City owned and maintained modular 
news rack cabinets, and hundreds, if not thousands, of locations remain 
available in the City for the installation of privately owned and maintained 
news racks. 

6. With respect to the display of harmful matter, there is a compelling 
government interest in protecting the welfare of minors by preventing 
access to materials deemed obscene as to minors, as defined in Section 
313 of the Penal Code, and that the use of blinder racks is a narrowly 
tailored solution to serve this interest. 

7. Annual permit renewal fees for news racks located in City owned modular 
cabinets within the Downtown Plaza will be higher than registration fees 
for independently owned and maintained news racks due to depreciation 
of the condominiums and maintenance during the useful life of the 
modular cabinets. 

 
5.66.020 Organization of this Chapter. 
 
 This chapter establishes the sole regulations governing the placement and 
maintenance of news racks within the City on public property. This chapter establishes 
application and permit requirements including location, appearance, size, and 
maintenance standards for all news racks in the City. In addition, this chapter 
establishes special time, place and manner regulations for the Downtown Plaza where 
City owned and maintained modular news rack cabinets have been installed. In the 
Downtown Plaza, freestanding private news racks are not permitted. This chapter also 
establishes regulations governing the display of harmful matter in news racks. Finally, 
this chapter establishes definitions of the significant terms it uses.  



 3 8/6/2015 

 
5.66.030 Definitions 
 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined 
and shall be given the meaning set out in this section unless it is apparent from the 
context that a different meaning is intended:  
A. ABANDONED NEWS RACK.  Any news rack which remains empty for fourteen 
(14) consecutive days.  A news rack or news rack unit within a City owned modular 
cabinet without a permit or expired permit. Notwithstanding the forgoing, a news rack 
remaining empty due to labor strike or any temporary and extraordinary interruption of 
distribution or publication by the newspaper or other publication sold or distributed from 
that news rack shall not be deemed abandoned. 
B. BEACHFRONT AREA.  Cabrillo Boulevard/Shoreline Drive between the easterly 
end of Shoreline Park and the intersection of Cabrillo Boulevard and Channel Drive. 
C. CITY INVENTORY.  The record of approved applications, permits and field 
inventory data that may be established and updated from time to time by the City, and 
which shall be available on the City’s website. 
D. DOWNTOWN PLAZA.  State Street and within 200 feet of State Street between 
its intersection with Cabrillo Boulevard and Victoria Street, and all publicly owned or 
controlled paseos or walkways which connect with State Street between Cabrillo 
Boulevard and Victoria Street.  
E. FEES.  Annual permit fee for each news rack and the additional fee for news 
racks in the City modular news rack cabinets shall be established by Council resolution 
in an amount not to exceed the actual costs of the news rack program including 
permitting, inspection, and administration.  This fee may be adjusted annually for 
inflation by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumer 
(CPI-U) of the Los Angeles – Riverside – Orange County, CA as published by the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, commencing on July 1, 2016.  Indexing shall be considered 
as part of the annual fee resolution update.  A copy of the current fee resolution will be 
available on the City’s website. 
F. EXISTING NEWS RACK. Any news rack located within the City, including news 
racks located within City modular cabinets in the Downtown Plaza, prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, which has been verified by the City Inventory as of the effective 
date of this Ordinance. 
G. LANDMARKS DISTRICT.  A district established pursuant to Chapter 22.22 of 
the Code.  
H. NEWS RACK.  Any self-service or coin-operated box, container, storage unit or 
other dispenser, installed, used or maintained for the display, distribution or sale of any 
written or printed material, including but not limited to, newspapers, news periodicals, 
magazines, books, pictures, photographs, advertising circulars, and records (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as "news rack material").  
I. OWNER.  The person or representative of a business with a current City 
Business License duly responsible for news rack ownership, application submittal, 
application requirements, placement, maintenance, removal, payment of fees and 
signatory of the permit for a news rack in a right of way.  Owner may also be referred to 
as person, applicant, distributor, publisher or vendor. 



 4 8/6/2015 

J. PARKWAY.  The area between the sidewalk and the curb of a street and, where 
there is no sidewalk, the area between the edge of the roadway and the nearest right of 
way boundary line and any area within a roadway not used for vehicular traffic.  
K. PERSON.  An individual, corporation, business entity, or association, and their 
principals, officers, agents or employees. 
L. PUBLIC PROPERTY.  Public property refers to all improved or unimproved real 
property owned, maintained, or leased by a public agency or governmental entity. 
M. PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.  The Director of the City Public Works 
Department or his or her designee. 
N. RIGHT OF WAY.  Any public property under the ownership and control of the 
City and used for public street and related purposes. 
O. ROADWAY. The portion of a right of way designed and used for vehicular traffic. 
P. SHARED PEDESTAL.  The foundation, columns, and rack assembly used for 

attachment of multiple news rack units and maintained by designated owner 
according to the annual permit.  

Q. SIDEWALK.  Any public surface provided for the use of pedestrians. 
R. STREET.  That area dedicated to public use for public street purposes and shall 

include, but not be limited to, roadways, parkways, alleys, and sidewalks. 
 
5.66.040 Permit Required 

 
It is unlawful for any person to install, place or maintain a news rack on or 

projecting onto public property, roadways, streets, sidewalks, or right of way unless and 
until a news rack has been registered and an annual permit has been obtained from the 
Public Works Director. No other City permit shall be required.  
 
5.66.050 Application, Registration and Standards for Permit Issuance. 
 

A. Submittal of Applications.  Applications for news rack permits shall be 
made to the Public Works Director on forms established by the City with payment of an 
annual permit application fee.  Applications that are on file with the City that have 
current information may be used for permit of subsequent annual permits. 

1. Proposed New Installation or Relocation of News Rack. An application 
shall be approved and permit granted if the application proposes a new 
installation or relocation of a news rack in conformance with all requirements of 
this chapter. An application that proposes new installation of a news rack not in 
conformance with all requirements of this chapter shall be denied and no permit 
issued. 
2. Existing News Rack with Current Permit.  Existing news racks with 
evidence of an existing permit are subject to submittal of an application and 
annual permit fee.  
3.  Existing News Rack without Current Permit.  News racks located 
within the City prior to enactment of this Ordinance, which have been verified by 
the current City Inventory, without evidence of a current permit will be required to 
submit an application and obtain an annual permit pursuant to subparagraph B, 
below.  Existing news racks that are affixed to a shared pedestal as of the 



 5 8/6/2015 

effective date of this ordinance, but are relocated to an adjacent area on a 
standalone mount during the initial application process set forth in subparagraph 
B below, shall be considered existing news racks for the purpose of this section. 
4. Existing New Racks in City Modular Cabinets in the Downtown Plaza.   
News Racks in the City Modular Cabinets in the Downtown Plaza prior to 
enactment of this Ordinance, which have been verified by the City Inventory upon 
the effective date of this Ordinance may continue to remain in use in the same 
location by the same owner and publication if an application is submitted and 
approved.   
5. Existing City Modular Cabinets that Become Available in the 
Downtown Plaza After the Effective Date of the Ordinance.  With respect to 
permits for news racks located in City owned modular cabinets that become 
available due to abandonment, applications submitted shall be approved for that 
specific location on a first-come, first-served basis.   
6. New City Modular Cabinet Spaces for News Racks Located within the 
City Downtown Plaza.  With respect to permits for news racks that are newly 
installed by the City in the Downtown Plaza, an initial implementation period shall 
take place, at which time the City shall accept permit applications for the new 
spaces for a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the rack being installed. 
Permits shall be issued within twenty (20) days of the last day of the initial 
implementation period in accordance with subparagraphs a) and b) of this 
section. 

a) Initial Implementation Period for Permit Applications Fewer 
than the Number of Available Cabinets.  Where fewer permit 
applications are received during the initial implementation period 
than the number of available cabinets, applications will be approved 
on a first come, first-served basis.  If there is more than one 
application for a specific geographic location pending, then the 
priority for granting the applications shall be set forth in 
subparagraph b) of this section. 

b) Initial Implementation Period for Permit Applications Greater 
than the Number of Available Cabinets.  If permit applications 
exceed the number of potential locations that are then available, 
priority shall be given based on frequency of publication, with the 
higher priority given to publications for which new editions or issues 
were published on a daily or weekly basis in the full calendar month 
preceding the date of application.  If no applications are submitted 
by publications issued on a daily or weekly basis, then priority shall 
next be given based on frequency of publication based on the 
number of new editions or issues published most frequently in the 
full calendar month preceding the date of application.   Within 
groups of applicants with the same priority, permits shall be granted 
to the maximum allowable in a block by the drawing of lots in a 
process established by the Public Works Director. It shall be a 
condition of any permit granted according to a priority set forth in this 



 6 8/6/2015 

section to maintain editions in the news rack according to the 
frequency for which the priority was given. 

B. Registration and Application for Existing News Rack. Any Owner of 
existing news racks, including existing news racks located within City modular cabinets 
in the Downtown Plaza, shall within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Chapter, 
provide the City with Owner’s news rack registration numbers and location consistent 
with the City Inventory.  The registration of the existing news rack shall be the basis for 
accepting applications for the initial annual permit of existing news racks. Any Owner of 
an existing news rack shall then within ninety (90) days of registration, submit an 
application for an annual permit and pay fees to obtain a City annual permit pursuant to 
Section 5.66.050C., and shall from the date of permitting be subject to the provisions of 
this Chapter.  The Public Works Director may approve alternative compliance and 
permitting schedules, which shall not extend beyond the fiscal year of the effective date 
of this Ordinance for owners of thirty (30) or more registered existing news racks.  
Failure to obtain an approved annual permit within ninety (90) days or the date specified 
by the Public Works Director in the approved alternate schedule shall subject the 
existing news rack to enforcement and removal pursuant to Section 5.66.100. The initial 
permit is valid for the remainder of the fiscal year and shall be renewed pursuant to 
section 5.66.060.  Permit fees shall not be reduced or prorated based upon the 
remaining months in the fiscal year for which the permit issues. 

C. Contents of Application.    Application forms will be provided by the 
Public Works Director and shall include all of the following information: 

1. The applicant’s name, street and mailing address, email address, and 
telephone number for the purposes of receiving copies of notices of violations 
and other official communications. The name, street and mailing address, email 
address and telephone number of the owner of each publication subject to the 
permit(s).  For news racks not in the City Inventory, the application will include a 
description of the exact proposed location, including a map or site plan, drawn to 
scale, with adequate location information to verify conformance with this chapter. 
2. For news racks not in the City Inventory, the application will include a 
description of each proposed news rack, including its dimensions, brand and 
model type, the number of publication spaces it will contain, and whether it 
contains a coin-operated mechanism.   
3. The name and frequency of publication of each publication to be 
contained in each news rack.  
4. A statement signed by the news rack owner that the owner agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless, the City and its representatives from all 
claims, demands, loss, fines or liability to the extent arising out of or in 
connection with the installation, location, use or maintenance of any news rack 
on public property by or on behalf of any such person, except such injury or harm 
as may be caused solely and exclusively by the negligence of the City or its 
authorized representatives. 
5. A statement signed by the applicant that the applicant agrees, upon 
removal of a news rack, to repair at applicant’s cost, any damage to the public 
property caused by the news rack or its removal. 



 7 8/6/2015 

6. An acknowledgement that prior to the issuance of the Permit, the owner 
shall deposit with the Public Works Director a certificate of insurance evidencing 
that a liability insurance policy in a  minimum amount of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence and in the general aggregate, naming the City as an 
additional insured under the same terms and conditions as the primary insured, 
and containing a provision that the policy cannot be cancelled except upon ten 
(10) days' advance written notice to the City of the fact of such cancellation; and 
that if such insurance is cancelled at any time during the terms of such permit, 
same shall be grounds for revocation of the said permit. 
D. Review of Application.  A permit shall be granted or denied within twenty 

(20) business days after a completed application is filed in conformance with this 
ordinance.  The Public Works Director shall issue a permit under an application that 
complies with the provisions of this chapter. If a permit is denied, the City shall, within 
ten (10) business days, mail to the owner a notice of denial that identifies the reasons 
for denial. Applicant may resubmit an updated application that has been denied, one 
time, within ten (10) business days from the date of denial without payment of a new 
application fee.  Failure to complete the application review and obtain permit within 
ninety (90) business days shall void the application.   

E. Issuance of Permit. Upon approval of a news rack application the City 
shall issue a Public Works Permit that applies to the news rack at the approved location 
for the reminder of the fiscal year. If an annual permit is obtained after the beginning of 
a fiscal year, the permit shall expire at the end of the fiscal year without a reduction in 
fees. The Public Works Permit shall be signed by the applicant as the agreement to 
conform to the requirements of this ordinance.  Permits shall be renewed per Section 
5.66.060.  Upon issuance of a permit for a new or replaced news rack the City will 
provide a registration sticker and update the City Inventory.  Each registration sticker 
provided shall be affixed to the top front metal door frame of each corresponding 
permitted news rack.   

 
5.66.060 Renewal Term. 
 
 A news rack permit shall be valid for a period of one fiscal year or the remainder 
of the fiscal year during which the permit is obtained, and shall be renewed each 
successive fiscal year period by timely payment of a renewal fee established by 
resolution of the City Council.   

 
5.66.070 General Standards. 
 

A. Each new, replaced, or relocated news rack shall conform to the 
following general standards. No news rack permit application for a new, replaced, or 
relocated news rack shall be approved unless it is demonstrated that the proposed 
news rack or news racks will conform to each of the following general standards. It is 
unlawful for any person to install, place or maintain a news rack in violation of any of the 
provisions of this section.   

1. No news rack shall project onto, or rest upon, along or over, any part of 
the roadway of any public street. 



 8 8/6/2015 

2. No news rack shall, in whole or in part, rest upon, in or over any sidewalk 
or parkway when such site or location is used for public utility purposes, public 
transportation purposes, or other government use, or the ingress into or egress 
from  any residence, place of business, or any legally parked or stopped vehicle, 
or the use of poles, posts, traffic signs or signals, hydrants, mailboxes, or other 
objects permitted at or near said location, or when such news rack interferes with 
the cleaning of any sidewalk or street by the use of mechanical sidewalk cleaning 
machinery. 
3. Any news rack which in whole or in part, rests upon, in or over any 
sidewalk or parkway shall comply with the following conditions:  

a) No news rack shall exceed fifty one inches in height, thirty (30) 
inches in width, or two (2) feet in depth, except that news racks 
located in the Beachfront Area shall not exceed forty-eight (48) 
inches in height measured from the sidewalk to the top of the news 
rack, unless approved and permitted by the Public Works Director. 

b) Name, address and telephone number, and email address of the 
owner of the news rack shall be displayed on the front of the news 
rack in such a manner as to be readily visible to and readable by a 
prospective customer.  A sticker shall be affixed to each news rack 
stating, “For graffiti and maintenance reporting please email or call 
the Owner at (insert email address) or (insert phone number) with 
registration number.”  The owner shall keep this contact information 
up to date and shall maintain a written record of reporting for a 
period of one year to be provided to the City upon request. 

c) News racks located in the Landmarks District will not have an 
adverse impact on access to, or views of designated landmarks, 
structures of merit, or structures of interest.  News racks in the 
Landmarks District shall carry no advertising except the name of 
the newspaper or periodical being dispensed on the bottom one 
third (1/3) of the plastic hood or, if there is no plastic hood on the 
news rack, the name shown in not more than two locations on the 
news rack.  

d) News racks shall be painted Malaga Green (also identified as RAL 
6005).  Any shared pedestals supporting news racks shall be 
painted black, except in the Landmarks District, the pedestals shall 
be painted Malaga Green. 

e) News racks shall only be placed near a curb or adjacent to the wall 
of a building.  The City shall determine the final locations.  News 
racks placed near the curb shall be placed such that the back of the 
news rack shall be no fewer than eighteen (18) inches nor greater 
than twenty-four (24) inches from the face of the curb. News racks 
placed adjacent to the wall of a building shall be placed parallel to 
such wall and not more than six (6) inches from the wall. No news 
rack shall be placed or maintained on a sidewalk or parkway 
opposite a news stand or another news rack. 



 9 8/6/2015 

f) If eight (8) or more news racks are placed at a single location, 
whether placed on a single pedestal or shared pedestal mounts, 
they shall be placed next to each other and a space of no fewer 
than three (3) feet shall separate each such group, except as 
permitted at the direction of the Public Works Director. 

g) News racks shall not be affixed or bolted to a sidewalk improved 
with decorative tile or other distinctive surface, except as permitted 
at the direction of the Public Works Director. 

h) Each news rack installed on the public sidewalk shall be bolted to 
the City sidewalk in accordance with City standards and 
specifications. 

i) News racks may not be chained or otherwise attached to one 
another; nor to any street sign, street light pole, traffic signal 
equipment, power pole, bike rack, public bench, bus shelter, or 
other public street furniture. 

j) No news rack shall weigh in excess of 250 pounds when empty. 
k) New news racks shall be “K-Jack” model KJ-50E, KJ-100, or KJ-

125T, or equivalent, unless otherwise approved by the Public 
Works Director. 

l) No news rack shall be placed, installed, used or maintained: 
i. Within ten (10) feet of any marked or unmarked crosswalk; 
ii. Within five (5) feet of any fire hydrant, fire call box, police call 

box, traffic signal controller, or traffic signal; 
iii. Within three (3) feet of any utility meter, manhole, service 

box, parking meter, street light pole or other public works 
facility; 

iv. Within ten (10) feet of any driveway or alley approach; 
v. Within five (5) feet of a bike rack; 
vi. Within four (4) feet of any bus boarding and a lighting area 

consisting of the bench and/or shelter, sign and clear zones 
for boarding and alighting of busses as required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act; 

vii. Within three (3) feet of any bus bench or public bench; 
viii. At any location whereby the clear space for the passage of 

pedestrians is reduced to less than four (4) feet; 
ix. Within four (4) feet of any permitted sidewalk dining area; 
x. Within the boundary of a marked valet parking area or 

loading zone, or as otherwise restricted by the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. 

B. Condition and Maintenance of News Racks.   Each news rack shall be 
maintained in a clean and neat condition and in good repair at all times. Without limiting 
this general obligation, the following maintenance criteria shall apply to all new and 
existing news racks: 

1. Each news rack shall be routinely maintained and serviced so that it is 
reasonably free of: 
a) Dirt and grease; 



 10 8/6/2015 

b) Chipped, faded, peeling, and cracked paint or graffiti on any visible 
painted areas; 

c) Rust and corrosion on any visible unpainted metal areas; 
d) Cracks, dents, blemishes, and discoloration in the clear plastic and 

glass parts, if any, through which publications are viewed; 
e) Tears, peeling, or fading in the paper or cardboard parts and 

inserts; 
f) Broken and misshapen structural parts; and 
g) Unauthorized stickers on any surface of the rack. 

2. Each news rack, including any coin-return mechanism, shall be 
mechanically operable at all times. 

3. News racks shall contain current editions of the publication for which the 
permit was issued and new editions placed in the news rack at no less 
than the frequency for which any priority was given for a permit in that 
location. Owner shall inform the Public Works Director of all changes to 
frequency of publication within five (5) business working days of said 
changes. 

4. No news rack or news rack card shall be used for off-premises advertising 
signs other than that directly related to the display, sale or purchase of the 
publication sold therein. 

5. No news rack shall remain empty for a period of fourteen (14) consecutive 
days or longer. 

6. No news rack may contain a publication other than those for which the 
permit was issued. 

7. Each news rack shall have the name, address, and telephone number of 
the Owner, as described in subsection A.3.b) above, as well as the City 
registration number, affixed to the front of the news rack in a place where 
it may be easily seen by anyone viewing the news rack. 

8. Shared pedestals shall be registered to a single owner of a permitted 
news rack which is affixed to the shared pedestal.  Any shared pedestal 
that has not been permitted to a single news rack owner within one 
hundred twenty (120) days of the effective date of this Ordinance will be 
deemed abandoned and will result in the City posting and removing the 
shared pedestal and news racks in accordance with Section 5.66.100.   

9. Shared pedestals shall be fully occupied by the maximum number of news 
racks designed to be affixed to the shared pedestal. The owner shall notify 
the City in writing prior to the removal of units from a shared pedestal.  
Failure to maintain the shared pedestal with the maximum number of new 
racks for fourteen (14) consecutive days will result in its removal pursuant 
to section 5.66.100.  Shared pedestals may be modified to fit remaining 
news racks with City approval and revisions to the annual permit.  Where 
a shared pedestal is not maintained in a fully occupied condition it shall be 
removed and the location restored to its previous condition by the owner 
of the shared pedestal, including, but not limited to, repair of any portion of 
the sidewalk or parkway damaged by the pedestal or its removal, and 
according to specifications provided by the Public Works Director.  An 



 11 8/6/2015 

acceptable repair is typically filling in the holes required for securing the 
news rack to the concrete.  Failure to remove the shared pedestal will 
result in the City posting and removing the shared pedestal and affixed 
news racks in accordance with Section 5.66.100. 

10. When use of a news rack is discontinued for a period of fourteen (14) 
consecutive days or longer, it shall be removed, along with its shared 
pedestal if applicable, and the location restored to its previous condition by 
the news rack owner, including, but not limited to, repair of any portion of 
the sidewalk or parkway damaged by the news rack or its removal, and 
according to specifications provided by the Public Works Director.  Failure 
to remove the news rack will result in the City posting and removing the 
news rack in accordance with Section 5.66.100 

11. Existing news racks that require painting shall be painted Malaga Green 
unless otherwise approved by the Public Works Director. When painting is 
required, the pedestal and base shall be painted black, except that 
pedestals and bases in the Landmarks District shall be painted Malaga 
Green.   

12. News Racks with a current annual permit that are removed for 
maintenance and substituted in kind, and in compliance with this section, 
will not be required to obtain a new permit due to the substitution.  The 
owner shall notify City Public Works of the in kind substitution in writing 
prior to the substitution. 

C. Costs.   The costs of installation, maintenance, replacement, removal and 
relocation of news racks or shared pedestals shall be at the sole expense of the news 
rack owner.  Upon removal of a news rack, the owner shall, at his or her sole expense, 
cause the public right of way and any improvements thereon to be promptly restored to 
the satisfaction of the Public Works Director in a condition which would have existed 
had the news rack not been placed at that location.  If those repairs are not made within 
seven (7) days of removal of the news rack, the City may undertake that repair work 
and collect from the owner the costs thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
related costs of collection. 
 
5.66.080 Downtown Plaza Requirements. 
 

A. Finding of Special Circumstances.  The City Council hereby finds that 
special circumstances require special design, placement and other standards for news 
racks located in the Downtown Plaza, and any other area which may be designated by 
City Council upon findings that the special circumstances of the area require special 
design, placement and other standards for news racks. 

B. Special Standards and Placement.  Notwithstanding any contrary 
provisions in this chapter, no news rack shall be located in the Downtown Plaza except 
within a City modular news rack cabinet (hereinafter referred to as a “City news rack 
cabinet”) owned and provided by the City. All news racks to be inserted into a City news 
rack cabinet shall be provided by the applicant at its sole expense. 

5.66.090 Prohibition on the Display of Harmful Matter. 
 



 12 8/6/2015 

 No material which is harmful to minors, as defined in Section 313 of the Penal 
Code of the State, shall be displayed in a public place, other than a public place from 
which minors are excluded, unless blinder racks are placed in front of the material so 
that the lower two-thirds (2/3) of the material is not exposed to view. 
 
5.66.100 Removal of News Racks; Required Hearing. 
 

A. Removal by the City.  Any news rack or shared pedestal, installed or 
maintained in violation of this chapter may be removed by the City for violation of the 
ordinance, subject to the notice and hearing procedures set forth in this section. 

B. Notice of Violation. Before removal of any news rack, the City shall notify 
the Owner or distributor of the violation by written notification via first class mail to the 
address or addresses shown on the offending news rack and the permit, which shall 
constitute adequate notice. If available the City will also send the written notice of 
violation by email.  Before removal of any shared pedestal, written notification will be 
sent via first class mail to all owners of the news racks affixed to the offending pedestal.  
The City may, but need not, affix an additional notice tag onto the offending news rack 
or shared pedestal. If no identification is shown on the news rack, posting of the notice 
on the news rack alone shall be sufficient. The written notice shall state the nature of 
the violation and the location, shall specify actions necessary to correct the violation, 
and shall give the owner or distributor ten (10) business days from the date appearing 
on the notice to either remedy the violation or to request a meeting before the Public 
Works Director. The date on the notice shall be no earlier than the date on which the 
notice is mailed or affixed to the news rack, as the case may be. 

C. Meeting and Decision. Any owner or distributor notified under Subsection 
B may request a meeting with the Public Works Director by making a written request 
within ten (10) business days from the date appearing on the notice. The meeting shall 
be informal, but oral and written evidence may be given by both sides. The Public 
Works Director shall give his or her written decision within ten (10) business days after 
the date of the meeting. Any action by the City to remove the news rack shall be stayed 
pending the written decision of the Public Works Director following the meeting.  If the 
Public Works Director is unable to conduct the hearing due to bias or legal disability, the 
City Administrator or mutually agreed upon third party shall conduct the hearing.   

D. Removal and Impoundment. The City may remove and impound a news 
rack or shared pedestal in accordance with this section following the written decision of 
the Public Works Director upholding the determination of a violation, or if the owner or 
distributor has neither requested a meeting nor remedied the violation within ten (10) 
business days from the date on the notice. An impounded news rack shall be retained 
by the City for a period of at least thirty (30) calendar days following the removal, and 
may be recovered by the owner upon payment of a fee as may be established by 
resolution. An impounded news rack and its contents may be disposed of by the City 
after thirty (30) calendar days. 

E. Summary Abatement.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsections B 
and C, prior notice and an opportunity to be heard shall not be required before removal 
of any news rack or shared pedestal that is installed or maintained in such a place or 
manner as to pose an immediate or clear and present danger to persons, vehicles or 



 13 8/6/2015 

property or any news rack that is placed in any location without a permit. In such case, 
the City shall proceed in the following manner: 

1. Within one (1) working day following removal, the City shall notify the 
Owner by telephone of the removal.  In the case of an unpermitted news 
rack or shared pedestal, where possible, the City shall notify the Owner of 
the news rack or a person whose name is shown on the news rack, by 
telephone of the removal. Within three (3) business days, the Public 
Works Director or designee shall send written confirmation of the 
telephoned notice. The written confirmation shall contain the reasons for 
the removal and information supporting the removal, and shall inform the 
recipient of the right to request, in writing or in person, a post-removal 
meeting within four (4) business days of the date of such written notice.   

2. Upon timely request, the Public Works Director shall provide a meeting 
within two working days of the request, unless the requesting party agrees 
to a later date. The proceeding shall be informal, but oral and written 
evidence may be given by both sides. The Public Works Director shall 
give his or her decision in writing to the requesting party within two 
working days after such meeting. If the Public Works Director finds that 
the removal was in accordance with this chapter and City regulations, he 
or she shall notify the requesting party to pay any applicable penalties and 
costs and recover the news rack. If the Public Works Director finds that 
the removal was improper and that placement of the news rack was in 
accordance with City regulations and lawful, the Public Works Director 
shall order that the news rack be released and reinstalled without charge. 

3. If the owner of an unpermitted news rack cannot be determined and the 
news rack does not contain the required identification, no notice of the 
removal shall be required. 

 
5.66.110 Abandoned News Racks. 
 
 An abandoned news rack or shared pedestal may be removed by the City and 
impounded, pursuant to the notice and hearing procedures set forth in Section 5.66.100.  
The City may dispose of the news rack or shared pedestal if the owner does not claim 
the news rack and pay any required fees within thirty (30) days of its removal. 
 
5.66.120 Public Nuisance. 
 
 The operation or maintenance of any news rack or shared pedestal contrary to 
the provisions of this chapter shall constitute a public nuisance, which in addition to or in 
lieu of criminal proceedings, may be abated, removed or enjoined by appropriate legal 
action brought by the City Attorney. 
 
5.66.130 Severability. 
 
 If any section, sentence, clause, phrase or provision of this chapter, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances, is for any reason held to be invalid, 



 14 8/6/2015 

such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or provisions of this 
chapter or their applicability to distinguishable situations or circumstances. In enacting 
this chapter, it is the desire of the City Council to regulate validly to the full measure of 
its legal authority in the public interest.  To that end, the City Council would have 
adopted this chapter and each section, sentence, clause, phrase, and portion thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, sentences, clauses, phrases, or 
portions thereof might be invalid, in whole or in part, as applied to any particular 
situation or circumstance, and, to this end, the provisions of this chapter are intended to 
be severable. 
 

SECTION 2.  CEQA.   

This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3 of the 
California Code of Regulations) because the activity will not result in a direct or reasonable 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, and Section 15060(c)(3) because 
the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines because it 
has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.   

 



Agenda Item No.  13 
File Code No.  680.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For 

Annexation Of The Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s 
Western Parcels 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation to annex the Santa Barbara 

Museum of Natural History’s Western Parcels;  
B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 28.12 (Zone Map) of 
Title 28 of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Zoning Upon Annexation of Assessor 
Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and -068, and a portion of the Las Encinas 
Road Easement, in the Upper East Neighborhood;  

C. Adopt, by a reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Requesting Initiation of Proceedings for a Reorganization of Boundaries, 
Annexation to the City of Santa Barbara and Detachment from the Mission Canyon 
Lighting District, Santa Barbara County Fire Protection District, and County Service 
Area 12 for Certain Real Property Known Assessor Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -
066; and -068, and a portion of the Las Encinas Road Easement;  

D. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Amending the General Plan Map of the City of Santa Barbara Pertaining to 
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and -068, and a portion of the 
Las Encinas Road Easement Which Will Be Annexed to the City of Santa 
Barbara; and 

E. Consider and determine the project exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The subject annexation includes three assessor’s parcels and a portion of the Las Encinas 
Road easement owned by the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History (herein referred 
to as the Western Parcels, see Attachment 1). With the exception of one single family 
residence, the Western Parcels are largely undeveloped and include trails that are used 
by the public.  If annexed, the Western Parcels would be subject to the Santa Barbara 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For Annexation Of The 
Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s Western Parcels  
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Museum of Natural History’s Conditional Use Permit approved by the City Council on 
March 24, 2015.  The portions of the Conditional Use Permit relevant to the Western 
Parcels include habitat restoration; restrictions on future development; abatement of 
building and zoning violations; and a required maintenance of free public trail access. 
 
The annexation request complies with the City Council Resolution 96-118, which requires  
parcels to be annexed to be within the City’s Sphere of Influence and adjacent to existing 
City boundaries.  The Planning Commission recommended that the Western Parcels be 
annexed to the City with a General Plan Designation of Low Density Residential 
(Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units per Acre) and a Zoning Designation of E-1 
(One-Family Residence Zone). 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The proposed annexation was requested by the property owner, the Santa Barbara 
Museum of Natural History, as part of the Museum Master Plan.  The Master Plan 
includes improvements to the property anticipated over the next 10-15 year period, 
including site accessibility improvements, replacement of the butterfly exhibit, and 
rehabilitation of existing facilities.   
 
The annexation involves three Museum-owned assessor’s parcels (APNs 023-250-039; 
-066; and -068) and a portion of the private Las Encinas Road easement totaling 
approximately five acres.  Existing development on the Western Parcels includes a 
single family residence.  The Museum is approved to maintain the uses of the Western 
Parcels including the use of the residence, passive recreation, and Museum educational 
activities.  
 
Approved improvements to the Western Parcels include habitat restoration and an 
enhanced bioswale with a boardwalk and overlook.  Annexation of the Western Parcels 
and the land use controls provided with the Museum’s Conditional Use Permit formalize 
the Museum’s and the public’s use of the Western Parcels, provide for habitat protection 
and restoration, and provide a desirable area for tree replacement from the Master Plan 
project and stormwater management and treatment.  The annexation would result in all 
Museum operations being within the City and included in the Museum’s updated and 
consolidated Conditional Use Permit.   
 
On June 5, 2014, the Planning Commission, on a 6-0 vote, initiated annexation of the 
Western Parcels and two privately-owned parcels adjacent to the Museum at 609 
Mission Canyon Road.   
 
On January 8, 2015, in addition to annexation of the Western Parcels, the Planning 
Commission recommended annexation of two additional privately-owned parcels, 
adjacent to the Museum property, located at 609 Mission Canyon Road, and the 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For Annexation Of The 
Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s Western Parcels  
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

Mission Canyon Road right-of-way between the current City boundary up to and 
including the intersection of Mission Canyon Road and Puesta del Sol to improve 
efficiency of public services, reduce overlapping service area, and simplify governance.  
This additional annexation is not ready for submittal.  City staff is gathering boundary 
information on the parcels that make up 609 Mission Canyon Road and the Mission 
Canyon Road right of way and will evaluate whether to move forward with this additional 
annexation separate from the Museum annexation. 
 
On January 8, 2015, the Planning Commission, on a 7-0 vote, approved the Conditional 
Use Permit and parking modification for the Museum of Natural History, and 
recommended that City Council approve the annexation, General Plan Amendment, and 
Zoning Map Amendment with a General Plan Designation of Low Density Residential 
(Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units per Acre) and a Zoning Designation of E-1 
(One-Family Residence Zone) (See Attachments 2 and 3). 
 
On March 5, 2015, City Council heard the appeal of Mark and Lauren Carey on the 
Conditional Use Permit and Parking Modification.  The appeal cited issues with the 
proposed exterior speaker system, relocated trash enclosure, construction conditions, and 
environmental review.  On a 6-1 vote, Council denied the appeal and approved the project 
with condition changes.  The Conditional Use Permit was approved with a requirement for 
public access to the trails on the Western Parcels, limitations on future development, and 
new resource protection conditions (See Attachment 4). 
 
Annexation Request 
 
The proposed annexation of the Western Parcels meets the criteria of City Council 
Resolution No. 96-118, which established procedures for reviewing applications for 
annexations.  Resolution No. 96-118 restricts annexations to parcels located within the 
City’s Sphere of Influence, adjacent to existing City boundaries.  
  
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) established the City’s Sphere of 
Influence, which is the probable future City boundary and service area.  The City’s 
Sphere of Influence currently extends along the City’s eastern boundary adjacent to 
Montecito, moves north and west along the Las Padres National Forest boundary, 
follows State Highway 154 to the south, and includes the community of Hope Ranch.   
 
Because the Western Parcels are under the County’s jurisdiction, the project includes a 
request that Council initiate a “Reorganization” that includes four “Changes of 
Organization.”  The Reorganization includes the following:   
 

1. Annexation to the City of Santa Barbara,  
2. Detachment from Mission Canyon Lighting District, 
3. Detachment from County Fire Protection District, and 
4. Detachment from County Service Area 12.  

 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For Annexation Of The 
Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s Western Parcels  
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

The City General Plan includes the following policy and implementation actions related 
to annexations: 
 

Land Use Element Policy R.3: Annexation of land to the City shall only be 
allowed if resource capacities exist to serve the additional area and population, 
the use of resource capacities will not jeopardize priority development (i.e., 
affordable housing), and the annexation will minimize impacts on service costs. 
 
Land Use Element Implementation Action R3.1: Resource Capacity. It is the 
City’s preference to merge under one government the city of Santa Barbara and 
the area within its sphere of influence. However, all proposed annexations shall 
be assessed for potential impacts on the costs and capacities of resources, for 
example, on water, wastewater treatment, public safety, and affordable housing. 
 
Land Use Element Implementation Action R3.3: Compatibility. Residential 
properties that are annexed to the city shall be designated and zoned to be 
compatible with adjoining residential areas of the city. 

 
The proposed annexation has been reviewed by Public Works, and the City Police and 
Fire Departments.  The subject parcels are currently served by City water and sewer 
services, and fire protection is provided via an interagency (City/County) mutual aid 
agreement. Staff has concluded that resource capacities exist to serve these properties 
with minimal service costs. The proposed designation and zoning are identical to 
adjoining City land use designations and zoning.  The annexation is therefore consistent 
with this General Plan policy and related implementation actions. 
 
If approved, the project site would become part of the Upper East Neighborhood, which is 
described in the Land Use Element of the City’s General Plan as being bounded on the 
north by Mission Creek and Las Encinas Road; on the south by Sola Street; and the east 
by Laguna Street, Olive Avenue, and Olive Street; and on the west by State Street.   
 
Zoning and General Plan Amendments  
 
The Western Parcels currently have a County Comprehensive Plan designation of RES-
1.8 (Residential 1.8 units per acre), and a County zoning designation of 20-R-1 (Single 
Family Residential, 20,000 square foot minimum lot size).   
 
A City General Plan designation of Low Density Residential (Maximum Density: Three 
Dwelling Units per Acre) and a City Zoning designation of E-1 (One-Family Residence 
Zone) are proposed.  Staff and the Planning Commission found that the proposed 
designations are appropriate and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood, which 
is primarily residential.  Museum use continues to be governed by a Conditional Use 
Permit, as required for a quasi-public facility in a residential zone. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For Annexation Of The 
Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s Western Parcels  
August 11, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 

Environmental Review 
 
The Environmental Analyst has determined that: 
 

1. The proposed annexation is exempt from further environmental review pursuant 
to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15319 
that exempts annexations of individual small parcels of the minimum size to allow 
for facilities exempted by Section 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures), including single family residences, accessory structures, 
utilities, and street improvements.   
 

2. The proposed zoning and General Plan designations for the parcels being 
annexed are exempt from further environmental review pursuant to the CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15305, Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations, which 
allows for minor amendments to existing land use plans, ordinances and 
regulations that do not result in changes in land use or density and which have 
no potential for significant environmental effects or do not significantly change 
the planned uses in an area.   

 
Procedures 
 
City Charter Section 1507 requires a minimum of five affirmative votes of City Council 
for amendments to the City's General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and findings that the 
amendments comply with the City’s policy of living within our resources.   
 
Rezones are carried out by Ordinance, and General Plan Amendments are adopted by 
Resolution. 
 
Next Steps 
 
If Council initiates the annexation proceeding with LAFCO, the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment will return to Council for adoption, and the City will then submit 
an application to LAFCO for this Reorganization.  Prior to LAFCO consideration, a tax 
exchange agreement (see discussion below) will be presented to the City Council and 
County Board of Supervisors.  Following LAFCO consideration and approval of these 
actions, LAFCO will transmit a Certificate of Completion to the County Recorder and a 
Statement of Boundary Change to the State Board of Equalization. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Property Tax 
 
State law governing annexations requires that the City and the County negotiate a tax 
exchange agreement.  The tax exchange agreement determines what portion of the 
property tax paid on the property will be allocated to the City.  The property tax 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of An Ordinance And Adoption Of Resolutions For Annexation Of The 
Santa Barbara Museum Of Natural History’s Western Parcels  
August 11, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 

exchange agreement between the City and County will be prepared during the LAFCO 
application process.  The tax exchange agreement will be negotiated and subsequently, 
a resolution providing for a negotiated exchange of property tax revenues will be 
prepared for Council approval. 
 
Annexation Buy-in Fees 
 
Chapter 4.04 of the Municipal Code (Annexation and Charges) requires owners of 
annexed property to pay an annexation “buy-in” fee for potential units to be developed 
on the property.  Because the project does not include any new residential 
development, annexation buy-in fees are not required.  Appropriate utility connection 
and buy-in fees would be required.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Western Parcels are located within the City’s Sphere of Influence and adjacent to 
City boundaries, consistent with current City Council annexation requirements.  The 
proposed Zoning and General Plan designations are compatible with the adjoining 
residential area and consistent with the City General Plan. Therefore, staff recommends 
that Council consent to the reorganization; adopt resolutions for the annexation and 
General Plan amendment; and introduce and subsequently adopt an ordinance to 
rezone the property. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Annexation Exhibit of Western Parcels 

2. Planning Commission Staff Report dated December 23, 2015 
3. Planning Commission Resolution 002-15 
4. City Council Resolution 15-029 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Dan Gullett, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



A
R

E
A

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
A

N
N

E
X

E
D

T
O

 
T

H
E

 
C

I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

A
N

T
A

B
A

R
B

A
R

A
 
(
E

D
U

C
A

T
I
O

N
A

L

U
S

E
/
O

P
E

N
 
S

P
A

C
E

 
A

N
D

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

L
A

S
 
E

N
C

I
N

A
S

 
R

D
.

P
U

E
S

T
A

 D
E

L
 S

O

L

P
U

E
S

T
A

 
D

E
L
 
S

O
L

P
U

E
S

T
A

 
D

E
L
 
S

O
L

MISSION CANYON ROAD

L
A

S

E

N

C

I

N

A

S

M
U

S
E

U
M

 
O

F
 
N

A
T

U
R

A
L
 
H

I
S

T
O

R
Y

M

I

S

S

I

O

N

 

C

A

N

Y

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

H
A

T
C

H
E

D
 
A

R
E

A
 
D

E
N

O
T

E
S

 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
I
O

N
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
C

I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

A
N

T
A

 
B

A
R

B
A

R
A

A
N

D
 
D

E
T

A
C

H
M

E
N

T
 
F

R
O

M
 
M

I
S

S
I
O

N
 
C

A
N

Y
O

N

L
I
G

H
T

I
N

G
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T
,
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
F

I
R

E
 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

I
O

N

D
I
S

T
R

I
C

T
 
2
9
,
 
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
A

R
E

A
 
1
2

(
 
F

O
R

 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 
D

A
T

A
 
S

E
E

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
 
O

N
 
 
P

A
G

E
 
2
)

C
I
T

Y
 
O

R
D

I
N

A
N

C
E

 
N

O
.
3
2
8
3

P
.
O

.
B

.

S
A

N
T

A
 
B

A
R

B
A

R
A

 
C

I
T

Y
 
L
I
M

I
T

S

S
A

N
T

A
 
B

A
R

B
A

R
A

 
M

U
S

E
U

M
 
O

F

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
 
H

I
S

T
O

R
Y

 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

O
.
R

.
 
1
9
8
2
-

0
0
5
3
3
3
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

R
D

I
N

A
N

C
E

N
O

.
 
3
2
8
3

C
I
T

Y
 
O

R
D

I
N

A
N

C
E

N
O

.
 
3
2
8
3

C
I
T

Y
 
O

R
D

I
N

A
N

C
E

N
O

.
 
4
5
4

I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
N

O
.
 
8
2
-
0
0
5
3
3
3
6
 
O

.
R

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

R
D

I
N

A
N

C
E

 
N

O
.
 
4
5
4

W
A

T
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

S
E

W
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

L
.
S

.
5

7
4

2
 
 
 
 
 
(
8

0
5

)
5

6
4

-
8

7
5

6

S
A

N
T

A
 
B

A
R

B
A

R
A

,
 
C

A
L

I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
9

3
1

0
1

4
4

 
H

E
L

E
N

A
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

c
o
m

p
r
e
h
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
l
a
n
d
 
s
u
r
v
e
y
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
c
o
n
s
u
l
t
i
n
g

D
A

V
I
S

 
L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
I
N

G

S
C

A
L
E

 
1
"
=

2
0
0
 
f
t
.

E
X

H
I
B

I
T

 
B

 
(
M

A
P

 
S

H
E

E
T

)

S
A

N
T

A
 
B

A
R

B
A

R
A

 
M

U
S

E
U

M
 
O

F
 
N

A
T

U
R

A
L

 
H

I
S

T
O

R
Y

 
A

N
N

E
X

A
T

I
O

N

P
A

G
E

 
5
 
O

F
 
6

N
O

T
E

:
 
W

A
T

E
R

 
A

N
D

 
S

E
W

E
R

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

A
R

E
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

 
F

R
O

M
 
I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

I
O

N

P
R

O
V

I
D

E
D

 
B

Y
 
T

H
E

 
C

I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

A
N

T
A

B
A

R
B

A
R

A

ATTACHMENT 1









































ATTACHMENT 3









































ATTACHMENT 4























































ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 28.12 
(ZONE MAP) OF TITLE 28 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO ZONING UPON 
ANNEXATION OF ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS 
023-250-039; -066; AND -068, AND A PORTION OF 
THE LAS ENCINAS ROAD EASEMENT, IN THE 
UPPER EAST NEIGHBORHOOD 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Upon annexation of the subject property, Sheet SC02 of the City’s 
Sectional Zone Maps specified in Chapter 28.12 (Zone Map) of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code is hereby amended to designate Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers 023-250-039; -066; and -068, and a portion of the Las Encinas Road 
Easement, and legally described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit B, as E-1 
(One Family Residence) Zone. 
 



1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LAFCO NO. 15-___ 
 

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY ANNEXATION TO THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION CANYON 

LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTIRCIT 29 AND COUTY 
SERVICE AREA 12 

 
THAT PORTION OF PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
2005-0122900 AND ALL OF PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, 
BOOK 2216, PAGE 21, RECORDED DECEMBER 28, 1967, BOTH OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER, COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
BEGINNING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THAT PARCEL OF 
LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN FATHERS OF 
CALIFORNIA RECORDED IN BOOK 314, PAGE 203 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, 
RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
SAID PARCEL 2;  
 
THENCE 1ST, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 2 AND THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE AS DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283, SOUTH 21º41’40” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 23.99 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF 
THAT TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN 
FATHERS OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED IN BOOK 550, PAGE 37 OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, SAID CORNER BEING IN THE 
CHANNEL OF MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 2ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AND ALONG THE 
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, 
SOUTH 84º55’00” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 50.38 FEET; 
 
THENCE 3RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 67º12’00” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 164.45 FEET TO INTERSECT A POINT ON THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454; 
 
THENCE 4TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN 
CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454, NORTH TO INTERSECT THE WEST BANK OF 
MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 5TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE ANDTHE WEST 
BANK OF MISSION CREEK, NORTH 68º45’50” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 62.81 
FEET; 



2 
 

 
THENCE 6TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 82º01’20” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 310.24 FEET; 
 
THENCE 7TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, SOUTH 68º21’40” 
WEST TO INTERSECT AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-00008 
RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2005-0122900 OF 
OFFICIAL RECORDS; 
  
THENCE 8TH, LEAVING SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY 
ORDINANCE NO. 454, ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.11 FEET TO A POINT WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 92.19 FEET FROM THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF PARCEL ONE OF SAID LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT; 
 
THENCE 9TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, OF 
PARCEL 2, NORTH 34º08’32” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 12.41 FEET; 
 
THENCE 10TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 21.80 FEET; 
 
THENCE 11TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
61º15’13” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 7.54 FEET; 
 
THENCE 12TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY , NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 218.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE BOUNDARY 
OF SAID PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, BEING IN THE 
CENTERLINE OF LAS ENCINAS, A PRIVATE ROADWAY AND A POINT ON A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 25º47’55” 
EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.50 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 6º25’00”; 
 
THENCE 13TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE, NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 7.00 FEET 
TO THE BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 369.72 
FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 19º45’59”; 
 
THENCE 14TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 127.55 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 130.25 FEET 
AND A DELTA OF 42º54’09”; 
 
THENCE 15TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 97.53 FEET TO THE 
MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO 
A.C. DIMON, ET UX., RECORDED MAY 15, 1951 IN BOOK 990, PAGE 387 OF 



3 
 

OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY AS SHOWN ON A MAP 
RECORDED IN BOOK 12, PAGE 93 OF MAPS IN THE OFFICE OF SAID COUNTY 
RECORDER; 
 
THENCE 16TH, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID DIMON TRACT OF 
LAND, SOUTH 61º18’05” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 108.70 FEET; 
 
THENCE 17TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE SOUTH 84º31’35” 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 152.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
DIMON TRACT OF LAND AND AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO CORNELIUS MULLER, ET 
UX., RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1963 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 53566 IN BOOK 
2026, PAGE 1010 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 18TH, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF 
SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, SOUTH 26º37’44” EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 26.04 FEET; 
 
THENCE 19TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY AND 
SOUTHERLY LINES, SOUTH 88º38’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.14 FEET TO 
THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 557.34 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 8º44’58”; 
 
THENCE 20TH, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL THREE AND THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 85.11 FEET TO A POINT IN THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 6 AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 12, 
PAGE 93 IN SAID OFFICE COUNTY RECORDER, ALSO BEING A POINT IN THE 
CENTER LINE OF SAID LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND THE BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-
00008; 
  
THENCE 21ST, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL THREE, ALONG SAID 
CENTER LINE OF LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 94.37 FEET TO INTERSECT THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A OF INSTRUMENT NO. 1982-0053336 
RECORDED DECEMBER 20, 1982 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 22ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID TANGENT AND SAID CITY LIMIT 
LINE, SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.49 FEET TO THE BEGINNING 
OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIAL CENTER WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 10º06’40” EAST 112.34 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30º16’40”; 
 
THENCE 23RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, EASTERLY 
ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 59.37 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY 
CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 



4 
 

2005-0122900 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AS 
DESCRIBED IN ORDINANCE NO. 3238; 
 
THENCE 24TH, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE AND SAID NORTHERLY 
BOUNDARY, SOUTH 26º49’30” EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF 
SAID PARCEL 2 AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 493.57 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 230, 090.46 SQUARE FEET, 5.28 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________        5-22-2014 
STEPHEN K. DAVIS, PLS 5742       DATE 
LICENSE EXP. DATE: 12/31/15 



AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

230090.46 SQ.FT, 5.28 ACRES

  (SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 2)

L
A

S
 E

N
C

IN
A

S
 R

D
.

P
U

E
S

T
A

 
D

E
L
 
S

O

L

P
U

E
S

T
A

 D
E

L
 S

O
L

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
C

A
N

Y
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

L
A

S

E

N

C

I

N

A

S

MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

M

I

S

S

I

O

N

 

C

A

N

Y

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P.O.B.

O.R. 1982-

0053336

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

APN 23-271-066

APN23-271-003

L.S.5742     (805)564-8756

SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

44 HELENA AVENUE

comprehensive land surveying and project consulting

DAVIS LAND SURVEYING

EXHIBIT B

SHEET 1 OF 3

LAFCO NO. 15-

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM

OF NATURAL HISTORY

ANNEXATION TO THE CITY

OF SANTA BARBARA

AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION

CANYON LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 29 AND

COUNTY SERVICE AREA 12

No. 5742

A

I

N

R

O

F

I

L

AC

F

O

E

T

A

T

S

R

O

Y

E

V

R

U

S

DN
A

L

D

E

S

N

E

C

I

L

Exp. 12-31-15

_________________________________

ALEKSANDAR JEVREMOVIC, PLS 8378

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SURVEYOR

LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE: 12/31/15

DENOTES EXISTING CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

DENOTES PROPOSED CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

INSTRUMENT NO. 82-0053336 O.R.

recorded December 20, 1982

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283

adopted March 19, 1968

Las Positas R
oad State Street

Garden Street

Milpas Street
De La Street

192

192

225

Mission Canyon

Stearns
Wharf

Shoreline Dr.

M
ei

gs
 R

d.

Cab
ril

lo 
St.

Cliff Dr.
225

P a c i f i
 c  O c e a n

VICINITY MAP

No Scale

Santa Barbara Museum of
Natural History Annexation

101

101



 

 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA REQUESTING INITIATION OF 
PROCEEDINGS FOR A REORGANIZATION OF 
BOUNDARIES, ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AND DETACHMENT FROM THE MISSION 
CANYON LIGHTING DISTRICT, SANTA BARBARA 
COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COUNTY 
SERVICE AREA 12 FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
KNOWN AS ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS 023-250-
039; -066; AND -068, AND A PORTION OF THE LAS 
ENCINAS ROAD EASEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City accepted an application from Santa Barbara Museum of Natural 
History, owners of the subject property, in order to process a request for: 1. Annexation 
of the subject property from the unincorporated area of Santa Barbara County to the 
City of Santa Barbara; 2. A General Plan Amendment Upon Annexation to add the 
property to the City's General Plan Map; 3. A Zoning Map Amendment Upon 
Annexation; 4. A Conditional Use Permit; and 5. A Parking Modification;  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed reorganization has been reviewed and recommended for 
approval by the Planning Commission with respect to environmental and planning matters; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to initiate a proceeding for the adjustment of boundaries 
specified herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council does hereby resolve and order as follows: 
 

1. This proposal is made, and it is requested that proceedings be taken, 
pursuant to the Cortese/Knox/Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization 
Act of 2000, commencing with Section 56000 of the California Government 
Code. 

 
2. This proposal is a reorganization and consists of the following changes of 

organization: 
 
  a. Annexation to the City of Santa Barbara; 
 

b. Detachment from Mission Canyon Lighting District; 
 
c. Detachment from the County Fire Protection District; and 
 
d. Detachment from County Service Area 12.  

 



 

 Page 2 of 2 

3. A description of the boundaries and a map of the affected territory are set 
forth in Exhibits A and B, respectively, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
 4. It is desired that the proposal be subject to the following term and condition: 
 

The affected territory will be subject to the existing general bonded 
indebtedness of the City of Santa Barbara.  

 
5. Upon annexation to the City, the annexed area will be designated on the 

General Plan as Residential (Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units Per 
Acre). 

 
6. Upon annexation to the City, the annexed area will be zoned E-1 (One-

Family Residence Zone).  
 

7. Upon annexation to the City, the annexed area will not be included in the 
Hillside Design District. 

 
8. The reason for the proposal is to provide services to the subject property in a 

manner considered in the best interests of the affected area and the total 
organization of local governmental agencies within Santa Barbara County. 

 
9. The proceeding is subject to the terms and conditions approved by the 

Local Agency Formation Commission. 
 

10. The regular County assessment roll will be utilized. 
 
11. Consent is given to the waiver of conducting authority proceedings, with the 

condition that LAFCO does not subject completion of this annexation to the 
initiation or completion of annexations other than those listed in this 
Resolution. 

 
12. The City Clerk is directed to transmit two (2) certified copies of this resolution 

to the Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission. 
 
 



1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LAFCO NO. 15-___ 
 

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY ANNEXATION TO THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION CANYON 

LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTIRCIT 29 AND COUTY 
SERVICE AREA 12 

 
THAT PORTION OF PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
2005-0122900 AND ALL OF PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, 
BOOK 2216, PAGE 21, RECORDED DECEMBER 28, 1967, BOTH OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER, COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
BEGINNING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THAT PARCEL OF 
LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN FATHERS OF 
CALIFORNIA RECORDED IN BOOK 314, PAGE 203 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, 
RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
SAID PARCEL 2;  
 
THENCE 1ST, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 2 AND THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE AS DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283, SOUTH 21º41’40” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 23.99 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF 
THAT TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN 
FATHERS OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED IN BOOK 550, PAGE 37 OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, SAID CORNER BEING IN THE 
CHANNEL OF MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 2ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AND ALONG THE 
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, 
SOUTH 84º55’00” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 50.38 FEET; 
 
THENCE 3RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 67º12’00” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 164.45 FEET TO INTERSECT A POINT ON THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454; 
 
THENCE 4TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN 
CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454, NORTH TO INTERSECT THE WEST BANK OF 
MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 5TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE ANDTHE WEST 
BANK OF MISSION CREEK, NORTH 68º45’50” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 62.81 
FEET; 



2 
 

 
THENCE 6TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 82º01’20” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 310.24 FEET; 
 
THENCE 7TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, SOUTH 68º21’40” 
WEST TO INTERSECT AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-00008 
RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2005-0122900 OF 
OFFICIAL RECORDS; 
  
THENCE 8TH, LEAVING SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY 
ORDINANCE NO. 454, ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.11 FEET TO A POINT WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 92.19 FEET FROM THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF PARCEL ONE OF SAID LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT; 
 
THENCE 9TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, OF 
PARCEL 2, NORTH 34º08’32” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 12.41 FEET; 
 
THENCE 10TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 21.80 FEET; 
 
THENCE 11TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
61º15’13” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 7.54 FEET; 
 
THENCE 12TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY , NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 218.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE BOUNDARY 
OF SAID PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, BEING IN THE 
CENTERLINE OF LAS ENCINAS, A PRIVATE ROADWAY AND A POINT ON A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 25º47’55” 
EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.50 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 6º25’00”; 
 
THENCE 13TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE, NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 7.00 FEET 
TO THE BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 369.72 
FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 19º45’59”; 
 
THENCE 14TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 127.55 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 130.25 FEET 
AND A DELTA OF 42º54’09”; 
 
THENCE 15TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 97.53 FEET TO THE 
MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO 
A.C. DIMON, ET UX., RECORDED MAY 15, 1951 IN BOOK 990, PAGE 387 OF 



3 
 

OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY AS SHOWN ON A MAP 
RECORDED IN BOOK 12, PAGE 93 OF MAPS IN THE OFFICE OF SAID COUNTY 
RECORDER; 
 
THENCE 16TH, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID DIMON TRACT OF 
LAND, SOUTH 61º18’05” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 108.70 FEET; 
 
THENCE 17TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE SOUTH 84º31’35” 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 152.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
DIMON TRACT OF LAND AND AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO CORNELIUS MULLER, ET 
UX., RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1963 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 53566 IN BOOK 
2026, PAGE 1010 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 18TH, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF 
SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, SOUTH 26º37’44” EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 26.04 FEET; 
 
THENCE 19TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY AND 
SOUTHERLY LINES, SOUTH 88º38’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.14 FEET TO 
THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 557.34 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 8º44’58”; 
 
THENCE 20TH, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL THREE AND THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 85.11 FEET TO A POINT IN THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 6 AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 12, 
PAGE 93 IN SAID OFFICE COUNTY RECORDER, ALSO BEING A POINT IN THE 
CENTER LINE OF SAID LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND THE BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-
00008; 
  
THENCE 21ST, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL THREE, ALONG SAID 
CENTER LINE OF LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 94.37 FEET TO INTERSECT THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A OF INSTRUMENT NO. 1982-0053336 
RECORDED DECEMBER 20, 1982 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 22ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID TANGENT AND SAID CITY LIMIT 
LINE, SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.49 FEET TO THE BEGINNING 
OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIAL CENTER WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 10º06’40” EAST 112.34 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30º16’40”; 
 
THENCE 23RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, EASTERLY 
ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 59.37 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY 
CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 



4 
 

2005-0122900 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AS 
DESCRIBED IN ORDINANCE NO. 3238; 
 
THENCE 24TH, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE AND SAID NORTHERLY 
BOUNDARY, SOUTH 26º49’30” EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF 
SAID PARCEL 2 AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 493.57 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 230, 090.46 SQUARE FEET, 5.28 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________        5-22-2014 
STEPHEN K. DAVIS, PLS 5742       DATE 
LICENSE EXP. DATE: 12/31/15 



AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

230090.46 SQ.FT, 5.28 ACRES

  (SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 2)

L
A

S
 E

N
C

IN
A

S
 R

D
.

P
U

E
S

T
A

 
D

E
L
 
S

O

L

P
U

E
S

T
A

 D
E

L
 S

O
L

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
C

A
N

Y
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

L
A

S

E

N

C

I

N

A

S

MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

M

I

S

S

I

O

N

 

C

A

N

Y

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P.O.B.

O.R. 1982-

0053336

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

APN 23-271-066

APN23-271-003

L.S.5742     (805)564-8756

SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

44 HELENA AVENUE

comprehensive land surveying and project consulting

DAVIS LAND SURVEYING

EXHIBIT B

SHEET 1 OF 3

LAFCO NO. 15-

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM

OF NATURAL HISTORY

ANNEXATION TO THE CITY

OF SANTA BARBARA

AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION

CANYON LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 29 AND

COUNTY SERVICE AREA 12

No. 5742

A

I

N

R

O

F

I

L

AC

F

O

E

T

A

T

S

R

O

Y

E

V

R

U

S

DN
A

L

D

E

S

N

E

C

I

L

Exp. 12-31-15

_________________________________

ALEKSANDAR JEVREMOVIC, PLS 8378

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SURVEYOR

LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE: 12/31/15

DENOTES EXISTING CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

DENOTES PROPOSED CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

INSTRUMENT NO. 82-0053336 O.R.

recorded December 20, 1982

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283

adopted March 19, 1968

Las Positas R
oad State Street

Garden Street

Milpas Street
De La Street

192

192

225

Mission Canyon

Stearns
Wharf

Shoreline Dr.

M
ei

gs
 R

d.

Cab
ril

lo 
St.

Cliff Dr.
225

P a c i f i
 c  O c e a n

VICINITY MAP

No Scale

Santa Barbara Museum of
Natural History Annexation

101

101



RESOLUTION NO.______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN MAP 
OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PERTAINING TO 
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS 023-250-039; -066; 
AND -068, AND A PORTION OF THE LAS ENCINAS ROAD 
EASEMENT WHICH WILL BE ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA 

 
WHEREAS, the City accepted an application from Santa Barbara Museum of Natural 
History, owners of the subject property, in order to process a request for: 1. Annexation 
of the subject property from the unincorporated area of Santa Barbara County to the 
City of Santa Barbara; 2. A General Plan Amendment Upon Annexation to add the 
property to the City's General Plan Map; 3. A Zoning Map Amendment Upon 
Annexation; 4. A Conditional Use Permit; and 5. A Parking Modification;  
 
WHEREAS, on June 5, 2014, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider the proposed reorganization for the subject property and with 
respect to planning matters and initiated the annexation by a vote of 6-0; 
 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Analyst determined that the project is exempt from 
further environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302 (Replacement or 
Reconstruction), 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures), 15305 
(Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations), 15307 (Actions by Regulatory Agencies for 
Protection of Natural Resources), and 15319 (Annexations of Existing Facilities and 
Lots or Exempt Facilities); 
 
WHEREAS, on January 8, 2015, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider the proposed development request for the project at 2559 Puesta 
Del Sol, along with the reorganization and of said properties and, with respect to 
environmental and planning matters and approved the development request by a vote 
of 7-0; 
 
WHEREAS, on Janaury 20, 2015, Mark and Lauren Carey timely filed an appeal of the 
Planning Commission’s approval.  In their appeal letter, the Careys objected to the 
proposed installation of an exterior speaker system for Museum announcements and 
the proposed relocation of the trash bins to a location within the Museum parking lot.  In 
addition, the Careys requested imposition of additional conditions of approval intended 
to reduce the impacts of the proposed construction and objected to the environmental 
determinations for the project; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 24, 2015, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public 
hearing on the appeal and, after consideration of all of the evidence presented and 
public testimony received, voted 6-1 to direct preparation of written findings consistent 



with the oral findings made by Council that would deny the appeal and grant the 
amended Conditional Use Permit and parking modification;  
 
WHEREAS, on August 11, 2015, the City Council has conducted a duly noticed public 
hearing concerning the requested Annexation, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3, 
Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has introduced an Ordinance that will amend the current 
Zoning Map upon the annexation of the subject property;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered all materials and exhibits in 
the current record relative to this amendment, including the project and all staff reports.  
At the close of the public hearing, the City Council, __________ vote, initiated the 
annexation, and forwarded the request to the Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCO) for their review; and 
 
WHEREAS, the documents or other materials which constitute the record of the 
proceedings upon which this decision is based are on file at the City of Santa Barbara 
Planning Division, located at 630 Garden Street. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Santa 
Barbara as follows: 
 
Upon annexation of the subject real property, the General Plan map of the City of Santa 
Barbara is amended by designating Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 023-250-039, 023-250-
066, and 023-250-068 and a portion of the Las Encinas Road easement as Low Density 
Residential (Maximum Density: Three Dwelling Units Per Acre), are described and 
depicted on the attached Exhibits.   
 
 



1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LAFCO NO. 15-___ 
 

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY ANNEXATION TO THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION CANYON 

LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTIRCIT 29 AND COUTY 
SERVICE AREA 12 

 
THAT PORTION OF PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
2005-0122900 AND ALL OF PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, 
BOOK 2216, PAGE 21, RECORDED DECEMBER 28, 1967, BOTH OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER, COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
BEGINNING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THAT PARCEL OF 
LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN FATHERS OF 
CALIFORNIA RECORDED IN BOOK 314, PAGE 203 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, 
RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
SAID PARCEL 2;  
 
THENCE 1ST, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 2 AND THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE AS DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283, SOUTH 21º41’40” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 23.99 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF 
THAT TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED TO THE FRANCISCAN 
FATHERS OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED IN BOOK 550, PAGE 37 OF OFFICIAL 
RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, SAID CORNER BEING IN THE 
CHANNEL OF MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 2ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AND ALONG THE 
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, 
SOUTH 84º55’00” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 50.38 FEET; 
 
THENCE 3RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 67º12’00” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 164.45 FEET TO INTERSECT A POINT ON THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454; 
 
THENCE 4TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN 
CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454, NORTH TO INTERSECT THE WEST BANK OF 
MISSION CREEK; 
 
THENCE 5TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE ANDTHE WEST 
BANK OF MISSION CREEK, NORTH 68º45’50” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 62.81 
FEET; 



2 
 

 
THENCE 6TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, NORTH 82º01’20” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 310.24 FEET; 
 
THENCE 7TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, SOUTH 68º21’40” 
WEST TO INTERSECT AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-00008 
RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2005-0122900 OF 
OFFICIAL RECORDS; 
  
THENCE 8TH, LEAVING SAID CITY LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN CITY 
ORDINANCE NO. 454, ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.11 FEET TO A POINT WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 1º28’00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 92.19 FEET FROM THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF PARCEL ONE OF SAID LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT; 
 
THENCE 9TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, OF 
PARCEL 2, NORTH 34º08’32” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 12.41 FEET; 
 
THENCE 10TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 21.80 FEET; 
 
THENCE 11TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 
61º15’13” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 7.54 FEET; 
 
THENCE 12TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY , NORTH 
1º28’ 00” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 218.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE BOUNDARY 
OF SAID PARCEL THREE PER INSTRUMENT NO. 1967-37730, BEING IN THE 
CENTERLINE OF LAS ENCINAS, A PRIVATE ROADWAY AND A POINT ON A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 25º47’55” 
EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.50 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 6º25’00”; 
 
THENCE 13TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE, NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 7.00 FEET 
TO THE BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 369.72 
FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 19º45’59”; 
 
THENCE 14TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 127.55 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 130.25 FEET 
AND A DELTA OF 42º54’09”; 
 
THENCE 15TH, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL 
THREE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 97.53 FEET TO THE 
MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO 
A.C. DIMON, ET UX., RECORDED MAY 15, 1951 IN BOOK 990, PAGE 387 OF 



3 
 

OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY AS SHOWN ON A MAP 
RECORDED IN BOOK 12, PAGE 93 OF MAPS IN THE OFFICE OF SAID COUNTY 
RECORDER; 
 
THENCE 16TH, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID DIMON TRACT OF 
LAND, SOUTH 61º18’05” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 108.70 FEET; 
 
THENCE 17TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE SOUTH 84º31’35” 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 152.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
DIMON TRACT OF LAND AND AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO CORNELIUS MULLER, ET 
UX., RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1963 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 53566 IN BOOK 
2026, PAGE 1010 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 18TH, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF 
SAID LAST MENTIONED TRACT OF LAND, SOUTH 26º37’44” EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 26.04 FEET; 
 
THENCE 19TH, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY AND 
SOUTHERLY LINES, SOUTH 88º38’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.14 FEET TO 
THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 557.34 FEET AND A DELTA ANGLE OF 8º44’58”; 
 
THENCE 20TH, ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL THREE AND THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 85.11 FEET TO A POINT IN THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 6 AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 12, 
PAGE 93 IN SAID OFFICE COUNTY RECORDER, ALSO BEING A POINT IN THE 
CENTER LINE OF SAID LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND THE BOUNDARY OF SAID 
PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 04-LLA-00000-
00008; 
  
THENCE 21ST, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL THREE, ALONG SAID 
CENTER LINE OF LAS ENCINAS ROAD AND SAID BOUNDARY OF PARCEL 2, 
SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 94.37 FEET TO INTERSECT THE CITY 
LIMIT LINE DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A OF INSTRUMENT NO. 1982-0053336 
RECORDED DECEMBER 20, 1982 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE 22ND, CONTINUING ALONG SAID TANGENT AND SAID CITY LIMIT 
LINE, SOUTH 79º53’20” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.49 FEET TO THE BEGINNING 
OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIAL CENTER WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 10º06’40” EAST 112.34 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30º16’40”; 
 
THENCE 23RD, CONTINUING ALONG SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, EASTERLY 
ALONG SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 59.37 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY 
CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2 AS DESCRIBED IN LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 
04-LLA-00000-00008 RECORDED DECEMBER 22, 2005 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 



4 
 

2005-0122900 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE AS 
DESCRIBED IN ORDINANCE NO. 3238; 
 
THENCE 24TH, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE AND SAID NORTHERLY 
BOUNDARY, SOUTH 26º49’30” EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF 
SAID PARCEL 2 AND SAID CITY LIMIT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 493.57 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 230, 090.46 SQUARE FEET, 5.28 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________        5-22-2014 
STEPHEN K. DAVIS, PLS 5742       DATE 
LICENSE EXP. DATE: 12/31/15 



AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

230090.46 SQ.FT, 5.28 ACRES

  (SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 2)

L
A

S
 E

N
C

IN
A

S
 R

D
.

P
U

E
S

T
A

 
D

E
L
 
S

O

L

P
U

E
S

T
A

 D
E

L
 S

O
L

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
C

A
N

Y
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

L
A

S

E

N

C

I

N

A

S

MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

M

I

S

S

I

O

N

 

C

A

N

Y

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P.O.B.

O.R. 1982-

0053336

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

CITY

ORDINANCE

NO. 3283

APN 23-271-066

APN23-271-003

L.S.5742     (805)564-8756

SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

44 HELENA AVENUE

comprehensive land surveying and project consulting

DAVIS LAND SURVEYING

EXHIBIT B

SHEET 1 OF 3

LAFCO NO. 15-

SANTA BARBARA MUSEUM

OF NATURAL HISTORY

ANNEXATION TO THE CITY

OF SANTA BARBARA

AND DETACHMENT FROM MISSION

CANYON LIGHTING DISTRICT, COUNTY

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 29 AND

COUNTY SERVICE AREA 12

No. 5742

A

I

N

R

O

F

I

L

AC

F

O

E

T

A

T

S

R

O

Y

E

V

R

U

S

DN
A

L

D

E

S

N

E

C

I

L

Exp. 12-31-15

_________________________________

ALEKSANDAR JEVREMOVIC, PLS 8378

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY SURVEYOR

LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE: 12/31/15

DENOTES EXISTING CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

DENOTES PROPOSED CITY AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY

INSTRUMENT NO. 82-0053336 O.R.

recorded December 20, 1982

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 454

CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3283

adopted March 19, 1968

Las Positas R
oad State Street

Garden Street

Milpas Street
De La Street

192

192

225

Mission Canyon

Stearns
Wharf

Shoreline Dr.

M
ei

gs
 R

d.

Cab
ril

lo 
St.

Cliff Dr.
225

P a c i f i
 c  O c e a n

VICINITY MAP

No Scale

Santa Barbara Museum of
Natural History Annexation

101

101



Agenda Item No.  14 
 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Final Approval For Additions 

To A Residence At 1912 Mission Ridge Road 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council deny the appeal of Trevor Martinson, agent for adjacent neighbors Rinaldo 
and Lalla Brutoco, and uphold the Single Family Design Board decision to grant Final 
Approval for additions to an existing single-family residence.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On June 25, 2015, an appeal was filed by Trevor Martinson, agent for the adjacent 
neighbors (Brutoco), of the Single Family Design Board (SFDB) Final Approval of June 
15, 2015 (Attachment 1, Appellant’s letter).  The subject property is a 25,091 square-foot 
flag lot in the Hillside Design District, owned by Craig Morrison, and zoned A-1 (single 
family residential).  The project proposes a 22 square-foot first-floor addition and 530 
square-foot second-floor addition to an existing 2,146 square-foot, one-story residence 
with an attached 658 square foot garage.  The proposal includes one new uncovered 
parking space, a 194 square-foot covered entry patio, a 158 square-foot second-story 
deck, a raised pool and surrounding deck, and interior remodel work (Attachment 2 – 
Project Plans).  It also includes permitting an “as-built” air conditioning condenser unit, 
relocation of the pool equipment enclosure, and a new driveway and pedestrian gate. 
The proposed total of 3,251 square feet on a 25,091 square foot lot in the Hillside 
Design District is 69% of the guideline maximum floor-to-lot area ratio (FAR). 
 
Background 
 
The current appeal is the second appeal of this project.  The new appeal raises several 
issues different from the first appeal, involving concerns with an alleged inadequacy of 
grading plans, incomplete drainage design details and potential building code 
compliance issues with the proposed design.  
   
Previously, on March 10, 2015, Council denied an appeal filed by several neighbors 
(which included the Brutocos) of the SFDB decision to grant Project Design Approval. At 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Final Approval For Additions To A Residence At 
1912 Mission Ridge Road Subject  
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

the public hearing, Council discussed the appellants’ assertions regarding “unacceptable 
privacy and view impacts” that might result if the project’s second floor addition was 
constructed, and agreed that the design could be improved.  Council asked that some 
minor changes be made to windows and the second floor balcony design to increase 
privacy between neighbors.  Council voted 6/1 to deny the appeal and uphold the SFDB 
Project Design Approval, and determined that the proposed second-story project was 
compatible with the neighborhood, would not substantially block private views and found 
the project consistent with the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance (NPO) Findings and 
Good Neighbor Guidelines (Attachment 3 – Council Resolution).  
 
Council Direction and SFDB Review 
 
Council’s decision to uphold the SFDB’s Project Design Approval was subject to 
conditions involving minor design changes to increase privacy levels between 
properties. The project was subsequently revised to address Council’s direction and 
returned to the SFDB for Final Approval on June 15, 2015.   
 
The standard of review for the SFDB on Final Approval is whether the revised project is 
consistent with the City Council’s conditional approval of the Project Design.  The SFDB 
reviewed the redesign of the project and agreed that the new design of the windows on 
the north elevation, at the master bedroom, met the Board’s guidelines for privacy.  The 
Board acknowledged the architect’s efforts to raise the sill of the windows to five feet to 
ensure the privacy of the neighbors.  The Board also re-evaluated the design of the 
balcony on the west elevation, and confirmed that the final design with fixed planters will 
prevent occupants from stepping onto the balcony and that the design will ensure 
privacy for the neighborhood (Attachment 4 – SFDB minutes). 
 
Other Issues Raised on Appeal 
 
Building Code Compliance Check  
The appellant raises two issues in this appeal that were not raised in the first Council 
appeal regarding Project Design Approval.  The appellant claims that a foundation detail 
shown on the project plans is not adequately designed to support the two-story project.  
This is an issue that is more appropriately raised during the building permit process, not 
design review.  The Building and Safety Division is primarily responsible for ensuring that 
proposed constructions plans are feasible and meet all building and structural codes.  In 
most cases, licensed design professionals must verify existing site and building conditions, 
and submit structural calculations and sufficient plan details to properly demonstrate how 
the new improvements can be constructed and meet building codes.  Building plan check 
staff may conduct site visits to look into any allegations of misrepresentation of a property’s 
existing site conditions.  Ultimately, the existing structure and the site’s physical conditions 
must be accurately represented and match what is on the construction plans in order for 
the structure to pass field inspections. If a change in the structural detail significantly alters 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Final Approval For Additions To A Residence At 
1912 Mission Ridge Road Subject  
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 

 

the proposed design of the project, the project may need to return to the SFDB for review 
after final.  Otherwise, this level of detailed building code review is outside the purview of 
the SFDB. 
 
Drainage  
The appellant expresses concern about incomplete drainage information provided to the 
SFDB and adequacy of the drainage plans.  Design review staff implements the SFDB 
submittal requirements based on the nature and scope of the application.  In the case of 
1912 Mission Ridge Road, the application consisted of a second story addition above an 
existing garage, a new covered porch entry addition, and a revised pool design within the 
existing pool footprint.  The application before the SFDB did not propose to change the 
footprint of development.  In a context such as this, it is common for staff not to require an 
applicant to submit a full site topography plan because the land form is not being altered in 
a significant way.  That being said, the SFDB may require the submission of the 
information if the Board feels it is needed in order to inform their decision.  This issue was 
raised before the SFDB and the Board did not request additional information. 
 
Staff agrees that the project has not yet demonstrated full compliance with the City’s 
SWMP Tier 2 level requirement. However, these final drainage design details and storm 
water treatment system details are typically addressed through the building permit plan 
check process.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The SFDB determined the project was consistent with Council’s previous direction, 
compatible with the neighborhood, and indicated the project complied with the Good 
Neighbor Policies.  The City Council’s standard of review on an appeal of a decision of the 
SFDB on Final Approval is the same as the SFDB, is the final design consistent with 
Council’s conditional approval of the Project Design.  Planning staff is of the opinion that 
the final design is in substantial conformance with the project previously reviewed by 
Council. 
 
Furthermore, the other issues raised by this appeal are related to building code and plan 
check compliance  and are not within the purview of the SFDB.  These issues should be 
directed to the Building and Safety Division staff for resolution, not the City Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the Single Family Design 
Board’s decision to grant Final Approval finding that the final design is consistent with the 
Project Design Approval as conditionally approved by the City Council on March 10, 2015.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Final Approval For Additions To A Residence At 
1912 Mission Ridge Road Subject  
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 

 

NOTE:  The project file and plans were delivered separately to City Council for review and 
are available for public review at the City Clerk’s office. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appellant’s letter, dated June 25, 2015 

2. Reduced building elevations and balcony details  
3. Council Resolution No.15-018 
4. SFDB Minutes, dated June15, 2015 
  

PREPARED BY: Jaime Limón, Senior Planner II 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1





















ATTACHMENT 2







ATTACHMENT 3















SFDB MINUTES-  June 15, 2015 

 

FINAL REVIEW 

 

6. 1912 MISSION RIDGE RD          A-1 Zone 

 (5:40) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 019-083-021 

  Application Number:  MST2014-00585 

 Owner:   Craig Morrison 

 Applicant:   Jeff Shelton 

(Proposal for a 22 square foot first-floor addition and a 530 square foot second-floor 

addition to an existing 2,120 square foot one-story, single-family residence with an 

attached 579 square foot garage. The proposal includes one new uncovered parking 

space, a 194 square foot covered patio at the entry, a 158 square foot second-story deck, a 

raised pool and surrounding deck, and interior remodel work.   

It also includes permitting an "as-built" air conditioning condenser unit, relocation of the 

pool equipment enclosure, and new pedestrian and driveway gates.  The proposed total of 

3,251 square feet on a 25,091 square foot lot in the Hillside Design District is 69% of the 

guideline maximum floor-to-lot area ratio (FAR).  This project will address violations 

identified in Zoning Information Report  

ZIR2014-00157.) 

 

(Final Approval is requested.  Project was last reviewed on January 26, 2015.) 

 

Actual time: 5:40 p.m. 

 

Present: Jeff Shelton, Architect; and Craig Morrison, Owner. 

 

Public comment opened at 5:55 p.m. 

 

1) Rinaldo Brutoco, adjacent neighbor, appreciated the architect’s changes to the 

balcony above the garage. Mr. Brutoco also expressed concerns on behalf of himself 

and the Bedfords who live south of the project regarding potential drainage impacts 

and the lack of information on plans to inform a discussion about this. He stated that 

he echoes the concerns presented by Trevor Martinson, is concerned about the 

Board’s lack of consideration to privacy issues, and noted the short notice on review 

of the project. 

2) Trevor Martinson, neighbor in close proximity, raised concerns about the noticing for 

the review and requested a two week postponement to respond to the concerns in his 

letter.  

3) Stephanie Bacon, adjacent neighbor, expressed concerns regarding privacy from 

windows proposed in the project. 

 

The Board acknowledged a letter of expressed concerns submitted by Trevor Martinson, 

neighbor in close proximity. Mr. Martinson submitted the letter at the start of the meeting 

and the Board allowed 20 minutes for review of the concerns. 

 

ATTACHMENT 4



Public comment closed at 6:02 p.m. 

 

Motion: Final Approval with comments:  

1) The Board has reviewed the redesign of the eaves and finds it 

acceptable. 

2) The new design of the windows on the north elevation, at the master 

bedroom, meets the Board’s guidelines for privacy. The Board 

acknowledges the architect’s efforts to raise the sill of the windows to 

five feet to ensure the privacy of the neighbors. 

3) The Board has revaluated the design of the balcony on the west 

elevation, and seeing that its design with fixed planters will prevent 

occupants from stepping out onto it, the Board finds that the design 

will ensure privacy for the neighborhood. 

Action: Woolery/Pierce, 4/1/0.  Motion carried.  (Bernstein opposed, Miller/James 

absent). 

 

The ten-day appeal period was announced. 

 



Agenda Item No.  15 
File Code No.  640.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Rental Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A.   Allocate $80,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the City 

Attorney’s Office Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover the cost of legal services;  
B.   Allocate $90,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the Community 

Development Department’s Fiscal Year 2016 budget and incur as an ongoing cost 
to augment existing zoning enforcement staff and cover the cost of increased 
zoning enforcement related to Vacation Rentals;  

C. Allocate $10,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to the Finance 
Department’s Fiscal Year 2016 budget and incur as an ongoing cost for staffing 
overtime costs related to increased zoning enforcement of Vacation Rentals; and 

D.   Initiate a Zoning Ordinance amendment to allow Home Sharing Rentals. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City Council and staff are aware that short-term Vacation Rentals exist throughout the 
City and that most are operating in residential areas where they are not currently allowed. 
To date, alleged violations have been investigated and code enforcement action taken 
only in response to neighborhood complaints. 
 
On June 23, 2015, the City Council directed staff to enforce the City’s existing Zoning 
Ordinance and develop an enhanced enforcement plan.  The City Council also directed 
staff to return with a work plan to amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow Home Sharing 
Rentals.  This Council Agenda Report provides information on Vacation Rental 
enforcement priorities and budget implications.  It also provides information on the 
process and schedule for developing a Home Sharing Rental ordinance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
The growing industry of online marketing sites is making short-term rentals more 
accessible to tourists than ever before.  Currently, there are over 90 online web sites 
advertising short-term stays in the City.  A quick glance at two of the larger sites (Airbnb 
and VRBO)  revealed over 1,000 individual listings in the City.  Based on the maps 
provided online, for the most part, these listings are in the City limits. There are currently 
361 short-term rentals registered with the City and paying Transient Occupancy Tax 
(TOT).   
 
Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this Council Agenda Report and Council discussion, staff 
recommends a common use of the following definitions regarding short-term Vacation 
Rentals.  These are not terms or definitions currently found in the City’s Municipal Code or 
Zoning Ordinance.    
 
“Home Sharing Rental” – A resident(s) hosts visitors in their home for short periods of time 
(less than 30 days), while at least one of the primary residents lives on-site throughout the 
stay.  Guests pay a nightly fee and enjoy non-exclusive shared use of the unit with the 
person(s) who lives there.  Typically, the primary resident actively hosts the guests during 
the visit. 
 
“Vacation Rental” – The rental of any un-hosted dwelling unit to any person for exclusive 
transient use of less than 30 days.  Guests pay a nightly fee and enjoy the exclusive 
private use of the unit.  
 
Previous Council Meeting on Vacation Rentals 
 
On June 23, 2015, the City Council held a public hearing and discussed the growth of 
short-term Vacation Rentals in the City.  The City received 47 comment letters and 
heard over  three hours of public testimony from 69 speakers representing 90 speaker 
cards.   It is estimated that a total of 200 people attended the meeting. 
 
At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Council was unanimous in their support for 
enforcement of the City’s existing Zoning Ordinance, which prohibits hotel uses in most 
residential zoning districts.  Noting concerns regarding neighborhood compatibility and 
the loss of urgently needed housing to a commercial enterprise, Council directed staff 
to: 
 

• Proactively enforce existing Zoning Ordinance regulations that: 
o Prohibit Vacation Rentals in single-family, R-2 and R-3 Zones ; and 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 3 

 

o Permit Vacation Rentals where hotel uses are allowed, subject to the 
applicable discretionary review and approval process 

 
• Develop a work program to define, regulate and permit Home Sharing Rentals 

anywhere residential uses are allowed. 
 
 
Need for Clarity in Existing Zoning Ordinance 
 
The City’s Zoning Ordinance contains distinct definitions for residential units and hotels, 
which have existed for decades.  The length of stay, less than 30 days, determines the 
transient nature of room rentals.  The sharing economy and use of the Internet to book 
commercial transactions (transportation, rooms or homes) did not exist when the City’s 
zoning definitions and regulations were adopted.  Applying existing regulations to this 
new and rapidly expanding phenomenon has proven challenging.   
 
Initiating a Zoning Ordinance amendment to add relevant definitions and clarify 
regulations will be beneficial  to both the public and staff. This will also provide staff and 
the Planning Commission authorization to explore ways to regulate and permit Home 
Sharing Rentals anywhere residential land uses are allowed.   
 
Existing City Zoning Regulations  
 
On June 23rd, Council also asked staff to develop a work program that would allow 
some form of home sharing of a person’s primary residence.   This direction prompted 
staff to request a City Attorney opinion on this type of use.  The conclusion is that 
renting out rooms for less than 30 days is currently a zoning violation.  The City 
Attorney’s opinion is based upon the clear definition of hotel in the Zoning Ordinance, 
which can include any “portion of a building” as a hotel: 
 
28.04.395 Hotel. 
“A building, group of buildings or a portion of a building which is designed for or 
occupied as the temporary abiding place of individuals for less than thirty (30) 
consecutive days including, but not limited to, establishments held out to the public as 
auto courts, bed and breakfast inns, hostels, inns, motels, motor lodges, time share 
projects, tourist courts, and other similar uses.” 
 
Accordingly, a Zoning Ordinance amendment will be required to implement a home 
sharing program.   
 
Hotels are currently allowed in the City’s R-4 (Hotel-Motel-Multiple Residence) and 
commercial zones, subject to discretionary review.  Discretionary review is review using 
reason and judgment based upon specific criteria defined in the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code (SBMC) established to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 
community to assess impacts of a proposed use or development project. This review 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 4 

 

includes a public notice, a comment period, and the ability to appeal the decision,  In 
Santa Barbara, these types of decisions are made by the Community Development 
Director, Staff Hearing Officer, Design Review Boards, Planning Commission, City 
Council, or other decision making body. 

 
The discretionary review process to convert existing residential units to a hotel use 
involves compliance with the City’s Growth Management Program, the Condominium / 
Hotel Conversion Ordinance, Tenant Displacement Assistance Ordinance and Transient 
Occupancy Tax Ordinance, to name just a few of the applicable laws. Due to the 
complexity of the process, especially for conversion of more than one unit on a lot, staff 
has developed a  brochure describing the steps involved to legally convert one or more 
residential units into a Vacation Rental.   
 
General Plan  
 
The General Plan places a high priority on housing development.  The Average Unit-
Size Density (AUD) Program (2013) provides significant incentives for the development 
of rental housing.  There is considerable overlap in the areas where AUD incentives are 
allowed and where Vacation Rentals are currently operating illegally.   Based on the 
Vacation Rentals that have been paying TOT (without planning permits and approval), 
the highest  concentrations are in the East Beach, West Beach, and West Downtown 
neighborhoods.  Whether the TOT is being paid for transient stays in a full-time 
Vacation Rental or in Home Sharing Rental is unknown.  Therefore the effect on the 
City’s housing supply cannot be quantified at this point in time.  
 
Enforcement Approach and Priorities  
 
Council directed staff to begin proactive enforcement of existing zoning regulations on 
unlawful Vacation Rentals.    
 
Gathering the necessary evidence to support proactive enforcement will be time-
consuming and relatively costly because of the sheer number of unlawful Vacation 
Rentals in the City.  However, through web-based research, staff has compiled a list of 
approximately 90 short-term Vacation Rental websites, agents, property management 
companies and online rental services that appear to be doing business in Santa 
Barbara. These enforcement leads will be used to support issuance of “legislative 
subpoenas” that will result in the provision of information necessary for outreach and 
enforcement.  The data provided by a subpoena will be essential to the enforcement 
process.   
 
Enforcement Approach  
 
Vacation Rental enforcement will have two goals:  Achieving permanent compliance 
with the Zoning Ordinance and recovery of unpaid Business License and Transient 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 5 

 

Occupancy Tax (TOT).  These goals will be met by firm and clear enforcement 
practices.  For example, in six Vacation Rental cases handled by the City Attorney’s 
Office earlier this year, the business owners were provided compliance notices that 
included a copy of the enforcement complaint that would be filed in Superior Court 
should compliance not be accomplished voluntarily within a relatively short period of 
time (14 to 21 days).  In order to be effective as an incentive and deterrent, Vacation 
Rental business owners must be presented with the threat of enforcement costs that are 
higher than the cost of compliance.  This may require the use of more sophisticated 
business litigation strategies than typically used in code enforcement. 
 
With contract lawyer support, the City Attorney estimates that about 300 cases per year 
can be competently and aggressively managed.  The approach would be to work 30-40 
cases in each 6 week enforcement wave. 
 
Council discussed offering a temporary amnesty to some existing Vacation Rental 
owners.  Staff believes this to be both unnecessary and unwise.  As a practical matter, it 
will take at least two years of concerted effort to make a significant impact in the 
Vacation Rental market.  And, as discussed below with respect to enforcement 
priorities, existing Vacation Rentals that are paying TOT are in the lowest enforcement 
priority category.  This effectively provides amnesty to those owners who have made a 
reasonable effort to address the City’s prior policy concerns.  
 
Enforcement Priorities 
 
Because of the criminal and public nuisance aspects of the City’s code enforcement 
options, the City Attorney has an ethical obligation as an impartial prosecutor whose 
duty it is to seek justice on behalf of the People.  Thus, Council cannot give case-by-
case direction on code enforcement matters.  Nor are closed sessions permitted.  
Council’s policy control and priority setting power comes through the budget process, as 
the Council’s control over spending public funds does not implicate the handling of any 
specific case.  We seek Council’s concurrence in our proposed enforcement priorities 
as part of the funding request, noting that because of the considerations listed above we 
may need to adopt different strategies from time-to-time and case-by-case. 
 
The focus of the June 23, 2015 discussion was full-time short-term Vacation Rentals.  
For a fair and effective enforcement strategy, staff is recommending that all short-term 
Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals be subject to enforcement, with the 
following priorities:  
 

1. Existing and new complaints about Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals, 
citywide. 

 
2. Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals operating without a City business 

license and not paying TOT, in single-family, R-2 and R-3 Zones. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 6 

 

3. Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals operating without required land use 
approvals, a City business license and not paying TOT, in areas where hotels 
can be allowed (R-4 and Commercial Zones). 

 
4. Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals operating with a City business 

license and paying TOT, in single-family, R-2 and R-3 Zones. 
 

5. Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals operating without required land use 
approvals, but with a City business license and paying TOT, in areas where 
hotels can be allowed (R-4 and Commercial Zones). 

 
Collection of TOT 
 
For Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals that are currently not paying TOT or a 
business license tax, the enforcement action will include requiring these operators to 
pay back taxes, including interest and penalties. This approach recognizes that, while 
out of compliance with zoning requirements, these operators are still subject to the TOT 
and Business License Ordinances. Certainly, we encourage these rental operators to 
cease operations in advance of being contacted by the City and to resolve their tax 
liabilities to avoid further penalties and interest being imposed.  
 
All Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rentals that are currently licensed and paying 
TOT will be required to continue to pay those taxes until they are notified by the City 
Attorney’s Office to cease operations. The timing of the notice will be determined by the 
enforcement priorities proposed and previously discussed in this report.  
 
However, applications for new Vacation Rentals or Home Sharing Rentals will not be 
accepted by the City, except for any new, Vacation Rentals in the R-4 and commercial 
zones that have received all appropriate planning and land use approvals.  
 
Proposed Home Sharing Rental Ordinance 
 
Staff proposes to draft a Zoning Ordinance amendment that would define and regulate 
Home Sharing Rentals where residential uses are allowed. The ordinance would include 
regulations requiring a City Business License, TOT payments, and performance 
standards. 
 
Ordinance Amendment Process and Schedule 
 
Staff is proposing the following expedited approach to develop a Home Sharing Rental 
ordinance for Council consideration, with a goal of having the ordinance adopted prior to 
reaching enforcement tiers 4 and 5 (operators not currently paying TOT).  This would 
ideally avoid the awkward situation where the City is shutting down a Home Sharing 
Rental arrangement that would shortly thereafter become allowable under the proposed 
change in the ordinance. To achieve an expedited change in the ordinance, the 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 7 

 

proposed work program does not include a separate community outreach process other 
than the required public hearings before the Planning Commission, Council Ordinance 
Committee, and City Council.   
 

1. Planning Commission workshop  on the general scope of a Home Sharing Rental 
ordinance – Fall  2015 

 
2. Draft Zoning Ordinance amendment prepared by staff – Winter 2015/16 

 
3. CEQA Review & Planning Commission hearing on Draft Ordinance amendment, 

with recommendation to Council – Spring 2016 
 

4. Planning Commission Recommendation to Council (if necessary) – Late Spring  
2016 

 
5. City Council Ordinance Committee review and recommendation to Council - 

Summer 2016 
 

6. City Council consideration of Ordinance amendment - Fall 2016   
 
Noticing 
 
For the June 23, 2015 Council meeting, staff sent mailed notices as a courtesy to all 
Vacation Rental operators currently paying TOT to the Finance Department.   Additional 
interested parties were also sent a notice of the meeting, primarily by email.   Notices 
were also sent to all City neighborhood groups, business and community groups, and 
the email distribution list for General Plan implementation projects.  A City press release 
was also issued.  A similar broad noticing approach was used for this meeting. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
In Fiscal Year 2015, the City’s General Fund received approximately $1.2 million in TOT 
revenues from the 349 registered Vacation Rentals.  This General Fund revenue stream 
will diminish over time with increased zoning enforcement.  Further, staff is requesting 
that Council allocate $170,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to cover 
the cost of increased enforcement by the City Attorney’s Office and Community 
Development Department in Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
Staff recommends  that Council allocate $80,000 to the City Attorney’s Office Fiscal Year 
2016 budget to cover the cost of increased legal services.  This would include hiring 
contract staff to assist in the enforcement of the existing Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
non-compliant Vacation Rentals and Home Sharing Rental operations. Staff expects this 
level of enforcement will be needed through the end of Fiscal Year 2017.  These figures 
are our best estimates, but they have been prepared without detailed programmatic 



Council Agenda Report 
Vacation Rental Enforcement And Home Sharing Ordinance 
August 11, 2015 
Page 8 

 

planning.  Accordingly, we would fine-tune the figures in conjunction with the next fiscal 
year’s budget. 
 
Currently, zoning enforcement is conducted through the Planning Division with two part-
time employees and about 50% of one full-time employee who also works on other 
assignments (for a total of 1.5 FTE).  Based on the experience of other communities 
currently engaged in enforcing vacation rental regulations, staff anticipates that a 
significant short-term effort will be required, and there will likely be need for additional 
staff over the long-term.  In order to meet these staffing needs, staff recommends that 
Council allocate $90,000 to the Community Development Department’s Fiscal Year 
2016 budget.  These funds will be used to create one new full-time position and add two 
part-time staff (for a total of 3.0 FTE) for zoning enforcement purposes.  Following the 
initial two-year effort, it is anticipated that staffing would be reduced to a total of 2.0 
FTE, and the ongoing annual cost increase of creating and retaining .5 FTE is estimated 
at $70,000.  The creation of this full-time position is recommended to better ensure 
recruitment and retention of quality staff and to provide on-going continuity and 
leadership within the zoning enforcement team.  Similar to the City Attorney’s Office, if 
additional staff support is required, this would be addressed in the next fiscal year’s 
budget. 
 
As a component of enforcing Vacation Rental regulations, the Treasury Division of the 
Finance Department will be required to calculate unpaid Business License and 
Transient Occupancy Tax for each enforcement case. The Finance Department has 
sufficient staffing to perform these required functions; however, staff anticipates that 
overtime costs will be incurred to meet the demands of the proposed enforcement 
approach of 300 cases per year. Staff recommends that Council allocate $10,000 to the 
Finance Department’s Fiscal Year 2016 budget to cover these overtime costs. Staff 
anticipates the additional staffing costs to be ongoing through Fiscal Year 2018. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Department Director 
 Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 Robert Samario, Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  16 

File Code No.  640.09 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 11, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office   
 
SUBJECT: Issuance Of Legislative Subpoena To Support Vacation Rental 

Enforcement  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Issuing Subpoenas for Certain Records Related to Short-Term Vacation Rentals 
in the City. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In order to assist in the enforcement against unlawful vacation rentals in R-1, R-2, and 
R-3 residential zones, the City Attorney’s Office is requesting that Council adopt a 
resolution authorizing legislative subpoenas to all companies that operate websites 
advertising vacation rental properties within the City of Santa Barbara. A legislative 
subpoena will ensure that the City Attorney’s Office has all relevant records to conduct a 
thorough review to determine whether a rental property owner is violating the Municipal 
Code.  
 
The majority of short term rentals are advertised on the internet. There are multiple 
vacation rental websites that advertise properties in Santa Barbara for short term rental. 
Information on these websites often includes photos of the property, reviews, rental 
rates, and location of the property. Community Development staff, through web-based 
research, has uncovered and compiled a list of ninety-one (91) websites containing 
short term vacation rental listings of properties in Santa Barbara. 
 
The City Attorney’s Office requests the issuance of legislative subpoenas on all  
websites that have active listings for vacation rentals in the City of Santa Barbara in 
order to investigate, and to obtain compliance with the Municipal Code. Without these 
legislative subpoenas the City Attorney’s Office will be hampered in its effort to 
investigate and obtain vacation rental compliance.  
 
The City Council has the authority to issue a legislative subpoena under Santa Barbara 
City Charter Section 509. Legislative subpoenas are issued in the name of the City and 



Council Agenda Report 
Issuance of Legislative Subpoena To Support Vacation Rental Enforcement 
August 11, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

attested by the City Clerk. In addition, a legislative subpoena issued under the powers 
delineated under the Charter is required to be served and complied with in the same 
manner as subpoenas in civil actions.  
 
The City Council also has the authority to issue legislative subpoenas requiring the 
attendance of witnesses or production of documents pursuant to California Government 
Code section 37104. Under Government Code section 37105, legislative subpoenas are 
signed by the Mayor, attested by the City Clerk, and served in the same manner as civil 
subpoenas. If the subpoenaed party does not comply with the subpoena, Government 
Code section 37106 provides a remedy whereby the Mayor reports the noncompliance 
to the Santa Barbara Superior Court. A judge can then issue an Order to Show Cause 
(OSC) to the subpoenaed party to appear in court and explain the reasons for 
noncompliance.  We recommend using both sources of subpoena authority.  
 
The punishment for disobedience of a legislative subpoena is the same as if the 
contempt had been committed in a civil trial in superior court, namely when a 
subpoenaed party has disobeyed a duly served subpoena, that person has committed  
contempt. (California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1209, subd. (a) (10)). The court 
may then punish the subpoenaed party for contempt by imposing a fine not exceeding 
$1,000 or imprisonment not exceeding five days, or both. (Code Civ.Proc., § 1218). 

The proposed Resolution authorizes issuance and service of legislative subpoenas to 
companies that operate current websites that have active listings for vacation rentals in 
Santa Barbara. The legislative subpoena directs the subpoenaed party to either appear 
at a specified city council meeting with the requested records or make arrangements for 
the production of records. If the subpoenaed party fails to comply, this Resolution 
further authorizes the Mayor to submit a report to the Santa Barbara Superior Court 
regarding noncompliance. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Sample Draft of Legislative Subpoena 
 
PREPARED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 John Steve Doimas, Deputy City Attorney  
  
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



gpeirce
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT

gpeirce
Typewritten Text

gpeirce
Rectangle











 RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE  COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ISSUING  SUBPOENAS FOR CERTAIN 
RECORDS RELATED TO SHORT-TERM VACATION 
RENTALS IN THE CITY. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, City Charter Section 509 and Government Code Section 37104 both 
authorizes the City Council to issue a legislative subpoena requiring attendance of 
witnesses or production of documents; and  
 

WHEREAS, this legislative subpoena serves as a lawful legislative purpose as it 
will allow the Santa Barbara City Attorney’s Office and City Staff to investigate and 
commence actions to abate unlawful vacation rentals in R-1, R-2, and R-3 residential 
zones pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds enforcement of the City’s Municipal Code is a 

proper legislative concern. 
    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The above-listed recitals are true and correct and adopted as findings of City 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara; and 
 
2. That legislative subpoenas similar to the attached hereto as Exhibit A, are 

hereby issued, and the Mayor is authorized to sign each subpoena commanding 
the subpoenaed party to appear before the City Council at a specified City 
Council meeting to produce the requested records, or alternatively to make 
arrangements with the City for production of said records prior to that time; and  

 
3. City staff is directed to have the legislative subpoenas served in accordance with 

all legal requirements for service of subpoenas; and 
 
4. If a subpoenaed party fails to comply with the legislative subpoena authorized by 

this resolution, the Mayor is authorized to submit a report of noncompliance to 
the Santa Barbara Superior Court. 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOCX
	3.DOCX
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.PDF
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.PDF
	24.PDF
	25.DOCX
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.PDF
	30.PDF
	31.PDF
	32.DOCX
	33.DOC
	34.PDF
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.PDF
	38.DOC
	39.DOC
	40.PDF
	41.DOC
	42.PDF
	43.PDF
	44.PDF
	45.PDF
	46.DOC
	47.DOC
	48.PDF
	49.DOC
	AUGUST 11, 2015
	AGENDA
	Bendy White
	Mayor
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Aug 11 - Resolution - Item 5  Reso to accept waterline (2).pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. ________




